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Board and Committees

EEERERS

BOARD

Executive Directors

WANG Dongbin (Chairman)

WU Zhanjiang (Chief Executive Officer)*
WU Hongyuan (Executive President)*

LI Kangying

Independent Non-executive Directors
NG Kong Fat

HAN Bin

WANG Peng

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

NG Kong Fat (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Nomination Committee
WANG Dongbin (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Remuneration Committee
HAN Bin (Chairman)

WANG Dongbin

NG Kong Fat

* With effect from 1 June 2019, Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. WU
Hongyuan was re-designated as executive president of the
Company. Details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 May 2019.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREREBAER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Dongbin, aged 52, is a founder of our Group,
the Chairman and executive Director of the Company. Mr.
WANG is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is primarily responsible for the overall business corporate
strategies planning and development of our Group.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in modern physics
application from Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 1990.
He obtained a master’'s degree in nuclear physics from
Tsinghua University in July 1992.

Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in the
information technology industry. Prior to founding of our
Group, Mr. WANG started his career in the industry when he
was first employed as a technical director by Beijing Teletron
Internet Technology Company Ltd. between May 1996 and
June 2001. He then joined Becom Software Co, Ltd. as
the general manager between July 2001 and April 2008.
Between May 2008 and July 2012, he was the executive
director and the general manager of Beijing Jietong Yishin
Technology Development Company Limited.

Mr. WU Zhanjiang, aged 51, is a founder of the Group
and has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2019. He is primarily
responsible for overall operation and development of the
Group’s smart city loT and smart energy IoT businesses. Mr.
WU Zhanjiang graduated from North China Electric Power
University and obtained a master’s degree in Automation
of Electric Power System in March 1996. In 2015, Mr. WU
Zhanjiang graduated from China Europe International
Business School and obtained EMBA certificate. Mr. WU
Zhanjiang has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power industry in the PRC and has accumulated abundant
experience in technological research and development and
commercial application of smart city IoT and smart energy
loT related areas.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEAER

Mr. WU Hongyuan, aged 47, an executive Director of
the Company who has been re-designated from the post
of Chief Executive Officer of the Company to Executive
President of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019
due to strategic planning. He is primarily responsible for and
focus on the operation and management of our Group's
loT. Mr. WU Hongyuan joined our Group in December
2011 as the general manager of research and development
and customer service department of Along Grid and was
promoted to the general manager of Along Grid in April
2014. Mr. WU Hongyuan graduated from Beijing Electricity
College (being incorporated into Beijing Jiaotong University
in 2000) in the PRC in July 1994, majoring in electricity
system communication.

Mr. WU Hongyuan has over 20 years of experience in the
electric power selling and management system industry. Prior
to joining of our Group, he started his career as a teaching
staff in the information engineering department of North
China Electric Power University between July 1994 and
October 2007. He was then employed by the Beijing Puhua
Yalong Technology Company Limited as the deputy general
manager between November 2007 and December 2011.

Mr. LI Kangying, aged 63, is a founder of the Group
and an executive Director of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for investment and acquisition related matters of
the Group. Mr. LI graduated from North China Electric Power
University in December 1979 majoring in telecommunication
and has extensive experience in corporate management in
mainland China and Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kong Fat, Brian, aged 64, the independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 5 February 2018.
He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the University of Stirling in Scotland in 1983
and was admitted as a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland in May 1987. Mr. NG has over 20
years of experience in corporate, investment and financial
management. Mr. NG has served as an executive director of
Beijing Enterprises Environment Group Limited (stock code:
154), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and principally engaged in solid waste treatment
business in the PRC since July 1993.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEAR

Mr. HAN Bin, aged 66, the independent non-executive
Director since 5 February 2018. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the
Company. He graduated from North China Electric Power
University (previously known as North China Electric Power
College) (“North China Electric Power University”) in the
PRC in December 1979, majoring in electricity system
communication.

Mr. HAN Bin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system market in the PRC.
Between August 1989 and November 1992, he joined
Tsingtao Electricity Supply Company (previously known as
Tsingtao Electricity Affair Department) where he had worked
at various positions, including assistant engineer, engineer
and deputy head of the system operation department.
Between December 1992 and May 1999, he joined China
Fulin Wind Power Development Company where he had
worked as the deputy general manager of the project
department. Between June 1999 and October 2013, he
joined China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited
(previously known as Longyuan Power Group Limited) where
he had worked at various positions, including assistant of
the general manager, deputy chief engineer and project
development department officer.

Mr. WANG Peng, aged 46, the independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 5 February 2018. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He graduated from North China
Electric Power University in the PRC in July 1994, majoring
in electricity system and automation of electricity system. He
obtained a master's degree in engineering from North China
Electric Power University in January 1997. He then obtained
a doctoral degree in electricity system and automation of
electricity system from North China Electric Power University
in April 2002.

Between April 1997 and May 2005, Mr. WANG Peng worked
in North China Electric Power University as a teaching staff.
Mr. WANG Peng was qualified as an associate professor
from North China Electric Power University in November
2003. Between May 2005 and May 2015, he worked in
National Energy Administration North China Regulatory
Authority) (previously known as National Electricity
Regulatory Commission North China Regulatory Authority).
Since May 2015, he has become a professor of North China
Electric Power University. Mr. WANG Peng is currently an
independent non-executive director of Sichuan Energy
Investment Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1713), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

8  Annual Report 2020  OneForce Holdings Limited

i ] ———

il -

- Sae

BWIEE 6657 B2018F2AHBESR
EAEBIIENITES - BINAERR B FH
ZEEXTRURREZESREZZEEK
B o HRI1979F 12 AN R EILE HKE
THEILLE NS  [ELEEHAREB]NE

(Al
X IEBENRGBIER -

BWRENTEE N EERESTMISHEE20
FHEE o RN 19894 8 A= 19924 11 A Hf
FAMASEHEQAR(FIBEESEER) - I
DR EMLER - SEPIETEM - T2
MEAEGEEDIDE - HKR1992F12 8
19995 A B INAF RE R EAEREA
A WEEMFIER HRIRLEIE - R 1999
F6HE2013F10H BIEMARERE N & H
B ERAR(FIEEREENEERT]) @ I
DRLZEMLER  SE8CEE - 38
TEMRIARBERIEME -

EMESEE - 4657 0 B2018F 2 ASHBES
FEARRBUIENITES - BNARAE
EBEZZEERIRRZEEKE - HR19%4
F7IARPBEENLENAREREE  FEE
ZmhENEEEEL - HBR1997F1 AR
FEALE N RERMEB ITRBELTEN - HFEER
2002F4AANENLTBNARERBENRAR
BHRGEECEIBN -

F e s A7 1997F 4 B E 200545 A S
FELABHRBETHEAS - THELE
R2003F 11 AEZEALE H RKERRAEIH
% o 20054E5 A F201545 A EAf - A
R RRELEER(AIEEREESELL
EEER)IIE - B2015FE5 A% - RAEL
BARBHIE - T ER BU)IEIRER
R BB AT (B EE © 1713)HB IEH
TEE  ZRRRBRTERET -



ja\

Directors and Senior Management
EXENREREEAE

CHANGE OF INFORMATION RELATING TO DIRECTORS

Changes in directors’ information since the publication
date of the 2020 interim report of the Company until the
publication date of this 2020 annual report which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, are set out below:

Name of director  Details of change

ERESERNEH

BARAF020F HREFBEHHEE LR
2000 FE PR B IR FHEEE
13.51B(MIEBE TR FEMNESE R FE 70
T

EEHA SEFF

WANG Dongbin The Company has entered the
service contract with Mr. WANG
Dongbin for a term of three years
commencing on 21 June 2019
in place of the previous service
contract took effect on 2 March
2018. The term of the new service
shall be renewed and extended
automatically by one year on the
expiry of such initial term and
on the expiry of every successive
period of one year thereafter,
unless either party has given at
least three months’ written notice
of non-renewal before the expiry
of the then existing term.

Mr. WANG is entitled to receive
annual salary of HK$360,000
and a discretionary bonus with
reference to the Company’s
remuneration policy.

LI Kangying The Company has entered the
service contract with Mr. LI
Kangying for a term of three
years commencing on 21 June
2019 in place of the previous
service contract took effect on
2 March 2018. The term of the
new service shall be renewed and
extended automatically by one
year on the expiry of such initial
term and on the expiry of every
successive period of one year
thereafter, unless either party
has given at least three months’
written notice of non-renewal
before the expiry of the then
existing term.

Mr. LI is entitled to receive annual
salary of HK$360,000 and
a discretionary bonus with
reference to the Company’s
remuneration policy.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Yanmin, aged 55, is the deputy general manager of
our Group. Mr. LI Yanmin joined our Group in October 2012
as the general manager of the research and development
and customer service department of our Group and was
promoted to the deputy general manager of our Group
in April 2016. He is primarily responsible for project
management for Software Systems and hardware of our
Group. Mr. LI Yanmin graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in electricity engineering from Wuhan University (previously
known as Wuhan Hydro Electricity Institute) in the PRC in July
1987. He obtained a master’s degree in electricity system and
automation of electricity system from North China Electric
Power University in January 1993.

Mr. LI Yanmin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system industry in the
PRC. Prior to joining our Group, between July 1987 and
September 1990, and between July 1993 and October
2007, Mr. LI served as a teacher in North China Electric
Power University. Between November 2007 and September
2012, he served as the deputy general manager of Beijing
Puhua Yalong Technology Company Limited, where he was
responsible for software and technology development.

Ms. YANG Tian, aged 36, FCCA, CICPA, was appointed
as the chief financial officer of our Group in August 2019
and was primarily responsible for financial management
and compliance assurance of our Group. Ms. YANG
Tian graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Jinan University in the PRC in July 2007.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. YANG Tian worked for the
Big 4 accounting firms, sizeable state-owned enterprises
and other listed companies, she has more than 12 years of
experience in accounting, financial management and capital
operation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LAU Jeanie, aged 43, the company secretary of our
Company since 22 November 2019 responsible for the
company secretarial matters of our Group. Ms. LAU is a
Senior Manager of Corporate Services of Tricor Services
Limited. She is an associate member of both The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in England and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and with over
15 years of experience in corporate secretarial practice. She
has been providing corporate services to companies overseas
and in Hong Kong. She had been a company secretary of
various listed companies on the Main Board of The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange over the last 10 years.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual report of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

As an information technology service provider, the Group is
dedicated to its relevant technical research and its application
in power information technology and smart city loT. The
Group provides tailor-made software and solutions, technical
services and hardware products to various types of energy
companies, government and corporate customers.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

During the current financial year, the Group was confronted
by both opportunities and challenges.

The international economy presents a complex and grim
picture where it suffered mounting downward pressure
under the COVID-19 epidemic outbreak. Despite more new
difficulties and challenges in its development, the Chinese
economy maintains positive fundamentals in the long run.
In civil year 2019, China recorded a full-year gross domestic
product of approximately RMB100 trillion, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 6.1%, as its economic
development model continued to switch from high-speed
development to high-quality development.

Power information technology business

2019 saw stable growth in power demand nationwide. Total
power consumption amounted to approximately 7.2 trillion
kWh, registering a year-on-year rise of approximately 4.5%.
Power grid investment, which had entered its structural
adjustment stage, amounted to approximately RMB450
billion for the year, lower than that in 2018 but with more
emphasis on IT development in the investment structure,
as the number of tendering IT projects grew significantly
during the year. From 2019 to the first quarter of 2020,
State Grid Corporation of China (“SGCC") successively
formulated strategic plans for developing ubiquitous power
loT and energy internet, setting out clear strategic objectives
for promoting the construction of power grid digitisation
infrastructure. Meanwhile, China has evidently picked up its
pace in the market reform of the power sector, establishing
a power spot market and launching a new power tariff
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®E

mechanism, which has significantly raised the IT requirements
of power grid systems. Boosting IT investment in power grids
has also become a necessary means for China in its power
market reform. With expedited IT advancement for power
grids, IT development for power grids has emerged as a
key investment direction for SGCC, as it embraces thriving
growth of the Chinese power IT industry.

Leveraging its years of accumulation of customer resources
in power grid and power distribution companies and
improving customer loyalty, the Group promptly grasped
the great opportunity to continuously consolidate and
deepen its collaborative relationship with SGCC, Inner
Mongolia Power (Group) Co., Ltd* (REHEHEEE
BREERAR]) (“IMPG”) and China Southern Power Grid
Company Limited (“CSG") (collectively, "Three Major
Power Grid Companies”). The Group worked to expand the
geographic presence and intensity of its business, coupled
with continuous amplification of research and development
("“R&D") investment, proactive development of new
products, accurate insight into customer demand and market
differentiation, to further bolster the overall competitiveness
of the Group’s power IT business.

During the current financial year, the Group’s revenue from
the Three Major Power Grid Companies (including their local
subsidiaries) amounted to approximately RMB115 million,
which represented an approximately 19.6% increase from
last year. The business cooperation with the Three Major
Power Grid Companies covered core areas of IT development
such as the information system upgrade for power grids,
development of power exchange platform and integrated
energy management.

Smart city loT business

In the current financial year, construction of smart cities
remained an investment hotspot around China and the rest
of the world. As early as in 2016, China set out explicitly
in its “13th Five-Year National Plan for Informatisation*”
(T +=x" JBERE LA E)) that it would attain highly
effective construction of smart cities by 2020. During the
financial year, China witnessed the constant expansion of
its smart cities market, which was led by its acceleration of
urbanisation as well as advancement of new technologies
such as 5G, big data and artificial intelligence, and stimulated
by various favourable policies for new infrastructure
development (“New Infrastructure”). loT constitutes the
most fundamental element and vital support to the structure
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of smart cities. Given the maturity of 5G technology, the
application of loT technology and products in smart city has
been fully developed, which was a key step in completing the
target of constructing smart cities. Under the dual catalysts
of favourable policies and technological advancements,
the smart city 10T industry has displayed tremendous
development potential in China.

Development of the smart city loT business hinges on
specific smart city projects, which are massive, complex and
systematic works that involve many aspects of work and span
a long period of time. Such projects require a considerable
amount of investment and are often subject to limited
fiscal budgets from the government. As such, for smart city
projects in China, the most common investment model is
public-private partnership, with private institutions leading
the investment, construction and operation of such projects.

In respect of its smart city loT business, the Group generates
revenue mainly by providing technical services and selling
proprietary hardware products in such smart city projects
that are developed by its associate Beijing Beikong Zhike
Energy Internet Company Limited* (b RibEE RlIgER 5
%49 H PR A A7) (“Beikong Energy Internet”). As mentioned
above, the progress of smart city projects is closely linked
to the pace of infrastructure project investment by local
governments. In the second half of 2019, infrastructure
investment has been scaled back due to the continued
slide of domestic and overseas economy, the impact of
shrinking social capital under the domestic “de-leveraging”
policy and the economic shock triggered by the COVID-19
outbreak, where the governments and social capital have
taken a prudent approach in such investment. As such, the
construction schedule of some existing projects of Beikong
Energy Internet was delayed or cancelled, while the progress
of certain other existing projects was postponed due to
the changes in cooperation terms of such projects where
Beikong Energy Internet and the Group were still assessing
the feasibility of the continuation of such projects from a
business perspective. Such affected projects mainly comprise
the smart city projects in Mentougou District, Beijing,
including the operation project of iPole exclusive concession
right and the 2nd Phase IoT construction project* (k5219
REREERRREAKEHELHB MMBEBEEHTY
Bt 4853 % —H78 H) and the project of “Smart Town and Big
Data Industrial Park*” in Wuxi (4E$3 [ %5 2 /48 2 K%
EZ%E |78 B ). Considering the impact of above reasons on
the future earnings forecast of related assets, the Group has
taken a prudent approach and recognised the impairment
losses for the assets related to the smart city loT business of
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approximately RMB36,036,000 for the current year. Such
asset impairment losses were a non-cash and one-off item
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss which
will not have an impact on the Group’s daily operations and
cash flow.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

Challenged by macroeconomic downward pressure and
the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group is well aware of the
importance of stable cash flow in the advent of economic
hardship. Hence, it has taken active measures to enhance
cash flow management and stay highly alert to the timeliness
of repayment from customers, with a greater emphasis
on the follow-up measures for customer repayment whilst
encouraging its teams to proactively develop markets and
business. During the financial year, the Group recovered total
accounts receivable of approximately RMB140 million. The
total turnover days of accounts receivable and contract assets
were approximately 297.9 days, decreasing by approximately
32.5 days compared with last year. In the meantime, the
Group maintains sound cooperation with commercial banks
to ensure smooth financing channels and safeguard the
successful turnover of its cash flow. Irrespective of losses
for the current year, the Group sustained its stable business
operations and adequate working capital. As such, the Board
remains optimistic about the Group’s performance in the
forthcoming financial year.

In March 2020, SGCC put forward a clear plan for
developing energy internet enterprises, setting forth the
objective that certain areas and crucial segments and
indicators of SGCC shall attain an internationally leading
level by 2025, with much enhancement in power grids in
terms of intelligence and digitisation. In April 2020, SGCC
set out the plan of accelerating the development of ultra-
high voltage engineering works, the new energy vehicles
charging business and the application of modern information
and communication technology as well as enhancing the
supporting power works of “New Infrastructure” projects.
In May 2020, the Development Report 2020 of Service New
Energy issued by SGCC also clarified the vision of accelerating
the construction of new energy cloud and building a new
energy digital economy platform with Chinese characteristics.
Meanwhile, with the transformation of energy structure
in China, the ongoing marketisation of electric power
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transactions, the power transmission and distribution tariff
reform and the opening up of incremental distribution
networks, SGCC has explicitly shifted its investment focus
from heavy assets to intelligence, IT and loT. The power
information technology and charging pile industries embrace
broader prospects, which will bring even more development
opportunities to the Group.

Leveraging its stable cooperation and growing customer
loyalty accumulated from providing IT development and
service to power grid companies over the years, exceptional
technical teams and outstanding software and hardware
products, the Group is confident of its ability to expand its
scope of business in power information technology. At the
same time, the Group is actively working on its charging
pile products business. Currently, the Group has obtained
product and verification certificates in relation to direct-
current charging piles, and is anticipated to work with SGCC
on the charging pile business in the near future, thereby
capturing the important opportunities from energy internet
and New Infrastructure.

Regarding the urban IoT business, smart city construction
serves as a crucial direction in China’s New Infrastructure
policy. In particular, as all walks of life come to even clearer
realisation of the importance of smart city management
under the COVID-19 epidemic, acceleration of smart city
construction has grown into a consensus amongst various
social sectors. Meanwhile, China is actively carrying out
its proactive fiscal policy and release liquidity, including
measures such as raising the limits of special national and
local bond issuance as appropriate and lowering corporate
financing costs. This will add to the fiscal budget of local
governments and social capital for engaging in smart city
construction, and the construction of smart cities is expected
to speed up. Accordingly, the Group believes that with more
clarity in favourable macroeconomic policies on smart city
construction, the Group is bound to achieve breakthrough in
its smart city loT business.
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Meanwhile, building smart communities is an important part
of building smart cities. At present, many cities in China have
delegated the authority and resources needed for building
smart cities to their communities. The Group is working
with its associate company, Beikong Energy Internet, to
continue to promote the existing smart city construction
projects, and at the same time actively target community as
the entry point of smart city to carry out projects in smart
community, intelligent garbage classification and community
energy management. Community projects are easier to be
implemented because of their small capital needs and short
construction cycle, which bring more opportunities for the
development of smart city loT business of the Group.

With the current challenging economic environment, the
Group will adhere to the philosophy of seeking progress
while maintaining stable performance and strive to enhance
the business operation ability and core competitiveness to
capture their industry opportunities and promote sustainable
and high-quality development of the Group.

WANG Dongbin
Chairman

*  For identification purpose only
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OUR INDUSTRY
Power Information Technology Industry

IT development of grid is the key investment direction of
SGCC

In 2019, SGCC successively formulated strategic plans for
developing ubiquitous power IoT and energy internet. The
power grid investment has entered its structural adjustment
stage, and the investment structure has focused more on IT
development. In June 2020, SGCC released the top ten key
projects of “Digital New Infrastructure”, including the power
grid digital platform, energy big data center, power big
data application, power loT, energy industry cloud network,
smart energy comprehensive service, energy internet 5G
application, etc., and intended to invest approximately
RMB24.7 billion to implement these ten key projects,
which was expected to mobilize a total social investment of
approximately RMB100 billion, and promote the common
development of upstream and downstream enterprises.
It fully demonstrated the firm determination of SGCC to
promote the development of the power grid in the direction
of intelligence, informatization and loT.

Accelerating power market process further increases demand
for IT development

Since 2019, China has evidently picked up its pace in the
market reform of the power sector. In May 2019, the
southern power spot market released the first transaction,
marking the official launch of the power spot market; in
June, the National Development and Reform Commission
issued a document to fully liberalize the power generation
and utilization plan for operating power users. In September,
the executive meeting of the State Council announced that
the mechanism of price linkage between coal and electricity
would be cancelled from 2020 and a “base price plus float”
mechanism would be effected, completing a key step in the
transition from “Planned Electricity” to “Market Electricity”,
and gradually returning the power of decision on electricity
prices to the market from the administrative agency. The
establishment of the power spot market and the introduction
of new electricity pricing mechanism will greatly increase the
requirements of the power grid system for informatization.
Increasing the investment in power grid informatization will
also become an important handgrip and a necessary way for
China to promote the reform of the power market.
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Smart City loT Industry

The process of urbanization is accelerating and the market
scale of smart cities is expanding

In 2019, China’'s urbanization level has exceeded 60%,
solving the problems of urban traffic congestion, air pollution,
public security management, sanitation management, etc.,
and has become the common demand of most cities in
China. With the improving complexity of urban system and
the increasing diversity of demand, the demand for smart city
technology and application which enable cities to operate
more efficiently and urban management more refined is
growing. At the same time, the state and local governments
have successively issued relevant support policies to actively
guide and promote the construction of smart cities. With the
support of market demand and favorable policies, the market
scale of smart cities is continuously expanding.

5G technologies promote the maturity of smart city loT
technologies and applications

[oT is the most basic element and the most important
support in the smart city structure. Through the IoT, we can
realize the comprehensive integration of urban information
and resources and business collaboration, realize the mutual
perception and interconnection between people and things,
things and things in the system, continuously improve the
management efficiency and effect, and make the urban
management more convenient, faster and more humanized.
With the maturity and landing of 5G technologies, loT
technologies and products applied in smart cities have
achieved comprehensive development, laying a solid
technical foundation for the construction of smart cities.

The above development status of the power information
technology industry and the smart city l1oT industry all
indicate that the industries where the Group operates its
business are booming. In particular, with the support of
China’s new infrastructure policy and proactive fiscal policy,
more development opportunities will be ushered in.
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Competitive strengths

With years of experience and accumulation of customer
resources in China’s electric power IT industry, the Group has
formed its core competitive strengths in industry knowledge
and experience, technological expertise, tailored products, as
well as comprehensive service system, and has accumulated
ever-improving customer loyalty. Meanwhile, the Group
actively invests in R&D and innovation of city loT, and owns
loT products and applications with self-owned independent
intellectual property rights.

Industry knowledge and experience

The Group’s executive Directors and senior management,
with an average of over 20 years of experience in the IT
development of China’s electric power industry and over
10 years of experience in smart city loT, are equipped with
rich industrial experience and resources in both technical
expertise and project experience. Furthermore, their strong
technological experience and business capacities not only
brought us high customer satisfaction to products and
services, but also amplified our reputation.

Technological expertise and products

The Group has constantly adhered to the concept of
“Developing Practical Technology and Delivering Value for
Clients”. As of the date of this report, the Group’s operating
subsidiaries have applied for/registered 24 patents and
108 software copyrights in the PRC, and have also been
accredited the certificates of CMMI Level 5, ISO 9001 and
ISO 20000, as well as System Integration Level 3 and “High
and New Technology Enterprise” by Beijing municipal
government.

Based on its technological expertise, the Group developed
our proprietary Research and Development Support Platform
("RDSP") for smart energy with core intellectual property
rights. RDSP is constructed by applying a new generation
of information and communication technologies, such as
“cloud computing”, “big data”, and “loT”, and is dedicated
to offering our customers with tailor-made solutions.
Meanwhile, with its deepened understanding of customer
needs and precise grasp of market differentiation during the
process of providing IT development and services to power
grid companies over the years, the Group provided customers
with competitive IT solutions and products, winning us good
customer satisfaction.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
business segments for the year ended 31 March 2020:

g JEll ]
L ON

REZE2020F3A31HIEEFE » REBKS
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For the For the

year ended year ended

AN ETTd whyIil 31 March 2019
BZE HZE
pIiyLok=cY=ES U= 20193 H31H
LFE IFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Software and solutions B R AR T R
Technical services AT AR 7S
Sale of products EmiEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s revenue
increased by approximately RMB48,346,000, mainly
representing the growth of its technical services and product
sales business, which was due to the combined impact of the
following reasons:

(i) the increase in revenue from provision of technical
services by approximately RMB52,651,000
as compared to the previous year, which was
attributable to the expansion of large-scale projects
including the technical support for the uniformed
national electricity market of SGCC and the operation
and maintenance of the marketing information
system of IMPG during the current year. The revenue
contributed to the Group from provision of technical
services continued to increase as the Group kept
intensifying its R&D and market expansion and
expanding the type and scope of technical services for
customers.

(i) the increase in revenue from sale of products by
approximately RMB19,784,000, as driven by SGCC's
policy of developing ubiquitous power loT and energy
internet during the current year, the greater demand
for the upgrade of relevant hardware products by
major power grid companies and development of
new clients, as the Group started working with CSG
in late 2018 to provide products for its subsidiaries in
various regions in the PRC.
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(iii)

the decrease in revenue from sale of software and
solutions by approximately RMB24,089,000 as
compared to the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to the change of customer demand.
During the current year, with the continuous
strengthening of information security management
by the customers, instead of purchasing software or
solutions directly, more customers prefer to engage
the Group to provide localised IT system development
service to them, which were considered as provisions
of technical services by the Group and in turn resulted
in the decrease in revenue from sale of software and
solutions during the current year.

Cost of sales and gross profit margin

Below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales and
gross profit margin by business segments for the year ended
31 March 2020:
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For the For the
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IEFE WEFE

Cost of sales (RMB’000) HERKT(ARYET T
Software and solutions B R fRRTTE 11,356 22,683
Technical services R iT R 7% 85,147 31,061
Sale of products EmiEE 43,115 23,464
Total &5t 139,618 77,208

Gross profit margin EFZE

Software and solutions M RBRRT R 32.6% 44.6%
Technical services F AR 13.5% 32.1%
Sale of products EmigE 10.5% 17.4%
Average F15 14.6% 32.9%
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's cost of
sales grew by approximately RMB62,410,000, whereas the
Group's overall gross profit margin fell from approximately
32.9% to approximately 14.6%. Such decrease was mainly
because:

(i) as stated above, with the continuous expansion of
product and service offerings, the Group continued to
expand into new markets and regions. Accordingly,
the increase in cost of sales was in line with the
relevant growth in sales;

(ii) as the scale of its power information technology
business continues to grow, the Group expanded
business teams (including engagement of outsourced
staff) in advance with the expectation of its continued
business expansion during the current year, which led
to a surge in the HR-related cost included in costs.
Nevertheless, the COVID-19 epidemic delayed the
work resumption of both the Group's staff and those
of its clients, which affected the progress of some
project development and resulted in lower-than-
expected revenue recognised in both the segment of
software and solutions and technical services during
the current year; and

(iii) affected by the rising cost of raw materials and
logistics, the purchase cost of products increased
accordingly, resulting in a decline in gross profit of
the segment of sale of products.

Other income

For the year ended 31 March 2020, other income decreased
by RMB5,688,000 year on year, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the refund of value-added-tax
as a fewer number of projects completed during the current
year which were eligible for refund of value-added tax as
compared with that in the previous year.
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Administrative and other operating expenses

Below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s administrative
and other operating expenses incurred for the year ended 31
March 2020:

THRRHMEEER

REZE2020F3A31HIEFE » ZEETTH
NMEMSEEROFBNT

For the For the

year ended year ended
EYRVET WLl 31 March 2019
B=E BHE

pLpLE: PR N=I 20193 H31H
ILFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBBT T AREFTT

Labour costs AL
R&D expenses HEEE
Professional services expenses HERGE
Amortisation of intangible assets B A =
Others EHAb

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred
administrative and other operating expenses of approximately
RMB45,366,000 (year ended 31 March 2019: approximately
RMB19,921,000). The increase was mainly attributable to:

(i) salary increase to the Group’s employees,

(i) the Group’s continuous efforts to improve its
technological strength, with a further increase in
initial R&D activity investment in the current year;

(iii) an increase of RMB15,664,000 in total amortisation
of intangible assets for the current year due to
the increase of intangible assets as a result of the
Acquisition in the previous years; and

(iv) increase in expenses in relation to legal and
compliance counsels, financial consulting, audit and
printing services as incurred by the Company.

6,793 5,879
5,254 3,063
8,927 6,872
15,780 116
8,612 3,991
45,366 19,921
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Intangible assets

As of 31 March 2020, the net carrying amount of the
Group's intangible assets was approximately RMB36,843,000
(31 March 2019: approximately RMB73,416,000). In
particular:

(i) due to the cancellation or suspension of certain smart
city projects and the lower-than-expected revenue
from smart city loT business, indicator of impairment
of relevant intangible assets was identified. An asset
impairment loss of RMB22,418,000 was recorded
after performing impairment assessment by the
Group; and

(ii) as an innovation-driven company, the Group further
boosted its commitment to and resources in R&D
activities during the current financial year. As of the
date of this report, the Group’s operating subsidiaries
have applied for/registered a total of 24 patents and
108 software copyrights in the PRC (31 March 2019:
20 patents and 82 software copyrights).

Property, plant and equipment

As of 31 March 2020, the net carrying amount of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB9,782,000 (31 March 2019: approximately
RMB26,108,000), representing a year-on-year decline
of RMB16,326,000. This was mainly due to the delayed
development and lower-than-expected revenue from the
smart city operation project of iPole exclusive concession
right in Mentougou District, Beijing, as a result of which
indicators of impairment of relevant assets were identified.
An asset impairment loss of approximately RMB13,618,000
was recorded after performing impairment assessment by
the Group.

Trade and bill receivables

As of 31 March 2020, the aggregate net amount of the
Group's trade and bill receivables and contract assets
was approximately RMB149,550,000 (31 March 2019:
approximately RMB117,243,000). The increase was mainly
driven by the growth in sales revenue. The Group's credit
policy and the creditability of its customers were stable as
compared with prior years.
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Inventories and other contract costs

As of 31 March 2020, the Group’s net inventories and other
contract costs amounted to approximately RMB9,783,000
(31 March 2019: RMB11,697,000), which mainly consisted
of the upfront cost of pipeline projects for the Group's future
business development. The decrease of the current year was
mainly attributable to the slowdown of development of new
projects as well as expected suspension of certain projects,
due to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, as a result of
which less upfront cost was incurred near the end of the
current year.

R&D expenditure
Below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s capitalised/R&D

expenditure charged to profit or loss accounts incurred for
the year end 31 March 2020:

FERAMERKA
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R&D expenditure s
Capitalised BERNt&HE
Charged to profit or loss accounts

As a technology and innovation driven company, the Group
has maintained its focus on investing in R&D activities
for a long term. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group continued to invest in R&D activities, which was
demonstrated by the application for/registration of a total
of 4 patents and 26 software copyrights in the PRC by the
Group (for the year ended 31 March 2019: 16 software
copyrights were applied for/registered by the Group and 20
patents and 29 software copyrights were obtained by the
Group as a result of the Acquisition).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s operation
and capital requirements were financed principally through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating
activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had net current assets of RMB144,587,000 (31 March
2019: RMB158,952,000), including bank balances and cash
of RMB31,802,000 (31 March 2019: RMB65,293,000). The
Group's current ratio (as calculated by current assets divided
by current liabilities) changed from 3.49 times as at 31 March
2019 to 3.12 times as at 31 March 2020. Gearing ratio is
calculated by net debt divided by total capital as at the end of
the year. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
bank borrowings and finance lease payables, if any) less cash
and bank balances, while total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt, where applicable. The Group’s gearing ratio as
at 31 March 2020 was nil (31 March 2019: nil). The change
in liquidity position was mainly due to the Group’s efforts to
explore new business, new customers and new market, and as
such, made mode working capital investment.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: (i) market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), (i) credit risk; (iii) liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

CASH FLOW AND FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB13,000,000 (31 March
2019: RMB23,839,000), which bears a fix rate of interests of
4.550% to 5.565% p.a.. As such, the Group was limitedly
exposed to interest rate risk (31 March 2019: none).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited at banks,
trade receivables and contract assets, deposits and other
receivables.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies.
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The management of the Company makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of trade receivables, contract assets and
other receivables based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the
debtors and whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
The Group’s historical experience in collection of trade
receivables, contract assets and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the management is of the
opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, 36% (31 March 2019: 52%) of the
total amount of the trade receivables and contract assets
were due from the Group’s largest customer and 88%
(31 March 2019: 94%) were due from the five largest
customers determined on the same basis.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and, if
applicable, external regulatory or legal requirements — for
example, currency restrictions.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of short-term financial assets
and receivables; and long-term financing including long-term
borrowings, if any. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest-bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any contract
commitments. As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s contract
commitments mainly include minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises amounted to RMB2,039,000. From 1 April 2019
onwards, future lease payments have been recognised as
lease liabilities in the statement of financial position and
the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in Note 23.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary
shares. As at 31 March 2020, the Company had 505,211,177
shares in issue (31 March 2019: 505,263,177 shares).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investments (31 March 2019: none).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not
have any acquisition or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
completed the acquisition of Great Progress International
Limited and related business. For details, please refer to the
2019 annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Prospectus or otherwise in
this annual report, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: none).

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2020, there had been no
material change in the Group’s funding and treasury policies.
The Group has a sufficient level of cash and banking facilities
for the conduct of its trade in the normal course of business.

The management of the Company closely reviews trade
receivable balances and any overdue balances on an
ongoing basis and only trade with creditworthy parties. The
management of the Company closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group'’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements to manage liquidity risk.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, no assets were charged as security
for bank borrowing of the Group. (As at 31 March 2019, a
total of HK$30,000,000 of the Group’s bank deposits were
charged as security for bank borrowings of the Group.)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no property, plant and
equipment that was held under finance leases (31 March
2019: none).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of employees were approximately 115 as
at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: approximately 199). The
Group’s employee benefit expenses mainly included salaries,
overtime payment and discretionary bonus, share options,
other staff benefits and contributions to retirement schemes.
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
employee benefit expenses (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to RMB31.8 million (31 March 2019: RMB35.4
million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to the
qualification, experience and work performance, whereas the
payment of discretionary bonus is generally subject to work
performance, the financial performance of the Group in that
particular year and general market conditions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance
with such requirements. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in
all material respects during the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and the SFO for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance in all material respects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental
impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimize these impacts if possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable
assets of the Group. The Group strictly complies with the
labour laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong and
regularly reviews the existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able
to establish trust and long-standing business relationship
with its major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and
develops long term and stable relationships with suppliers.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no
material dispute nor disagreement between the Group and
its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Opportunity always comes with challenge. While
strengthening our technological expertise and marketing
position, the Group is facing the following main operational
risk factors:
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Reliance on major customers

Our revenue was mainly derived from the provision of
Application Solutions, Technical Services and sale of product
to IMPG, SGCC and CSG. For the year ended 31 March
2020, revenue attributable to our five largest customers
represented over 80% of our total revenue. Even though
the Group has been proactively approaching new customers
in, electric power retailing, public utilities and electric power
generation sectors, the exploration of new markets and
expansion of customer base require heavy initial investments
in time and resources and is uncertain in nature. As such, the
Group is likely to retain a notable concentration in customer
base in the forthcoming few years. If IMPG, SGCC and CSG
adjust their respective investment plan and procurement
model in the business sector the Group operates, our
product and/or service offerings cannot satisfy customers’
demands and requirements, which would lead to a decrease
in procurement of the Group's products and/or services from
our customers, or the Group’s R&D projects may not be
commercialised, and our results of operation and profitability
may be adversely affected.

In this respect, the Group is going to proactively penetrate
in the newly engaged electric power retailing sector and
increase its percentage of composition in our revenue profile.
Meanwhile, be leveraging new technology development in
cloud computing, big data and mobile internet, the Group is
also determined to develop new market and business in the
smart energy sector.

Seasonality of business

The Group’s major customers are electric power grid
companies featured with top-down management structure.
Accordingly, their internal procedures for investment approval
are centrally planed and managed. In general, electric power
grid companies set up next year's investment plan (including
information technology related projects) toward the end of
current year. In the following year, budgeted projects are
implemented (from tendering to project kick-off, impletion
and completion) in batches. Subject to electric power grid
companies’ internal management procedures, the signing
of contracts and completion of project inspection tend to
be conducted in the fourth quarter each year. Accordingly,
more of our revenue is recognised in the same time period.
As such, our results of operation have exhibits certain
seasonality.
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In this respect, the Group will proactively communicate
and cooperate with electric power grid companies, so as to
increase visibility of our business operation. Meanwhile, the
Group will also explore new customers and business areas
for the purpose of smoothing seasonality of our business and
results of operation.

Costs in R&D activities

The Group has been focusing on developing technological
expertise to lead business innovation, and making consistent
investments in R&D activities. By doing this, we have
evolving new product and service offering, which provide
sound and solid ground for the development of the Group.
Nevertheless, our investments in R&D may not commercialise
in short-term and the economic benefits arising from relevant
new products and/or services may not cover the underlying
investments. As such, the Group’s results of operation and
profitability may be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group will keep abreast of the latest
developments in technology and the industry, so that to keep
our lead in technology development, meanwhile not making
excessive R&D investments. By continuously enhancing our
study in industrial policies and trends in new technology
development, the Group seeks to increase the success rate
of R&D activities and mitigating the uncertainties and risks
associated with business innovation.

Impairment of trade receivables

Along with the development of the Group business, our
revenue and trade receivables increased accordingly. Our
major customers, electric power grid companies and relevant
enterprises, are all have solid financial ground and sound
creditability, which provide reliable basis for the recoverability
of our trade receivables. Nevertheless, the rise in trade
receivables does have notable impacts on our cash positions
and increase working capital investments. With continuing
development of the Group’s business, the balance of trade
receivables may further increase. If the full amount of our
trade receivables could not be collected in time or at all, the
Group would face the risk of working capital shortage.

In this respect, the Group will keep close monitoring of trade
receivable balances and strengthen communication with
customers in relation to settlement, so as to expedite timely
collection of trade receivables.
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CEO’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRRBOEREEENWED

Retaining of qualified and experienced staff

The Group's success and performance depends to a
significant extent on our high-calibre staff. The increase
in market competition will inevitably make the pursuit of
qualified and experienced staff to be increasingly fierce. If we
lose a significant number of members of our management
and/or technical staff and we cannot make timely and
appropriate replacement, the Group's results of operation
and profitability may be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group aims to provide competitive
salaries, welfare and incentive packages, establishing a fair
and competitive promotion system, so that our staff can
enjoy both favourable short-term economic benefits, and
share their long-term career pursuit with the development of
the Group.
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The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and
safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and practices
that emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal controls systems, stringent disclosure practices,
transparency and accountability. It is, in addition, committed
to continuously improving these practices and inculcating an
ethical corporate culture.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

THE BOARD
Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns
with solid financial fundamentals, so as to enhance long-term
total return for shareholders. Please refer to the Chairman'’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis for
discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group
and the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the basis on which the Group
will execute its strategy for delivering the objective of the
Group.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for the
long-term performance of the Company, is responsible
for directing and guiding the strategic objectives of the
Company and overseeing and monitoring managerial
performance of the business. Directors are charged with the
task of promoting the success of the Company and making
decisions in the best interests of the Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman (executive Director), Mr.
WANG Dongbin, determines and monitors group-wide
strategies and policies, annual budgets and business plans,
evaluates the performance of the Company, and supervises
the management of the Company (“Management”).
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Board composition

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board comprised
seven Directors, including the Chairman, Mr. WANG
Dongbin (executive Director), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
WU Zhanjiang (executive Director), the Executive President,
Mr. WU Hongyuan (executive Director) and Mr. LI Kangying
(executive Director) and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"), namely, Mr. NG Kong Fat, Mr. HAN Bin
and Mr. WANG Peng.

With effect from 1 June 2019, Mr. WU Zhanjiang has been
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Mr. WU Hongyuan has been re-designated from the post
of Chief Executive Officer of the Company to the Executive
President of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Accordingly, the Board appointment has been, and
will continue to be, made based on merit that complements
and expands the skills, experience and expertise of the Board
as a whole, taking into account age, professional experience
and qualifications, cultural and educational background, and
any other factors that the Board might consider relevant and
applicable from time to time towards achieving a diverse
Board.

The Board diversity policy is available on the website of the
Company (www.oneforce.com.cn). The Board will review
and monitor from time to time the implementation of the
policy to ensure its effectiveness and application.
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Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 6 to
10 and on the website of the Company. A list setting out the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the Directors, and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the
INEDs of the Company and considers all of them to be
independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the
absence of involvement in the day-to-day management of
the Company; and (iii) the absence of any relationships or
circumstances which would interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgment. Throughout the year ended 31
March 2020, the number of INEDs on the Board meets the
one-third requirement under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board had
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, including but not limited to the compliance and
disclosures on the Listing Rules, accounting policies and
relevant regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended 31
March 2020, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the compliance of the
Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report and the internal control
system of the Group.
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Chairman and executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the role of the
Chairman was separate from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities reinforced the
independence and accountability of these Directors.

The position of Chairman, held by Mr. WANG Dongbin,
is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts in
the best interests of the Group and that Board meetings
are planned and conducted effectively. The Chairman is
responsible for setting the agenda for each Board meeting,
taking into account, where appropriate, matters proposed
by Directors and the Company Secretary. With the support
of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues discussed at Board meetings and provided
with adequate and accurate information in a timely manner.
The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively
encourages Directors to voice their opinion and be fully
engaged in the affairs of the Board so as to contribute to
the effective functioning of the Board. The Board, under the
leadership of the Chairman, has adopted sound corporate
governance practices and procedures and taken appropriate
steps to promote effective communication and ongoing
engagement with shareholders and other stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the position of
Chief Executive Officer, held by Mr. WU Zhanjiang (for the
period from 1 June 2019 to 31 March 2020) and Mr. WU
Hongyuan (for the period from 1 April 2019 to 1 June 2019),
was responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
attending to the formulation and successful implementation
of Group policies and assuming full accountability to the
Board for all Group operations.

Acting as the principal manager of the businesses of the
Group, the Chief Executive Officer attends to developing
strategic operating plans that reflect the long-term objectives
and priorities established by the Board and is directly
responsible for maintaining the operational performance
of the Group. Working with the Chief Financial Officer
and the Management, the Chief Executive Officer presents
annual budgets to the Board for consideration and approval,
and ensures that the Board is fully apprised of the funding
requirements of the businesses of the Group. With the
assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive
Officer sees to it that the funding requirements of the
businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial performance of the businesses against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action if necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective executive management team to
support him in his role.
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Board process

In accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules, the Board will meet regularly, and at least four times
a year with meeting dates scheduled prior to the relevant
year. Between scheduled meetings, senior management
of the Group provides to Directors, on a regular basis,
quarterly updates and other information with respect to
the performance, and business activities and development
of the Group. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020,
Directors have participated in the deliberation and approval
of routine and operational matters of the Company by way
of written resolutions and/or meetings with supporting
explanatory materials, supplemented by additional verbal
and/or written information from the Company Secretary
or other executives, if any, and as and when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiaries
are provided to the Directors as appropriate. Whenever
warranted, additional Board meetings are held. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors and they are at liberty to
propose appropriate matters for inclusion in Board agendas.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
receive written notice of the meeting generally about 14 days
in advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than three days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
if any, Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, a Director would abstain from voting on
resolutions approving any contract, transaction, arrangement
in which he or she or any of his or her close associates is
materially interested in, and such Director is not counted for
quorum determination purposes.
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The Company held four Board meetings and one annual
general meeting held on 18 September 2019 during the year
ended 31 March 2020 with overall attendance of 100%. The
attendance record is set out below:

betbey Bt ik ¥ | IR L.l - B Am {

——

RABIREE2020F3A31HIEFERERTT
MAXEESEHLN2019F9 A18HE1T
—ABERRAFRE  EENBELREXAS
100% ° HfERCEREFNIT ¢

Board meetings

attended/
eligible to  Attendance at
attend 2019 AGM
EZEgglR
HERE HE
EERHE 2019 R R
=N BERE
Executive Directors HITES
WANG Dongbin (Chairman) TERE(EE) 4/4 v
WU Zhanjiang (Note 1) REOT (B7E1) 4/4 v
WU Hongyuan (Note 2) SACH (1at2) 4/4 -
LI Kangying TR 4/4 v
INEDs BYFHTES
NG Kong Fat RN 4/4 -
HAN Bin (217 4/4 -
WANG Peng i 4/4 -

Note 1: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Chairman had
regular meetings with executive Directors and met with
INEDs without the presence of executive Directors. The INEDs
freely provide their independent views to the Board.

Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company, or in the case of an additional
appointment, until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting. All Directors are subject
to retirement from office by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at annual general meetings at least about once
every three years. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election
and re-election of retiring Directors at general meetings is
dealt with by separate individual resolutions. In addition,
each of the INEDs entered into a letter of appointment
for an initial term ending on 31 March of the year of their
appointments which contracts are automatically renewed
for successive 12-month periods, subject to re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association.
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No Director has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable by the Company within one year and
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as
Director in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
procedures for such proposal are posted on the website of
the Company.

Training and commitment

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive a package
of orientation materials on the Group and are provided with
a comprehensive induction to the businesses of the Group by
the Management.

The Company arranges and provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD") training such as seminars and relevant
reading materials to Directors to ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. In
addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions
(including delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also
counts toward CPD training.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with
details of the CPD training undertaken by them from
time to time. Based on the details so provided, the CPD
training undertaken by the Directors as of 31 March 2020 is
summarised as follows:

EEATRKAARRRBESAELIFES
RUEREENFEES  c BEESRENE
¥l BEFENEZE2020F3 431 BETHE
EEEERESEMNOT

Areas
EXEHE
Legal and Corporate Group Business/
Regulatory Governance Directors’ Duties
wEEK
EERER EHER EEHE
Executive Directors BITES

WANG, Dongbin (Chairman) F 338t (£ /&) 4 v 4
WU Zhanjiang (Note 1) REVI(K7aE1) 4 4 v
WU, Hongyuan (Note 2) RACH (H17E2) v 4 v
LI Kangying TR 4 v 4

INEDs BYFHITES
NG, Kong Fat RE v 4 v
HAN, Bin il v 4 v
WANG, Peng S v/ v/ v

Note 1: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as executive Director on 24
July 2018 and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

During the year ended 31 March 2020, all Directors have
complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code to
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by attending
seminars, in-house briefings or reading materials.

All Directors have confirmed that they have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. In addition,
Directors disclose to the Company in a timely manner their
other commitments, if any, such as directorships in other
public companies and major appointments as well as update
the Company on any subsequent changes.

Directors are continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In
response to specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code in their
securities transactions during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Board committees

The Board is supported by three permanent board
committees: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, details of which
are described later in this report. The terms of reference for
these Committees, which have been adopted by the Board,
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Other board committees are established by the
Board as and when warranted to take charge of specific
tasks.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and timely preparation of and dissemination to
Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and papers.
Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Board Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by
any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committee members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments of relevance
to the Group and that it takes these developments into
consideration when making decisions for the Group. From
time to time, she organises seminars on specific topics of
importance and interest and disseminates reference materials
to Directors for their information.
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The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
compliance of the Group with all obligations of the Listing
Rules and Takeovers Code, including the preparation,
publication and despatch of annual reports and interim
reports within the time limits laid down in the Listing Rules,
the timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on connected transactions, notifiable transactions, price-
sensitive/inside information and Directors’ obligation for
disclosure of interests and dealings in securities of the
Company, to ensure that the standards and disclosures
requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws,
rules and regulations are complied with and, where required,
reported in the interim and annual reports of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman, all members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.
Ms. YUEN Wing Yan Winnie (“Ms. YUEN") was the
Company Secretary of the Company since 1 April 2019 and
she resigned on 22 November 2019. Ms. LAU Jeanie (“Ms.
LAU") has been appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 22 November 2019. Each of Ms. YUEN
and Ms. LAU are nominees of the external professional
service providers appointed to act as the Company Secretary
of the Company in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The appointment of each of Ms. YUEN and Ms. LAU as a
Company Secretary of the Company during the relevant
period has been nominated by Tricor Services Limited under
an engagement letter made between the Company and
Tricor Services Limited. Each of Ms. YUEN and Ms. LAU has
attended over 15 hours’ relevant seminars during the year
ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The primary contact person at the Company is Mr.
WANG Dongbin, Chairman and executive Director of the
Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner, within three months and two months
respectively of the year end and the half-year end.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. This should be read in
conjunction with but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 91 to 102 which acknowledges
the reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Group.

Annual report and financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of this annual report and financial statements of
the Company, ensuring that the financial statements give a
true and fair presentation in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of the Group.

Safeguarding assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to

prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.
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Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the
view that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who possess
the relevant business and financial management experience
and skills to understand financial statements and contribute
to the financial governance, internal controls and risk
management of the Company. It is chaired by Mr. NG Kong
Fat with Mr. HAN Bin and Mr. WANG Peng as members.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee
held two meetings with 100% attendance, where each
of Mr. NG Kong Fat, Mr. HAN Bin and Mr. WANG Peng
attended all the meeting.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit
Committee had met with the executive Directors and
management of the Company to review the interim and
annual results, the interim report and annual report and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance
and risk management matters of the Group and made
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
had met with the external auditor without the presence
of management and discussed about the interim financial
report, its annual audit of the consolidated financial
statements and key audit issues.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to oversee the relationship between the Company and its
external auditor, review the preliminary interim and annual
results, and interim and annual financial statements of the
Group, develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance including compliance with
statutory and Listing Rules requirements, review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the activities of internal audit,
engage independent legal and other advisers and conduct
investigations as it determines to be necessary.
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high degree of transparency, probity and accountability.
In line with this commitment, the Company expects and
encourages employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the
Group. In this regard, the Company has adopted procedures
for Reporting Possible Improprieties in Matters of Financial
Reporting, Internal Control or Other Matters, which is posted
on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee meets with the Chief Financial Officer
and the Management from time to time for purposes of
reviewing the interim and final results, the interim and annual
reports, and other financial, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations
of Management, the internal and external auditors of
the Group, with a view to ensuring that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance
with IFRS and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). It also meets at least two times a year with the
external auditor of the Group, KPMG, to consider the reports
of KPMG on the scope, strategy, progress and outcome of
its independent review of the interim financial report and
annual audit of the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings
with the external auditor, the Chief Financial Officer and
internal auditor separately without the presence of executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in maintaining
effective risk management and internal control systems.
It reviews the process by which the Group evaluates its
control environment and risk assessment process, and the
way in which business and control risks are managed. It
receives and considers the presentations of Management
in relation to the reviews on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions of the Group, as well as their training programmes
and budgets. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews in
conjunction with the Group's internal auditor the work plans
for its audits together with its resource requirements and
considers the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems in the business operations of the Group. Further,
it receives the reports from the Company Secretary on the
material litigation proceedings, if any, and compliance status
of the Group on regulatory requirements. These reviews and
reports are taken into consideration by the Audit Committee
when it makes its recommendation to the Board for approval

of the consolidated financial statements for the year.
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External auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process. Each year, the Audit Committee receives a
letter from the external auditor confirming its independence
and objectivity. It holds meetings with representatives of
the external auditor to consider the scope of its audit,
approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of its
external auditor for the various services listed below is as
follows:

. Audit services — include audit services provided
in connection with the audit of the consolidated
financial statements. All such services are to be
provided by the external auditor.

o Audit related services — include services that would
normally be provided by an external auditor but
not generally included in audit fees, for example,
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or processes,
and issuance of special audit reports for tax or other
purposes. The external auditor is to be invited to
undertake those services that must be undertaken, or
is otherwise best placed, to undertake in its capacity as
auditor.

° Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services, except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group engages the services of the external auditor
where it is best suited. All other significant taxation
related work is undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

. Other services — include, for example, financial due
diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations. The external
auditor is also permitted to assist Management
and the internal auditor with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.
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o General consulting services — the external auditor

is not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work.

External auditor’'s remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total fees to
KPMG amounted to approximately RMB2,654,000 and are
all for audit services.

RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND LEGAL
& REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of risk
management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance of the Group.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to inculcate
risk awareness across the business operations of the Group
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent
of risks that the Company is willing to accept in pursuit of
the strategic and business objectives of the Group. It also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems of
risk management and internal control on an ongoing basis
at least annually. Reporting and review processes include
review by the executive Directors and the Board and approval
of detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and
plans provided by management of the business operations,
review by the Board of actual results against budgets, review
by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of internal
audit and risk management functions, as well as regular
business reviews by the executive Directors and the executive
management team.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee regularly
reviews the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on
an ongoing basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
Company has complied throughout the year with all code
provisions of the CG Code.

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the business objectives of the Group, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement, errors,
losses, fraud or non-compliance.
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Risk management

Based on the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) model, the
Company establishes its Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework to support the delivery of the Group’s
business and strategic objectives. The framework facilitates a
systematic approach in identifying, assessing and managing
risks within the Group, be they of strategic, financial,
operational or compliance nature.

The Group’s risk management is a continuous process
integrated seamlessly into the day-to-day activities at
all levels of the Group companies. There is ongoing
communication between the executive management of the
Group and the business units on the current and emerging
risks, their plausible impact and mitigation measures so as to
institute additional controls and deploy appropriate insurance
instruments to minimise or transfer the impact of risks to
the Group’s business. In addition, the Group’s Directors
and officers are protected against potential personal
legal liabilities through the Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance.

In terms of formal risk review and reporting, the Company
adopts a “top-down and bottom-up” approach, involving
input from each major business unit as well as discussions
and reviews by the executive Directors. More specifically,
on a quarterly basis, each major business unit is responsible
for formally identifying the significant risks their business
faces, measuring them against a defined set of criteria, and
considering likelihood of occurrence and potential impact
to the business, whilst the executive Directors provide input
after taking a holistic assessment of all the significant risks
that the Group faces. Relevant risk information including key
mitigation measures and plans are recorded in a risk register
to facilitate the ongoing review and tracking of progress.

The composite Register, as part of the Risk Management
Report, is submitted to the Audit Committee for review on
a half-yearly basis. The Committee, on behalf of the Board,
reviews the nature and extent of the significant risks facing
the Group, and provides input as and where appropriate so as
to ensure effective risk management in place.

Pages 30 to 33 of this annual report provide a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group which
could affect the financial condition or results of operations of
the Group that differ materially from expected or historical
results.
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Internal control environment

Executive directors are appointed to the board of the
operating subsidiary of the Group for monitoring the
company, including attendance at board meetings, review
and approval of budgets and plans, and business strategies
with associated risks identified and setting of key business
performance targets. The executive management team
of each business unit is accountable for the conduct and
performance of their business within the agreed strategies.
The executive Directors monitor the performance and reviews
the risk profiles of the Group companies on an on-going
basis.

The internal control procedures of the Group include a
comprehensive system for reporting information to the
executive management team of each business unit and the
executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by both the executive management teams
and the executive Directors as part of the annual corporate
planning cycle. The annual budget is reviewed on a quarterly
basis to identify major variances and propose rectifications
measures. When setting budgets, management identifies,
evaluates and reports on the likelihood and potential
financial impact of significant business risks.

The executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business and holds monthly meetings with senior
management of business operations to review these reports,
business performance against budgets, forecasts, significant
business risk sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the
Chief Financial Officer and finance managers of the business
operations have monthly meetings to review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and to address
accounting and finance related matters.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system
for its subsidiary operations and the finance department
oversees the investment and lending activities of the Group.
Treasury reports on cash and liquid investments, borrowings
and movements thereof are distributed monthly.
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The Group has established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. Operating expenditures
are subject to overall budget control and are controlled
within each business with approval levels set by reference
to the level of responsibility of each executive and officer.
Capital expenditures are subject to overall control within
the annual budget review and approval process, and more
specific control and approval prior to commitment by the
executive Directors are required for unbudgeted expenditures
and material expenditures within the approved budget.
Quarterly reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also reviewed.

In terms of formal review of the internal control system of the
Group, an internal control self-assessment process is in place,
requiring senior management of each major business unit to
review, evaluate and declare the effectiveness of the internal
controls over the operations and devise action plans to
address the issues, if any. These assessment results, together
with the Risk Management Report as mentioned earlier and
the independent assessments by the auditors, form part
of the bases on which the Audit Committee formulate its
opinion on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The investor relation and compliance department
has the responsibility of safeguarding the legal interests of
the Group. It monitors the day-to-day legal affairs of the
Group, including preparing, reviewing and approving all
legal and corporate secretarial documentation of Group
companies, working in conjunction with finance, corporate
secretarial and business unit personnel on the review and
co-ordination process, and advising the Management of
legal and commercial issues of concern. In addition, the
investor relation and compliance department is responsible
for overseeing regulatory compliance matters of all Group
companies. It analyses and monitors the regulatory
frameworks within which the Group operates, including
reviewing applicable laws and regulations and preparing
and submitting response or filings with relevant regulatory
and/or government authorities on regulatory issues and
consultations. In addition, the department prepares and
updates internal policies and conducts tailor-made training
sessions where necessary so as to strengthen the internal
controls and compliance procedures of the Group.
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The investor relation and compliance department reports
to the Board on all material legal, regulatory and corporate
secretarial matters and it proposes to the Board for the
engagement of external legal advisors, ensuring the requisite
professional standards are adhered to as well as the most
cost effective services are rendered. Further, investor relation
and compliance department organises and holds continuing
education seminars/conferences on legal and regulatory
matters of relevance to the Group for Directors and the
Management.

On the listed company level, the Group is subject to the
Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Buy-backs, the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the SFO. The investor relation and compliance
department is vigilant with the legal requirements under
these statutes, rules and regulations.

Code of ethics and handling of inside information

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical, personal
and professional standards of the Directors and employees
of the Group. In addition to the various policies adopted
and implemented by the Group imposing requirements
on Directors and employees to conduct themselves in
compliance with applicable laws, rule and regulations,
every employee is required to undertake to adhere to
the Code of Ethics, and is expected to meet the highest
standards of behaviour including avoiding conflict of interest,
discrimination or harassment and bribery and corruption.
Employees are required to report any non-compliance with
the Code of Ethics to the Management.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating
inside information in compliance with the SFO, additional
procedures, including

o pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the
Company by designated members of Management,

o notification of regular blackout period and securities
dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and
employees, and

o identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis,

have also been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.
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Internal audit

The internal auditor, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee, provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal controls systems in the business operations of the
Group. By applying risk assessment methodology and taking
into account the dynamics of the activities of the Group,
internal audit devises its annual audit plan which is reviewed
by the Audit Committee, and continually reassessed during
the year to ensure that adequate resources are deployed
and the objectives of the plan are met. Internal audit is
responsible for assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, including reviewing the
continuing connected transactions of the Company and
whether adequate internal control procedures are in place to
monitor such transactions, formulating an impartial opinion
on the systems, and reporting its findings to the Audit
Committee, the executive Directors and the Management
concerned as well as following up on the issues to ensure
that they are satisfactorily resolved. In addition, internal audit
maintains a regular dialogue with the external auditor so that
the parties are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scope of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of work performed
by internal audit includes financial, IT, operations, and
regulatory compliance reviews, recurring and surprise audits,
fraud investigations, as well as productivity efficiency reviews.

Reports from the external auditor on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters are presented to the
internal auditor and, as appropriate, to the Chief Financial
Officer. These reports are reviewed and appropriate actions
are taken.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and is satisfied that
such systems are effective and adequate. In addition, it has
reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function of the Group,
and their training programmes and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee comprised three members with expertise in
management and personnel emoluments. The Committee
was chaired by Mr. HAN Bin (as INED), with Mr. WANG
Dongbin (as executive Director), and Mr. NG Kong Fat (as
INED) as members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and
develop the Group’s policy on remuneration for its Directors
(including Executive Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts
and retains the Directors needed to manage the Company
and the Group effectively. Directors do not participate in
decisions regarding their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Group in the
administration of a fair and transparent procedure for
setting remuneration policies for all Directors and senior
management of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings with 100% attendance,
where each of Mr. HAN Bin, Mr. WANG Dongbin and Mr.
NG Kong Fat attended all the meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information on market
data (including economic indicators, statistics and the
Remuneration Bulletin), the business activities and human
resources issues, and headcount and staff costs of the
Group. It reviewed and considered the annual directors’
emoluments for executive Directors and directors’ fee for
each of the INEDs and made recommendation to the Board.
It has also reviewed the remuneration package in relation to
the appointment of Mr. WU Zhanjiang as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and the re-designation of Mr. WU
Hongyuan as Executive President of the Company, both
with effect from 1 June 2019. Prior to the Year end, the
Committee reviewed and approved the year end bonus and
remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
executives of the Group for the coming year. The executive
Director do not participate in the determination of his own
remuneration.
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Remuneration policy

The remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Group is determined with reference to their expertise and
experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from
other comparative companies and prevailing market
conditions. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group and the individual’s performance.

Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration

Details of emoluments paid to each Director the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out below:

I BOR

ERESREEABNFHRRREETE
BERRER AKRBEARGHRRAMEF - A
K2EZEEMAILL AR FHHEERE RIS
BERETE - EFHE TR EIRANEE KA
ARIRMETE RIEAL LT

ESHSREBEAETMH

REZE2020F3A31HILFESNFRES
MBS FBT -

Basic salaries, Retirement
Director's allowances scheme  Share-based Total
fees and BIK Bonuses  contributions payments  Emoluments
2558 DRGRER
B2 RERENAR A SR | ISEA aHe
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARBTR  ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Executive Directors HTES

WANG, Dongbin TR 285 439 - 39 - 763
WU, Zhanjiang (Note 1) RET(H##1) 107 646 - 39 - 792
WU, Hongyuan (Note 2) k(22 107 709 - 39 - 855
LI, Kangying EE 285 - - - - 285

INEDs BukHiTEs
NG, Kong Fat Rk 107 - - - 48 155
HAN, Bin i 107 - - - 48 155
WANG, Peng T 107 - - - 48 155
Total @t 1,105 1,794 - 17 144 3,160

Note 1: Mr. WU Zhangjiang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019
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The remuneration to the members of senior management by
bands for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

AEZE20206F3A31HILEE - SREEA
B EBNFBSESY T

Number of
Individuals
Remuneration Bands M EE A
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 175702 1,000,000/ 7T 2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the
CG Code on 5 February 2018. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, one of whom is an executive
Director, namely Mr. WANG Dongbin (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and the other two members are
Mr. HAN Bin (as INED) and Mr. WANG Peng (as INED).

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii)
assessing the independence of the INEDs; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

The nomination policy sets out the relevant selection criteria
and nomination procedures.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
following factors would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee, including but not limited to:

(a) reputation for integrity and accomplishment and
experience in the financial services industry, in
particular, in the securities, commodities and future
markets;

(b) commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(©) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited

to gender, age, cultural and educational background
and ethnicity, etc..
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When a vacancy arises under any circumstance, the
Nominating Committee, in consultation with the Board, will
determine the selection criteria and select candidates with
the appropriate expertise and experience for the position in
such circumstance. For proposing candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration
and recommendation. A circular setting out information
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations of the proposed candidates will be sent to the
shareholders. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting. The candidates are
assessed based on objective criteria approved by the Board
such as integrity, independent mindedness, possession of the
relevant skills, ability to commit the time and effort to carry
out his responsibilities.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets
out, among others, a number of aspects of board diversity
in reviewing and accessing the board composition and
nomination of directors, as applicable.

In assessing the optimum composition of the Board, the
Nominating Committee would take into account various
aspects set out in its terms of references and the board
diversity policy of the Company, including but not limited
to skills, experience, knowledge, expertise, culture,
independence, age and gender, the existing and future
strategic needs of the Company.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, region and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors.
These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into
account diversity. The Nomination Committee will report
annually (if it is necessary) in the corporate governance
report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The Board comprises a balanced and well diversified
members of different age, cultural background and ethnicity.
They provide the Board with the necessary experience and
expertise to direct and lead the Group.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings with 100% attendance,
where each of Mr. WANG Dongbin, Mr. HAN Bin and Mr.
WANG Peng attended all the meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination
Committee members (i) reviewed and considered that the
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board are
appropriate; (ii) assessed the independence of INEDs; (iii)
recommended the re-appointments of Directors, and (iv)
recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr. WU
Zhanjiang as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
1 June 2019 and the re-designation of Mr. WU Hongyuan as
Executive President of the Company on 1 June 2019.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Founding Shareholders gave a non-competition
undertaking in favour of the Company (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”). Each of the Founding Shareholders has
undertaken under the Non-competition Undertaking that
it/he shall provide to the Company and the Directors from
time to time (including the INEDs) with all information
necessary for the annual review by the INEDs with regard to
compliance of the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking
by the Founding Shareholders and the enforcement of
the Non-competition Undertaking. Each of the Founding
Shareholders has confirmed compliance with the terms of
the Non-competition Undertaking and that during the year
review, there was no matter which required to be deliberated
by the Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement
of the Non-competition Undertaking. The Board comprising
all the INEDs is of the view that such Founding Shareholders
have been in compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking in favour of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to
be one of the main objectives. Stable dividend payment to
shareholders is the primary objective of the Company. The
basic policy is to pay interim and final dividends in each
financial year.
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The declaration of dividend is subject to the Board's
discretion, where the Board takes into various factors into
account when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends, including but not limited to:

- liquidity position of the Company;

- shareholders’ interests;

- financial results;

- capital requirements; and

- general business conditions and strategies, etc..
The Board will not declare any dividend(s) where:

- there are reasonable grounds for believing that the
Company is or would be, after a dividend payment,
unable to pay its liabilities or discharge its obligations
as and when they become due;

- pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is
insolvent or bankrupt or where, as a result of paying
dividends, the Company would be rendered insolvent
or bankrupt; or

- there is any other case set forth by any law.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community throughout
the year. The Group is committed to enhancing investor
engagement and communications. Through the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Investor
Relations Department and the Corporate Secretarial team,
the Group responds to requests for information and queries
from the investment community including shareholders,
analysts and the media through regular briefing meetings,
announcements, conference calls and presentations. A policy
on shareholders’ communication, which is available on the
website of the Company, has been adopted and is subject
to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. The Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Moreover, additional
information on the Group is available to shareholders and
stakeholders through the Investor Relations page on the
website of the Company.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings
of the Company. Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of
Association, any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company has statutory
rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders,
by sending the Board or the Company Secretary at the
principal place of business a written request for such general
meetings, signed by the shareholders concerned together
with the proposed agenda items and such meeting shall be
held within two months of the deposit of such requisition.

All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided
on a poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary
and scrutinised by the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the
Company. The results of the poll are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. In
addition, regular updated financial, business and other
information on the Group is made available on the website
of the Company for shareholders and stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company held
one general meeting. Separate resolutions were proposed at
the respective general meeting on each substantive issue and
the percentage of votes cast in favour of such resolutions
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 September 2019. All resolutions put to shareholders at
the AGM were passed. The results of the voting by poll were
published on the websites of the Company and HKEx.
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During the year under review, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to
date version of the Company’s Articles of Association is
also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Other corporate information relating to the Company is set
out in the “Corporate Information-Investor Calendar” section
of this annual report. This includes, among others, dates for
key corporate events for 2020.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts
to promote transparency and foster investor relationship.
Enquiries, comments and suggestions to the Board or the
Company are welcome and can be addressed to the Investor
Relations Manager or the Company Secretary by mail to

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

or by e-mail at
investors_media@oneforce.com.cn

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of its businesses and the communities in which it
conducts business. It has adopted a proactive approach to
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") responsibility
and has established a working group comprising
representatives from key departments of the Company to
promote the ESG initiatives and activities of the Group and
continually enhance the Group's ESG efforts. The ESG Report
of the Group is set out on pages 62 to 71 of this annual
report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
provides an annual update of sustainability performance in
respect of the Software and solution, Technical Services and
sale of product business of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2020. It has been updated to reflect the interest
of various stakeholders. Additional material quantitative
data, detailed ESG requirement as well as policies and
programmes have been included to illustrate the main
initiatives implemented by the Group. This report is prepared
in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules, ESG Reporting Guide, issued by the Stock Exchange in
2015 and should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report section of this annual report.

Approach to ESG Strategy and Reporting

The approach to ESG seeks for alignment with the long-term
strategic development of the Group and enhancement of
shareholder value. Key issues are identified, prioritised and
addressed in a way that demonstrates transparency and
accountability.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group acknowledges
the importance of sound ESG practices in its daily operations.
The Board and the senior management provide strategic
direction, establish sustainability policy and objectives,
oversee corporate governance matters and monitor progress.

All departments formulate and translate policy into action,
while facilitating exchange of best practices throughout
group companies. They build and incorporate such initiatives
into operations and processes. They also collect and
analyse data, evaluate performance and report major issues
periodically.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment

The Group maintains on-going dialogue with key
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, customers,
suppliers, local communities, professional institutions, non-
government organisations and authorities, etc. The Group
regularly collects views from its stakeholders through a
variety of channels, such as meetings, and workshops.

ESG compliance and how the Group benefits the community
are among stakeholders’ key interests. Important aspects
vary and range from sourcing practices to environmental
emissions to employment and operating practices, as well
as community involvement. Material aspects identified are
reviewed periodically and the Board is updated as and when
appropriate.

The six sections set out in this report summarise the Group’s
commitments to its employees, customers and supply chain,
as well as to anti-corruption, the environment and service
to the community. Key initiatives and activities have been
included in each section to demonstrate and highlight the
efforts in enhancing long-term value for stakeholders.
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COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES
Recruiting, engaging and retaining talent

Employees represent a precious asset, and career
opportunities are made available to loyal and industrious
staff members as the Group expands.

As of 31 March 2020 the Group employed 115 full-time staff
members and they all Chinese citizens from mainland China.
It is committed to complying with the employment associated
guidelines and regulations, including laws prohibiting child
and forced labour. Every aspect of employment is subject to
a stringent internal review process involving a well-defined
monitoring procedure to verify a candidate’s personal
information so as to prevent misrepresentation and any
form of forced labour. An employment contract comes
complete with easily-understood terms and conditions, and
each individual is well briefed before being employed. The
code of ethics of the Group requires staff to comply with
applicable government and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies
and runs programmes to ensure employees are hired,
promoted and assigned on the basis of skill and ability.
The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
positive, diverse, respectful and safe working environment,
without discrimination or harassment. The selection process
affords equal opportunities to all persons subscribing to
the commitment to excellence and is carried out regardless
of gender or religious belief. This non-discrimination policy
continues throughout a staff member’s career and applies
to all employment matters including placement, transfer,
promotion and compensation.
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Investing in training and development

Heavy emphasis on career development manifests itself as a
variety of workshops and on-the-job training. Comprehensive
and structured programmes are designed to familiarise new
staff members with the industry. The Group also extends
tailored programmes to certain educational institutions
to help identify potential employment candidates and
allow those interested to find out more about a career
development path.

In November 2012, the Group entered into a cooperation
framework agreement with North China Electric Power
University (“CEPU") and has been cooperating with CEPU to
perform research and development activities in the electric
power industry. Currently, the Group’s cooperation with
CEPU is mainly focusing on demand side management, cloud
computing in smart energy industry and smart charging
management software, etc..

Educational support is available to employees in the form of
job-related courses provided by internal/external institutions.
Employees are encouraged to take part in work-life balance
activities and community service. These include employee
outings, sports events and volunteering activities in the
community.

Promoting well-being, health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees and is committed to complying with all applicable
health and safety laws and regulations. Such considerations
are an important element of the design, operation and
maintenance of office facilities and the way our business is
conducted.

Employees are able to access health and safety information
posted on the intranet, which also offers hyperlinks to
external sites. A list of first aid helpers is maintained in
offices, along with information to help employees understand
how to handle health and safety issues.

Since February 2018, Along Grid has been granted the
ISO18001: Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification.
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Water management

The water consumption at the Group is minimal and there
has been no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations that has a significant impact relating to
employment and labour practices, or occupational health
and safety during the year. Neither did the Group identify
any incidents relating to hire of child or forced labour.

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS
Building trust through reliability and quality

The Group has built up long-term relationship with each
of the key customers (e.g. IMPG Group, SGCC and Tianjin
TEDA), which was primarily attributable to its consistent
emphasis on the quality of products and service offerings and
high customer satisfaction.

Improving customer experience

The Group maintains a comprehensive frontline customer
service network across main geographical areas covered by
business operation of our major customers, namely IMPG
Group, SGCC and CSG, so that feedback can be collected
and acted upon. The Group treats customer feedback with
due care and in a timely manner. Any customer complaints
are handled efficiently and investigated to identify and
rectify root causes. Records are kept as to how complaints
are handled and whether any improvements resulted, and
measures are in place to review outcomes. The Group
also fosters a culture of continuous improvement by
benchmarking and publishing service performance details
on a regular basis. Service levels are gauged according
to performance pledges, then reviewed by departments
periodically.

Protecting our customers

As an information technology related products and service
provider, the Group values customer data privacy to the
upmost importance and is committed to complying with data
privacy laws and regulations. The Group has developed a
robust system to control collection, as well as access to, and
updating, security and retention of customer data received.
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Since April 2018, Along Grid has been granted I1SO
27001: Certificate of Information Security Management
System Certification, which demonstrated our effort and
achievement in protecting customer data privacy and
security.

Protecting consumers and safeguarding their privacy are top
priorities. The Group distributes guidelines and handbooks,
and issues periodic reminders to customer-facing employees,
while running workshops to emphasise the importance of
protecting personal data.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws or regulations that has a significant
impact concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling or
privacy matters relating to products and services, or methods
of redress during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
Fair assessment of suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding relevant laws and
regulations. Purchasing and Business Partner Evaluation
Policies and various procedures provide direction and
guidelines on evaluation and engagement when dealing
with major business partners. This encompasses working
relationships with suppliers of goods and services to ensure
business is being conducted only with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities.

The Group adheres to industry best practices and conducts
fair and unbiased tender processes, where applicable, in
dealings with vendors. When selecting vendors and suppliers,
the Group takes factors into account such as quality of
products and services, past performance, financial standing,
capacity assessment and reputation including track records
in handling social and environmental matters. The Group
expects suppliers to observe the same environmental, social,
health and safety and governance considerations when
carrying out their own operating practices. Procurement
teams are trained to apply each and every aspect of these
policies and procedures when assessing suppliers, while
tendering procedures are always communicated carefully to
vendors, where applicable.
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Anti-corruption

An Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy sets out standards
of conduct all employees are required to follow. The Group
has also established procedures for reporting possible
improprieties relating to matters of financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The aim is to encourage
employees — and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to report any
suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the
Group. These procedures aim to provide reporting channels
and guidance, while reassuring “whistle-blowers” they will
be protected against any unfair treatment. Relevant cases
will be followed up independently by internal auditor and
reported to the Audit Committee and senior management.

The Group organises periodic corporate governance seminars
and training on anti-corruption measures and guidelines, as
well as sound operating practices and business ethics.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any of non-compliance with
laws or regulations that has a significant impact concerning
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering during the
year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
Energy use and carbon emissions

Our office building, IT equipment and infrastructure account
for most of our energy consumption. Environment-protection
policy of the Group details a commitment to minimise the
negative impact of business activities on the environment
and support protection initiatives.

The Group demonstrated a keen sense of minimising energy
consumption by adopting the optimal temperature set-point
of 24°C ~ 26°C for office buildings and facilities.

The Group strived to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions
through enhancing energy efficiency and reducing energy
consumption across operations.

As of 31 March 2020, the Group has equipped with one
electric vehicle in its fleet of total four vehicles. In the next
five years, the Group will gradually upgrade the remaining
vehicles.
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In or around 2016, the Group launched a printer cartridge
recycle programme. Used cartridge were sent for refill or
recycling. So far, the Group has also achieved 100% use of
re-filled cartridge for printing.

As an active participant in the broad information technology
industry, the Group has been keeping abreast of new trends
and development. In particular, the Group encouraged
employees to take part in the Ant Forest initiative to reduce
carbon emission through mobile APP (Ali Pay) which convert
daily exercise statistics into carbon emission reduction
equivalent. For the year ended 31 March 2020, our
employees has achieved a total of 2,362 kg carbon emission
reduction through this initiative.

Since February 2018, Along Grid has been granted the
ISO14001: Certificate of Environment Management System
Certification.

Waste management

Our non-hazardous waste mainly consists of general office
waste. To ensure our waste disposal methods are in line with
local regulations, we engage professional cleaning service
providers and contractors to handle this waste.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that has a significant
impact concerning air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water or land, or generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR COMMUNITY

The Group engages in a wide range of philanthropic efforts
to benefit the community. Such initiatives include employee
volunteerism, education and health care. In line with sound
corporate governance practice, donations and contributions
are subject to internal compliance guidelines and controls in
order to safeguard stakeholder interests.

The Group has adopted a public engagement and donation
policy to encourage service to the community through staff
voluntary efforts and by way of cash and in-kind donations.
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Based on our cooperation framework agreement with NCPU,
the Group is also planning to offer internship opportunities
to students with appropriate background.

Since November 2017, Along Grid has been accredited as
a qualified employer that offers internship opportunities to
graduates from software and information service related
subjects in university in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei area. As of
31 March 2020, Along Grid has offered internship positions
to a number of candidates and also successfully assisted
them to secure job offers subsequently.

2020 Environmental Key Performance Indicators

Emissions
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Energy consumption BEIREFEE
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Paper consumption FRE
Paper (tonne) 4R ok (WA) 0.109
Paper recycled (tonne) AR [E] 5 (1R ) 0.109
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Water consumption ks
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Intensity (tonne/revenue) ZE (e UEs) Minimal 75 Notes 2 5
Waste management REYE IR
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Notes:

“tonnes Co, e” is the short form of tonnes carbon dioxide
equivalent.

Scope 1 emissions generated from petrol from fleet.

Scope 2 emissions generated from the electricity consumed by
office of the Group.

Rounded to the nearest tonne.

Attributable to knowledge-intense nature of business, the Group
did not general hazardous wastes or consume any packaging
materials in its normal course of operation. The Group also only
consumes a very limited amount of energy, paper and water
and the consumption intensity in respect of energy, paper and
Water, as well generation of waster are minimal.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As an information technology service provider, the Group is
dedicated to relevant technical research and application in
power information technology and smart city loT, providing
tailormade software and solutions, technical services and
hardware products to various types of energy companies,
government and corporate customers.

The principal activity of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out on page 196 to 197 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), comprising a discussion and analysis
of the Group's performance during the year, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred during the year ended 31 March 2020, as well as
an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group, are provided in the following sections:

o “Financial Review"” on page 20.

. “Chairman’s Statement”, “Business Review”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Group
Capital Resources and Liquidity” and “Key Financial
Information” on pages 11 to 30.

o “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 30 to
33.

o “Financial Risk Management” in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 217 to
222.
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o “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 34 to 61.

° Discussions on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, an account of the Group’s key
relationships with its stakeholders and the Group'’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 62 to 71.

All such discussions form part of this report.
GROUP PROFIT

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 103 to 104. The state of
affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 105 to 106 and note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report on page 226, respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

RESERVES

The reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 107 to 108 and
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium and
retained loss, amounted to approximately RMB141,851,000
(2019: approximately RMB141,393,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not
make any donation to charitable organisations (2019: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up
to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
WANG Dongbin (Chairman)
WU Zhanjiang (Note 1)

WU Hongyuan (Note 2)

LI Kangying

INEDs

NG Kong Fat
HAN Bin
WANG Peng

Note 1: Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 1 June 2019

Note 2: Mr. WU Hongyuan was re-designated as the Executive President
of the Company with effect from 1 June 2019

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. LI Kangying, Mr. HAN Bin and Mr. WANG
Peng shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM") and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has received written confirmation from all
INEDs regarding their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the INEDs to be
independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, to the best of
their knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were
not aware of any non-compliance by the Company with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors of the
Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty. Directors liability insurance is in place to protect
the Directors of the Company or of its subsidiaries against
any potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors. The relevant provisions in the Articles
of Association and the Directors liability insurance are in
force during the year ended 31 March 2020 and as of the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance,
to which the Company’s holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2020.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date
of this report, none of the Directors were interested in
any business apart from the Company’s business, which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had not entered into any connected
transaction during the year ended 31 March 2020 which
was required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. Related
party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2020 are disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board confirms that
the Company has complied with the applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company

BABALRBERS

AABREE2020F3 A31H IEFE AT E
RIS AEAZERIE ETRR T A ENREER
5 o REENEE2020F3A318 FFER
R MEEEE A TR SRR A I SRR 29
NFEE - EFEERAQRBRE ETHEL
FIUAZEBTERAEERE

ESRESTRAEBRA QT HHEAAMH
EEZRG - HERORES 2 ERE

RE

M20203A31H  EERARNAESITH
AERARRSET AR EE(FERFE
HREFEEMEXVED) 2 i - ARG, &
TT%?EF%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%?m%&ﬁ@fﬂﬂﬁﬂ%XV*B%7
N B8N B BME RN T KBt Ffr 2 ek M
KR (BIERIEES MPEERN 2 ZE KX
BEREERREHRE ZEEMAR) - &
HAERLRARBIREES M EEEF %352
BB EEFEzELM  SBREEESRIEM
CARRNA R ATZESTRBIT

RADRRE - HERDRES 2 BER K
B

AR EIR ) RAGBIR D Z 4 B

Approximate

% of
Number of shareholding
Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held ERE
= B0 REmttE BEROEE BMABE2E
WANG Dongbin Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000
F R FEE B
Beneficial owner 1,000,000@
EaEAA
61,000,000 12.07%
LI Kangying Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000@
PR Xy EE R
Beneficial owner 1,000,000@
EnEAA
61,000,000 12.07%

76 Annual Report 2020 OneForce Holdings Limited



bae &2 i

Directors’ Report

EEERE

PRy SR

Approximate

% of
Number of shareholding
Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held ERE
BS 513, RmitE KFERGEE BHBEIE
WU Zhanjiang Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000
REUT R EEER
Beneficial owner 1,000,000.004
BEnEAA
61,000,000 12.07%
WU Hongyuan Beneficial owner 1,200,000@ 0.237%
Rt BEmfAA
NG Kong Fat Beneficial owner 500,000@ 0.099%
Rz EnEAA
HAN Bin Beneficial owner 500,000@ 0.099%
1 BnEAA
WANG Peng Beneficial owner 500,000@ 0.099%
T EnEAA
Notes: FFE
1 These Shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned 1 ZER G B Smart EastiF B - ZARIHAER
by Mr. WANG Dongbin. MEEREHR -
2 These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly 2 ZE D B Main Wealth#F 6 - ZABIHEZ
owned by Mr. LI Kangying. MBEEEZEEE -
3 These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned 3 ZER M B Union Sino¥s B © % ARIARE
by Mr. WU Zhanjiang. IEEREER -
4 These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the 4 ZERMDIBEARARN2018F7 A30 A RIER

options granted by the Company on 30 July 2018 pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme adopted on 5 February 2018 (“Share
Option Scheme™”).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

FTERRREMATRELT RS KA
BAROPEENERZNAR

At 31 March 2020, the interests of substantial shareholders
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

MR2020%F3A31H  EERE (WIS EK
RABEETTHRABR)RARRRBRNDERIR
BRBER IS ISP E3361KBHFE 2 ERA
T ER 2 e AT

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the RG] 1EE R (57 2 4F &

Company
Approximate
% of
Number of shareholding
Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held BERE
(&S 55 R@tE BFERGOEE BYBEDL
XIONG Weigin Interest of spouse 61,000,000 12.07%
RRETE [iRZy
AN Ning Interest of spouse 61,000,000 12.07%
RE FoiBHEss
ZHANG Jianhua Interest of spouse 61,000,000 12.07%
REE FoiBHEss
Smart East Beneficial owner 60,000,000 11.87%
EREAA
Main Wealth Beneficial owner 60,000,000 11.87%
EREAA
Union Sino Beneficial owner 60,000,000® 11.87%
EREAA
Long Eagle BenechiaI owner 60,000,0007 11.87%
EREAA
CAO Wei Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000 11.87%
= Ry rEER
WANG lJiangping Interest of spouse 60,000,000® 11.87%
FIIF FoiBHEss
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Approximate

% of

Number of shareholding

Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held BERE

(& 5/ RatE FERGOHE BMABEDL

Chance Talent Beneficial owner 45,072,0009 8.92%

ERBEAAN

CCBI Investments Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,0009 8.92%
A E S

CCB International (Holdings) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 8.92%
FAREIRR (2R BIR AR R rEER

CCB Financial Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000© 8.92%
BITeRERAERAR A E S

CCB International Group Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 8.92%

Holdings Limited B

BT S E R AR AR XEEEE S

China Construction Bank Corporation  Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 8.92%
HEZRIRITIRNDBR A A XEEEE RS

Central Huijin Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 8.92%
TRECREFREMELDA] Ry rEER

Great Attain International Limited Beneficial owner 124,191,17700 24.58%

Notes:

BEaBmAAN

PRy A S

Ms. XIONG Weigin is the spouse of Mr. WANG Dongbin, an
executive director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms XIONG is
deemed to be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by Smart
East as mentioned in Note 4 and 1,000,000 underlying Shares
under the outstanding options granted by the Company to Mr.
WANG pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Ms. AN Ning is the spouse of Mr. LI Kangying, an executive
director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms. AN is deemed to
be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by Main Wealth as
mentioned in Note 5 and 1,000,000 underlying Shares under
the outstanding options granted by the Company to Mr. LI
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Ms. ZHANG Jianhua is the spouse of Mr. WU Zhanjiang, an
executive director of the Company. Under the SFO, Ms. ZHANG
is deemed to be interested in the 60,000,000 Shares held by
Union Sino as mentioned in Note 6 and 1,000,000 underlying
Shares under the outstanding options granted by the Company
to Mr. WU pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

These Shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned
by Mr. WANG Dongbin, an executive Director.

BT AARRRITESTRREEN
BeAE o IRIEFEF REAEGA - RRZTHRIE
REERE4ART It Smart Easti® A #960,000,000/%
Betn - ARARARIRBERET SR T L
A B 8 R 1T (5 A B AR 1E T /91,000,000 %
AR P A ER

TELZTBAARNTES TN EEENE
18 o IRIBEFEF R EED - X THRIER
FERESFTItMain Wealth#3 4 #760,000,0000%
&1 - ARARARIRBEREA SR TR
A ) 18 AR 1T B9 B AR FE TE T /91,000,000 A%
AR PR ER -
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Bo4® o ARIEFEF LB - REZTWRIE
A FERE6FT it Union Sino#3 A #960,000,0000%
&1+ ARAARIRIBERE SR TR 5%
AR & AR 1T B9 B IR TE T /91,000,000 %
RIS A RS o

ZERMDASmart EastiF B - ZARIAAR
AIITESTRBEEREHA -
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These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly
owned by Mr. LI Kangying, an executive Director.

These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned
by Mr. WU Zhanjiang, an executive Director.

These Shares were held by Long Eagle, which was wholly owned
by Mr. CAO Wei.

Ms. WANG lJiangping is the spouse of Mr. CAO Wei. Under the
SFO, Ms. WANG is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Long Eagle as mentioned in Note 7.

These Shares were held by Chance Talent. As at the date of this
report, China Construction Bank Corporation was owned by
Central Huijin Investment Limited as to approximately 57.31%.
CCB International Group Holdings Limited was wholly owned by
China Construction Bank Corporation. CCB Financial Holdings
Limited was wholly owned by CCB International Group Holdings
Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited was wholly owned
by CCB Financial Holdings Limited. CCBI Investments was wholly
owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited. Chance Talent
was wholly owned by CCBI Investments. Each of Central Huijin
Investment Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial
Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI
Investments is deemed to be interested in the Shares which
Chance Talent is interested in.

Great Attain International Limited is owned as to 25% by
each of Smart East, Long Eagle, Main Wealth and Union Sino
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2020, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register which is
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (”“Share
Option Scheme”) on 5 February 2018 for the purpose
of enabling the Group to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.
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(a)

Who may join

Our Directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any person belonging to any of the following classes
of participants, to take up options to subscribe for
Shares:

(@aa)  any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of our Company,
any of our subsidiaries or any entity (the
“Invested Entity”) in which our Group holds
an equity interest (“Eligible Employee”);

(bb) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of our
Company, any of our subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

(cc) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of our Group or any Invested Entity;

(dd)  any customer of any member of our Group or
any Invested Entity;

(ee)  any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support
to any member of our Group or any Invested
Entity;

(ff) any shareholder of any member of our Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of our Group
or any Invested Entity;

(gg) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of our Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(hh)  any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way
of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement and growth of our
Group,

(a)

AB8RAL
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and,

for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme,

the options may be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of participants. For the avoidance
of doubt, the grant of any options by our Company
for the subscription of Shares or other securities of
our Group to any person who falls within any of the
above classes of participants shall not, by itself, unless
our Directors otherwise determine, be construed as a
grant of option under the Share Option Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the above class of participants
to the grant of any option shall be determined by
our Directors from time to time on the basis of
our Directors’ option as to his contribution to the
development and growth of our Group.

Maximum number of Shares

(aa)

The maximum number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes adopted by
our Group shall not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of our Company from time to
time.

The total number of Shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of our Group) to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Shares
commence on the Main Board (the “General
Scheme Limit”) (i.e. 38,107,200 Shares,
representing 7.56% of the total issued Shares
as at the date of this annual report).

As at the date of this report, the maximum
number of Shares that may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme was 11,407,200
Shares, representing 2.26% of the total issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report.
Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue upon the exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme was 26,700,000, representing 5.30%
of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
annual report.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(co)

Subject to (aa) above but without prejudice to
(dd) below, our Company may seek approval
of our Shareholders in general meeting to
refresh the General Scheme Limit provided
that the total number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme
of our Group must not exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit and for the purpose
of calculating the refreshed limit, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of our Group) previously granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of our Group will not be
counted. The circular sent by our Company to
our Shareholders shall contain, among other
information, the information required under
Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to (aa) above and without prejudice
to (cc) above, our Company may seek
separate Shareholders’ approval in general
meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the refreshed
limit referred to in (cc) above to participants
specifically identified by our Company before
such approval is sought. In such event,
our Company must send a circular to our
Shareholders containing a general description
of the specified participants, the number and
terms of options to be granted, the purpose of
granting options to the specified participants
with an explanation as to how the terms of
the options serve such purpose and such other
information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of
the Listing Rules and the disclaimer required
under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of our Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of our Company for the time being
(the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular to
our Shareholders and our Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting of our Company with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
The number and terms (including the exercise price)
of options to be granted to such participant must
be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the date
of board meeting for proposing such further grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose
of calculating the exercise price under note (1) to Rule
17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

The exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the securities as stated in the
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and (ii) the
average closing price of the securities as stated in
the Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within
21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period to be determined and notified
by our Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined
by our Directors and stated in the offer of the grant
of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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f) Life of the Share Option Scheme f) B ERT S AV HARR
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective ERERTEIMNANEK 8201852 A
for a period of ten years commencing from 5 SHEFAHTF - AR HERE
February 2018, after which period no further options eI BB AR AE - BRI T G SHE
will be granted but the provisions of the Share Eabpra A ARS8 RE
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect Ao CERMARIERENME
in all other respects. In particular, all options granted AR sz A A R B IS ] B IR 1R
before the end of such period shall continue to be BRI RT B IS A AT 1 TfE - A
valid and exercisable after the end of such period ANipes BHHY - BB 2R FIss G HA
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option y=YAN:=
Scheme. As at the date of this report, the Share
Option Scheme has remaining life of approximately
eight years.
Particulars of share options outstanding under the HZE2020F3 831 B L FERIA KRR
Share Option Scheme at the beginning and at the R BRI N MR TEZBE
end of the year ended 31 March 2020 and share f&#EE - AN RZ B AR IR B AR A AT &)
options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under R 178 - EESHBAR R BB AR R
the Share Option Scheme during such period were as =/
follows:
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Price of share of the Company
BENEIANALEE KAARGER
Number of
Number of share options
share options held as at
held as at 31 March Exercise prior to
1 April 2019 2020 price Dateof the exercise
20198 R020F of share grant of date of
Date of grant of 4R1R Lapsed/ 3A31A  Exercise period of options  share options share options
Category of participants share options() BEERE Granted Exercised Cancelled ~ #AEME share options e ke Rt
SRAEH RHERERE 48 Bt i KN/ 48 BRAGEY k8 BAFRE ERERMM
HKS HKS HKS
AT A AT
Executive Directors®
G EL
- WANG Dongbin 1000000 - - 1000000 080 080 NA
-TRE TeH
- WU Hongyuan 1200000 - - 1200000 080 080 NA
- R ¥k
- liKangying 1000000 - - 1000000 080 080 NA
i TeH
-WU Zhanjang 1000000 - - 1000000 080 080 NA
= ¥k
INEDs 1500000 - - 1500000 1y 201910
BufanEze 30y 2018 31 December 2021
-G Kong Fat 18577308 500,000 - - 500000 0195771EE 080 080 NA
-R1% 1F12R318 ¥l
- HANBin 500,000 - - 500,000 080 080 NA
-8l TeH
- WANG Peng 500,000 - - 500,000 080 080 NA
-1k ¥k
Other employees of the Group®® 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000 080 080 A
AEEEfEE TeH
Advisers to the Group? £,000,000 - - 6,000,000 080 080 NA
AEEERY ¥k
Total 26,700,000 - - 26,700,000
At

2020

THERBRIT 85

PRy A S



Directors’ Report

EEERE

Notes:

Q) 20% of the share options granted was vested on 30 June 2019
and 30% and 50% of the share options granted shall vest on
each of 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021, respectively.

2) Vesting of the share options granted to independent non-
executive Directors and advisers to the Group is not conditional
upon satisfaction of any vesting conditions.

Vesting of the share options granted to executive Directors and
other employees of the Group is conditional upon satisfaction of
certain performance conditions applicable to relevant grantees.

(3) Do not include the executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG
Dongbin, Mr. WU Hongyuan, Mr. LI Kangying and Mr. WU
Zhanjiang.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme”) to (i) recognise and reward the contribution of
certain eligible participants to the growth and development
of the Group and to give incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme was adopted by the Board on 27
July 2018 (“Adoption Date”) and valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. The
aggregate number of the Shares underlying all grants made
during the term of the Share Award Scheme is limited to
3% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The maximum number of awarded shares granted to a
selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

On 27 August 2018 and 2 August 2019, the Board, based
on the recommendation of the remuneration committee
of the Board, resolved to provide a sum of HK$3.0 million
and HK$2.0 million respectively for the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme to purchase Shares from the market pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme. Further details of the Scheme
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27
July 2018, 27 August 2018 and 2 August 2019, respectively.

As of 31 March 2020, there were 8,512,000 Shares held in
trust by the trustee under the Share Award Scheme. As of 31
31 March 2020, no Share has been awarded by the Board to
any eligible participant of the Share Award Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company does not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding in the
Company'’s Share.

SHARES/DEBENTURES ISSUED

No shares or debentures of the Company were issued during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2020 were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had
completed the buy-back of 1,336,000 ordinary shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange. As at the date of this
report, all the aforesaid share of the Company bought back
had been cancelled. The details of the aforesaid buy-back of
the shares of the Company are as follows:

BE - HESBEE ELmES

HZE2020F3A3MHIEFE » ARRIRER
Fir5e A% 81 8% 1,336,000 I AN A 7] 3@ A% © &
ERBEHR - LA AR T TREHRGD
HEEHE - Pl ARREERDBFEB D
T

Approximate

Number aggregate

of shares Highest Lowest purchase

Month of buy-back bought back price price price
e

=88 A 5 =g R 2 BEER BIEER BEER
HK$ HK$ HK$

October 2019 2019104 52,000 0.510 0.495 26,406
December 2019 2019512 A 116,000 0.490 0.480 56,500
January 2020 2020F1 A 20,000 0.485 0.475 9,640
March 2020 202043 A 1,148,000 0.370 0.330 402,360
Total HET 1,336,000 494,906

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2020.

The Board considers that the shares of the Company have
been trading at a level which does not reflect the Company’s
underlying value and that it represents a good opportunity
for the Company to repurchase shares. The Board believes
the above share repurchase and the subsequent cancellation
of the repurchased shares could enhance the value of the
shares thereby improving the return to the Shareholders.
In addition, the Board believes that the share repurchase
reflects the Company’s confidence in its long term business
prospects and would ultimately benefit the Company and is
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentages of
revenue attributable to major customers of the Group were as
follows:

IREFRHER

REZE20206F3A31HILFE - AEBEKHE
FEREPZWSZMAEERZ ZED LI
™

Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

{EAREE RS

HEEDL

The largest customer B-RAEF 39.45%
Five largest customers combined A AREPEF 82.28%

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentages of
purchases attributable to the major suppliers of the Group
were as follows:

REZE2020F3A31HILFE » AEERE
ZHERRBEOAEERESRE 28 oW
T :

Percentage of
total purchases
of the Group

R EERE

BEEDL

The largest supplier B A ER 34.43%
Five largest suppliers combined AT AR ERE AR 62.83%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had
any interest in the major customers and/or suppliers noted
above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public
at all times throughout the period from the Listing Date to
31 March 2020 as required under the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

MEES  HETBBARTABRR(GLE
EMA - EREARREEITRARES% )R
LRTEREP R, HHEET R AR o
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 16
September 2020. Shareholders of the Company should
refer to the details regarding the AGM in the circular to be
despatched by the Company and the notice of meeting and
form of proxy accompanying therewith.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 11 September 2020 to Wednesday, 16
September 2020, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10 September 2020 (Hong
Kong time), being the last registration date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020 have been audited by
KPMG Certified Public Accountants who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

There has been no changes in the auditors of the Company
in the proceeding three years.

By order of the Board
OneForce Holdings Limited
WANG Dongbin

Chairman

Beijing, China, 19 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁ¢

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
OneForce Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 229,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2020 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code") together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

T | e ol L | T T TR e, )

BARETEE

P ET EAEERBERMANEXHE - BR
HAERAWBREANEARD/EENS
B o U FREAERMBABBE UK
KEEABREETRIEN - RAITELE
LEREHEFBOER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

BRI RTER

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRRIRE B IRAN 208 2 51 B R it4
The Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRESHEEZBENS

The Group’s business involves entering into
contractual relationships with customers to provide a
range of services, including the provision of design,
implementation, enhancement and upgrades of
software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and other distribution
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

BEEENEB S REZRFIIL AR - ARMHE—
RIRT - BREATEARLNME(THE])EHR
FCEE A RIRRET ~ BT » IR IR R S 1R 4
B ARA

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue is
derived from long — term contracts, most of which
are fixed price contracts.
EEENAET»WERERMELH - AR REH A
EEBEEH o

The recognition of revenue on long-term contracts
is based on the stage of completion of work
performed on a contract at the reporting date. The
recognition of revenue for an incomplete project is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
contract as well as the work performed to date.
ROASHNKR DERRE BRRARSHET T
TERY TERK B BRI R o RIEAKIR B B FERREUR R
BRIMEFTRER - URIZSBHETIER o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
contract revenue included the following:

AR MR EERNBZEFERATEA

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
recognition of contract revenue, including
the controls over recording work done,
invoicing and cash receipts;

. B i N m Ak 1 6 A Wb 2 e R 0 T E R BRIE
BVRRET ~ UTREERRIL - BRETHE
SERCIAE » BRI WEREIEH

o selecting a sample of contracts, using a
variety of quantitative and qualitative criteria,
and performing the following procedures for
each contract selected:

. PEEHER - @A TRNEE REMFRE
RBtPTEEE S IRE N EHIA TIZF -

- inspecting key terms, including
pricing, deliverables, timetable and
milestones, which were set out in
the contracts and inquiring of the
relevant project managers about key
aspects of the contract, including the
estimated total contract costs, key
project risks, contingencies and billing
schedules;

- BEES ORI RERE 2T - FEE
R ERMEFZBRRRAEREIER K
BEAGANEIZHIHE - 2FEGHTE
BRI FEEERR  ARE
R BRI
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of contract revenue

BRKEER

HEETEE(E)

Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BB B RIS M T 2(v )y & 5B K A it 4
The Key Audit Matter
BREBAEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMRESAPEEZBENT L

Forecasting the outcome of a contract involves the
exercise of significant management judgement in
relation to estimating the total costs for individual
contracts. These assumptions include estimating
future labour costs required to complete the contract
based on the customised specifications of individual
contract. Errors in contract forecasts could result in
a material variance in the amount of profit or loss
recognised to date and therefore also in the current
period.

BRENERS RERE S G B[S OEKAE
HEBEAHE - ELRREEBEENE[ES LR E SR
RIRMEET TR A KPR EIARRALRR  &4FRA
HERAIREBBUE S RN BR SR FEEAER
WM ERNRNBRETHE -

We identified the recognition of contract revenue
as a key audit matter because contract revenue
accounts for a significant proportion of the
Group’s revenue and because the recognition of
contract revenue involves a significant degree of
management judgement in assessing factors which
can be inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.

B AR ﬁ;%ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁ RRBE 7

Walh BERBEWREMEALD - BEHOKEER
ﬁ&ﬁﬁTuf&lﬁK%iﬁ%l%%ﬁﬁiﬁ

EEEHEHY A REFHEEEER RIRBENIEN

challenging the underlying
judgements of senior operational and
financial management personnel in
their estimations of total estimated
contract costs and estimated costs to
complete the contract where it was
still in progress at the reporting date
by comparing their estimates with
relevant underlying documentation,
including suppliers’ quotations and
agreed contracts;
BRESREENIMBERASNMG
HEEEX M (REEEENRER
BEEH)LLE - B HEEMT A
A KPR R SER R ¥ B BT
TRV A AR (A ET RN 1 HO FE
HEr

comparing items recorded as contract
costs during the year with suppliers’
contracts, third party engineers’
certifications of work completed,
where applicable, and other relevant
underlying documentation;
%EWA$W3*7W$WEHﬁT

FEREAH  E=HIRME AN TE
FERKEE R (i@ A ) M H AR RE S i
TTHE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B N % B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) RARETEE(E)

Recognition of contract revenue

B HER
Refer to accounting policy Note 2(v) and Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

FELRI A TR M 2() A B SR K T4

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREtER RMREFPERZBENT X

= agreeing total contract revenue to the
contracted terms;
- B & KRR A S s

- comparing the percentages of
completion as assessed by the
Group’s project managers with the
customer’s certifications of work
completed; and

- tbE SEEEALETENTIE
ALLEEF AN TIETKER &

- recalculating the percentage of
completion based on contract costs
incurred up to the reporting date and
estimated total contract costs;

= ERNEEZEHREAHEANESHARER
RSN AEFRTETIASD
Lt

J on a sample basis, comparing management'’s
estimated costs to complete selected
contracts at the end of the previous financial
year with actual costs incurred during
the current year and enquiring of the
management about any significant variances
identified; and

. BRERELELREREN F—EAFBRFER
EF AR ES NN ABRFEELNE
BRACAR - (R E IR B R TR N E R =R
ZE R

o on a sample basis, discussing with project
managers the stage of completion and
services provided.

. RERREAERTE B 38 5 5k 78 TR B R P
HEVARTS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEETEE(E)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets

BEZRUFERENEENBERE

Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(n) and 2(o) and Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI B B TR MG 2(n) F12(0) ) 2 aTIBR R AT EL 167117

The Key Audit Matter
HREITEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARFTPREEZBEANT L

The Group’s operations gave rise to significant trade
receivable balances and contract assets. As at 31
March 2020, trade receivables and contract assets
amounted to RMB 114,665,000 and RMB34,885,000
respectively, which represented 44% and 13% of
the total assets of the Group respectively.
EEENKEEDELEREEFRIRFIELEB K
BHEE - M2020F3A318 - BHEKFERE
WEESED R A/ARE 114,665,000 kA R
34,885,000 * A Alth EEEBEEEMNLL% K
13% °

The Group measures loss allowances on trade
receivables and contract assets at amounts equal
to lifetime expected credit losses (the "ECL")
using a provision matrix which involved significant
management judgement in estimating loss rate and
adjusting factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.
EEEFERBRBREREEAREHEREREES
([TEREEEREDNSEAEEHRNFBEREL
BENEREHR PSR EMMTEEXLARE
BABERZAHNEREEE B RERHRE R
HASVIR B N FRORI B BB A B IRIR A AT, -

We identified assessing adequacy of loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets as a key
audit matter because of the significance of the
balances of trade receivables and contract assets to
the consolidated financial statements and because
of the significant management judgement required
in estimating the loss allowances at the reporting
date, which can be inherently uncertain.

BT E S RRFIAR & N EEN R ETRE
TRARETFE  RERGEVBREANESE
WHIERENEELARERN BN RS BB EE
BEFETEEFELFIAEAETEEMLNERN
#f o

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets included
the following:

BAFHEE S RUMRER AN EEBRRENERZ
BFEEATEIE

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection
and estimating loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets;

J AR & s EE BRI - BRI R st &
SRWFIEREHNEENBEREBEEENE
BB RET - T REERRL

o comparing, on a sample basis, the
categorisation of trade receivables and
contract assets in the ageing report with
invoices issued, contract terms, contract
progress reports and other relevant
underlying documentation;

. MR ERRRRETE SRR HIBERENE
ENDEEERANESR  S0KK - 84
HEE R R A AR S

o obtaining an understanding on the key
data and assumption of the expected credit
loss model adopted by the management,
including the basis of the segmentation of
the trade receivables and contract assets
based on the credit risk characteristics, the
historical default data, and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss
rate;

J BREEEMRANTEREEEEREANE
ZHEBIER  SEREREERREREL
NEZSRKRIERENEENDBELE - @
TEAOBERERBLABREEMY ROR

.
3

20205 TmTAHERERDE 95



B I e e

Independent Auditor’s Report
B N % B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) RARETEE(E)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
BEZRUREREHNEENERRE
Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(n) and 2(o) and Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

BERFRE B TEIRE AT 2(n) FI2(0)H & 5B R Bt 167117

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
REREEE RN BT HEBEZSZEN S A
o assessing the reasonableness of

management’s loss allowance estimates
by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information;

. FHEERENERBEGTNEENT - B
REFEEEBRNEKZEABNER - &
FRARBEROBBENERE LT EBEE
BREDIRBERBERE LA L ERHE
HiaEFE

o inspecting cash receipts, on a sample basis,
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances
and contract assets as at 31 March 2020;
and

. MEBRENMBELEBEE TP W E
2020F3 A31 B E ZERUGRIBAESR A K
BERBANRE &

o assessing the Group's disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of trade receivables and contract assets
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

. S2EZRTETERNNRE - 5HE EEER
FEMBBMENEHEBEFRRFTEARAKNE
FEEVIER o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HEETEE(E)

Assessment of the potential impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

FEEEEERENEEEERERR

Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(i), 2(j), 2(I) and Note 6(b), and Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated

financial statements

FLRHEEBRMZ20) ~ 2() ~ 200 RHTFF6O)A RAFE R EER KM 117112

The Key Audit Matter
HREITSEH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRARFTPEEZBEANT A

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying values of the
Group'’s Property, Plant and Equipment (“PP&E")
and intangible assets amounted to RMB9,782,000
and RMB36,843,000, respectively.
2020638310 @+ BEEENME - BEREE
NRELEENREEES AAREI,782,0007T
AR #36,843,0007T ©

The Group’s PP&E and intangible assets are allocated
to relevant cash generating units (“CGUs") for the
purpose of assessing if there is any impairment as at
31 March 2020.

EXENYE BERREARELEEESET
HANBRSELET - UHEREZE20206F3 A31
HRESFEERE -

The Group is required to test PP&E and intangible
assets for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Management compares the
carrying amount of the CGU with its recoverable
amount, which is estimated by discounted cash flow
forecast, to determine the amount of impairment, if
any.

BINAZEEHYE  BEMRRBARETLEED
FHEERETEKD - SEEEERERSEZNA
BEERE  BRIEReELABNRAEESER
BN RBSREFRRMETOTRE SR - UETE
MEESRE (WEF) -

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating forecast
revenue, forecast cost of sales, forecast expenses
and the discount rates applied.
REMRBREBRA S R EREIELHEXRHE -
TLHEME RIS - TRAHEA - AR K&
PITHE AR BT IR KB -

Our audit procedures to assess the potential
impairment of PP&E and intangible assets included
the following:

BRI YE - BEREREARELEEELRE
EZIRFEEATRIEA -
o assessing the methodology adopted by

management in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts, including the
key estimates and assumptions adopted and
management’s identification of CGUs and
the allocation of assets and liabilities to each
CGU with reference to our understanding of
the Group’s business and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

. 2EZH MY SEEXRBNEBLRITES
MR ETHEEENRETRR SRS
TR FRERA B 7% - BRI BEG
ARBREAREEBHR CEEEUANH

FIAREEReEFEMNEERABENS

fid

o comparing key financial data, including
revenue, cost of sales and expenses, in the
discounted cash flow forecasts with the
budgets approved by the board of directors;

U IR @R ETEA RN ERMEER (R
FEles - HEKRARMAX) BEEGIER
TEEHEITLLE

o challenging the key assumptions adopted in
the discounted cash flow forecasts, including
forecast revenue, forecast cost of sales,
forecast expense by comparing these inputs
with the historical results of each CGU and
economic and industry forecasts;

. RIBLLEITIRIR & 7 = 78R FTEE A OB &
e (BIETER S « TRRSEE A « T8
FX)BERREEFEUNRELEEUARE
BRITHEBREZEBAELRHREERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BIgR st =E ()

Assessment of the potential impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

FEEEEERENEEEERERK
Refer to accounting policy Notes 2(i), 2(j), 2(I) and Note 6(b), and Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated

financial statements
BREEFBERAE20) - 2() - 20) RITGE6(D)A RiF & B R MaE 117112
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEE BPRETHEEZBENSE
We identified assessment of the potential e involving our internal valuation specialists
impairment of PP&E and intangible assets as a key on a sample basis to assess whether the
audit matter because the impairment assessments discount rates applied in the discounted cash
involve the exercise of significant judgement in flow forecast were within the range adopted
estimating the inputs in the impairment assessment by other companies in the same industry and/
model, which can be inherently uncertain and could or comparable to external market data;
be subject to management bias in their selection. o RS B 2| A TR (P P SR (E R ST T
BISME « B LR AR A E B R E S5 o e B2 T8 e i A3 3B 2 e
FHEHER SBREZSEE - REENGEFHRER G FEE M EA T FEANERR R K
BANEAERTEEEHRELHE - BRESES BN IR A 8
W TIEEER - TXERENEERNRAMTZE

o performing sensitivity analyses of the key

assumptions adopted by management
to assess what changes thereto, either
individually or collectively, would result in
a different conclusion being reached and
assessing whether there were any indicators
of management bias in the selection of key
assumptions; and

. HEREMRRANERBRIETHRED
M DARTAS & AR R L B Ep (E Rl sk E AR e 2R g
BHEETRNER  IEESERTR
BRNEERRRRNTFEEEER - &

o assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of PP&E and
intangible assets with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. SLERITEAEARTE - FHEEE FBHRE
PEBYE - BB KRB SELEENR
BT R HEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

M e - B
i R i

REVBHERREZHERE UG
&

EXETHHMEMAR - HbEMSETIH
REFANZHLER - ETBEESMER
KRB BERE -

B EMBHRRNERL TREELME
A BT EZEFEMERBEREAEZN

EVEERE AEam o

BERMURAMBERENET - ZMANE
TRMAEEMEN - LBt - ZEEEAM
ARG EESBHRAKAEMERBE
TR BT EEARBIEUTFE
EAERRAAER -

ERBFERITH IR - MRIMAREM
ERFEERBERRL - RAIFEREZSE
B HEENHE - HIVRBEMKRSE -

ESHAREMBRRARENERE

EFARAARBER S AEREESEM
R BIR B 75 3R o R I D B B 7B A B R )Y
BEATRBEEEMTBNEAMERE -
WHER B REREMBHRROEETNFE
AR SR AR T B B B A SRR P R
HARRRIEFIRE -

EREREVBHRERN - BARESAR
AHE BEREREQENEED - XYEERS
NN EBRESEKEAMNER - URER
FEQERETER BRIEFEER &
SEBRNE LS - KHBEEMERNE
(W

BERZEERPDEERTEE ESENE
BREBENEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B N % B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and no for other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

[ ‘ '3 s LS

BREMBET RS BERREAENEE
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-  HEERARELLESHERNGE
HEEH R - RIBFAEDROETR
& BMEEAFERFHENKERLE
BB ATHEEN  #MmAl 8
4 EEENRELERNELEX
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- RIABEERBENREDIRERE
REIBHRE T B HRERPOEBK
B BREAHNEETE - RIFfiRE
ERER - HPIAEREENZEEN
& B IEPRES R ERTRGE © A
ARREBEXIFRATEEY BERKET

Ak 4ot 435 g 4
REF BT -
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HEEMAA - BIEEE - UREEH
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T o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B N % B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

19 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB"))
BZE2020F3A31 B ILFE
(AARE(T AR DIIR)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Selling expenses

Administrative and other operating

expenses
Impairment loss on
non-current assets

Impairment loss on trade receivables

and contract assets

(Loss)/profit from operations

Net finance income/(costs)
— Finance income
— Finance costs

Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries
Costs incurred in connection with the

acquisition of subsidiaries
Share of profits/(losses)
of an associate

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the

Company

(Loss)/earnings per share
Basic/diluted (RMB cents)

WA
HERAR

E7

HABKA
HEE M
TR K HoAt

FRBEEMNRERR

B SRR RER
BEMNRERE

R (BE),RE

BEWA (A5

—BEWA

—BERAR

MBARREBE LN

BRAKBH BT
PREEAERIRAR

it N
A, (B18)

BRBiAT (B51R), R

PTiSH

RATFEBERR
IS F R
(B518),%F

Sk (&58) BF
BEX EARKES)

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2019

Note

BaE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBT T NS
4 163,454 115,108
(139,618) (77,208)

4(b) 23,836 37,900

5 93 5,781
(7,753) (6,689)
(45,366) (19,921)

6(b) (36,036) =
6(b) (3,365) (1,066)
(68,591) 16,005
9 (214)

1,060 17
(1,051) (231)

- 11,596
- (5,309)
725 (241)

6 (67,857) 21,837
7 (1,311) (1,583)
(69,168) 20,254

10 (13.88) 5.20

s . ANEER2019F4 81 BERBLERTBPE
BRERBERMIEHREENE 165  RiFU
T LEBERATES - RHE2C)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SeBEaRkEtEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
BE2020F3A31 B IEFE
(AARKTIR)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

for the year (after tax)

Item that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation
into presentation currency

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using

FR(ER),EF

FREMEEBA
(BRBi&)

HZAIeEH D EE
HBaHIAE -

-~ MBI BERZINER

HOIE 5 =58

AT ERRR
FEAE R
E2HBARE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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2019
Note
Bt EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T NS

(69,168) 20,254
2,824 5,539
(66,344) 25,793

G

REER2019F4 71 BIRBEERT WA
BHREMABRETBHREENE 165 - REU
7% LRERATED - R0 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEPBRR R

At 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
1202093 H31H

(AARETR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Interest in an associate
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories and other contract costs

Contract assets

Trade and bill receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Bank loans

Income tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

FRBEE

BIVEE

R—EEE QAR
B REE

RBEE

FE R EAM A RKA

BREE

B 7 MR kRN R R

BNER - HER
HAth U IR

RITREBEIRE

RBRE

B2 RENFA

Hoth A 5R0A M R R X2
RITEN

e PR

RBEEFHE

EERERABAE

FRBEE
HERE
EIEFR B E

BEFRE

2019

Note

B =E

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MI5E ARET T NG S
1 9,782 26,108
12 36,843 73,416
14 3,406 2,681
25(b) 347 3,106
50,378 105,311

15 9,783 11,697
16 34,885 44,235
17 114,665 73,008
18 21,804 28,520
19 31,802 65,293
212,939 222,753

20 20,321 9,699
21 26,478 21,630
22 13,000 23,839
25(a) 8,553 8,633
68,352 63,801

144,587 158,952

194,965 264,263

23 139 =
25(b) 1,288 2,850
1,427 2,850

193,538 261,413
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e MBIRR R (E)

At 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
20203 A31H

(AARETR)

2019
Note
gz
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FitEE AR%ET T NG S

Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital &N
Reserves G

Total equity R iaEE

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 19 June 2020.

26
4,141 4,141
189,397 257,272
193,538 261,413

MizE: AEER2019F4 81 BEBLEERTBHE
BRERBEBRMEHREENE 165 - RiFE
T LLERERATEY - AHIFE2(0) °

BEESN20205F6 A 190 /& R IRET|E o

WANG Dongbin WU Hongyuan

EFRIR KA

Chairman Director

FiE EE

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated FNNBEEF2298 AR E MK
financial statements. —&5 -
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r T
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
= 2L 4=
MEREREER
For the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
BZE2020F3A31 B ILFE
(AARKETR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ADERERRER
Shares held
under
share
Share award Share Other ~ Statutory Exchange  Retained Total
capital  scheme  premium  reserves  reserves  reserve profits equity
RERG
KRty
FiiaH
i Bx Rt ROEE EtRE  iERE  ENRE  REEW  REAE
Note RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEE ARE ARE AEE AR® ARE ARE AEE
T T v T T T T T
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
26(0) 260)  26()) 26)  26(g)i)
(Kt i i3 (hiit i3
260 260)  260)0) 2600)6)  26ig)i)
At 1 April 2018 R20184A1R 3,083 = 87,531 52,609 4,264 (3993 40,104 183598
Changes in equity for ~ EZ2019%3A31R
the year ended LEERERD:
31 March 2019:
Profit and total ERgHR
comprehensiveincome ~~ 2EALE
for the year - - - - - 5,539 20,254 25,793
Equity-settled share-based [ RIELELR (S
transaction BERNRS pl! - - - 666 - - - 666
Purchase of own shares BB B 5k{) 26(0) - (2,627) - - - - - 2627)
Issuance of sharesfor ~ AUEHEAT
the acquisiton of kv
subsidiaries 1,058 - 52,925 - - - - 53,983
Appropriation to reserves  EEZEE = = = = 171 = (177) =
108 Q) 595 666 7 - 50
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31R 4141 (2627) 140456 53275 4,441 1546 60,181 261413
The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated BB EF229E MFTEMK AR E T
financial statements. —Ef5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
GEERBER(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
HZE2020F3A31HLEFE
(AARKTIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ALNRRERRE

Shares held

under

share
Share award Share Other  Statutory  Exchange  Retained Total
capital ~ scheme  premium  reserves  reserves  reserve profits equity

RERG

ERitE

et
i3 k& R ROEE RERE iERE  EXRE  RERN  BRAE
Note RVMBOOO  RMB'00  RMB'00  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARE ARE AEE AR% ARE AEE AEE AR%
T T T T T T T T

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
26(0) 260 26()0) 26000 26(g)ii)
(Bt (Wi (Bt (Miz (Mt
26(0) 260)  26(0)) 2600)i)  26(g)i)
IR H9F4A1R G RwE BEE G B G B
Changes in equity for ~ EZ202053A318
the year ended LEERERD:
31 March 2020:
Loss and total EREERZENALE
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 2,824 (69,168)  (66,344)
Equity-settled share-based  MARIEEE LR AER
transaction KR5 4 - - - 716 - - - 716
Purchase and cancellation & iHEE SR (A
of own shares 26(d) - (2.224) 23) - - - - (2,247)
Appropriation to reserves  ERZFHE - - - - 289 - (289)
_______ - memy W W & - W
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31R 414 (4851) 140433 53,991 4730 4370 (9276) 193,538

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using MisE : ANEER2019F 481 HERBLEERTBH

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the EE IR FE BB B M S RIS 165K o IRIR
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c). 5 WA FEY - RKisE2() °

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated FINMNBEZEF2298 MFFAKG S B mE

financial statements. BhD ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
BZE2020F3A31 B ILFE
(AARKETR)

2020 2019
Note
k=3
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
F=E ARET T BN S
Cash flows from operating activities K& TEFWHRESHE
(Loss)/profit before taxation MEBLAT(ER), B (67,857) 21,837
Adjustment for: FEIER -
Depreciation and amortisation I R 6(b) 26,255 7,388
Finance costs & R AN 1,051 231
Impairment loss on trade receivables EZRYHRIER
and contract assets ARIEERERE 6(b) 3,365 1,066
Impairment loss on property, plant L E =N
and equipment SRR EEE 6(b) 13,618 =
Impairment loss on intangible asset BIEERERE 6(b) 22,418 -
Inventory provision FEEE 3,213 -
Share of (profit)/losses of an associate  fE{E —REEEL A 7]
CaRl),/ &HE (725) 241
Equity-settled VAR A 45 5 LA R ()
share-based transaction RERNRZ S 716 666
Gain on bargain purchase from U BE B B N A
acquisition of subsidiaries FREREE R - (11,596)
Costs incurred in connection with the BRAWENE AT
acquisition of subsidiaries FEE A HIR AR - 5,309
Changes in working capital: LIBEESED)
Increase in inventories FEEn (1,299) (3,449)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets SRBERD (L) 8,304 (44,235)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bill E e
receivables W EE
(3gm),/ (43,976) 11,523
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FERRIE - #E Rk
deposits and other receivables H Ath FEUCRIR
A, (En) 6,716 (16,271)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZREIR SR,
(3&n) 25,625 (25,734)
Increase in trade payables B 5 MR FRIAE N 10,622 2,901
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H it JE A~ FRIE 2
and accruals FERTRZ
i,/ Cid) 6,746 (4,786)
Cash generated/(used in) from REmE/(FiA)RE
operations 14,792 (54,909)
Income tax paid ERATEH 25(a) (194) (102)
Net cash generated/(used in) from  E& EEFTE
operating activities (FTRR&FHE 14,598 (55,011)
The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated FINMEEF2298 WiEAK IR A B IS HwE
financial statements. — &5 e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

mEREREBR(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
(Expressed in RMB)
BE2020F3A31 B IEFE
(AARKTIR)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payments for self-developed intangible
assets

Repayment of loan from a third parties
Loan granted to a third parties
Acquisition of subsidiaries

Payments for cost incurred in
connection with acquisition

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from new borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Payments for the purchase of own
shares under share award scheme

Interest paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect on foreign exchange rates
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

Note:

REFHNRERE

Eﬁ, M - B R
RAEFIE

B EFRBEEENIR

WEl—2FE=TTEK
M—BE=FTREER
Y RE T8 A A

B REA R A Y
PR

REZHFAREFE
BMETDNRERE

?Fﬂﬁi"ﬁﬁ?%fﬂ
EEER
BEHEeRE I
ENESHEHD
RAR A 22 EDET 2

BB B HRMNATR
EATHLE

BMEES(FA),
FREREFE

RERREEEY
ZAONEE |
FONRERAEEED

INEERBBNTE

FRESRREEEY

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019 using

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 111 to 229 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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2020 2019
Note
Btk
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FfaE ARET T BN S
(95) (772)
(8,893) (9,997)
18 6,000 -
18 (6,000) -
- 481
- (4,976)
(8,988) (15,264)
19(b) 17,307 21,939
(30,190)
(107) -
(12) =
26(d) (2.247) (2,627)
(1,051) (231)
(16,300) 19,081
(10,690) (51,194)
19(a) 39,559 87,409
2,824 3,344
19(a) 31,693 39,559

MFE : ANE@MMN2019F4 A1 BERBEEFTBIA

BRERBEBRMBEHREERF 1655 o
TE HBRERATES -

RIEZ
REE2(c) ©

%1115 F229B8 M TAKG AT RE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 July 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 March 2018 (the “Listing Date").
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement and upgrades
of software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and distribution companies in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the
sale of products and the investment, construction and
operation of smart city infrastructure in the PRC.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (”IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“1ASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting year
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting
years reflected in these financial statements.

DEEHR

THEBRAER AR ([AAR]) R
2016F7ACHIRBENEHERS
PNaE(1961 FE3EAN - &L454E
Mg ER S S AER
BHBERAA o RARKRMHK2018
FIA2A( LEBEEEHS
RPERAR([BERZFT]) ER E
e ARE REMBAR (FE A&
BDEERERFEARLMH(F
Bl ERRREEARRE « #1717
T+ I F+ R ER R 45 R SR AT AR 7S A
MEHEES  ARRPRRRE « #:%
KB RS REIR T LR BR G ©

BAREBER
(a) EHRBH

A EMBRRIRIBEHMEE
PR R B B 95 e o5 22 R (T B
R R EER] - BFEA
BfR gt ERE = ([ EE
SRPEAEES ) BMAA
B 8 P 8 Bl Bl B B 75 s
Al B EA(TERE
AR RRB)UAREER
ARPIMEERERE - &%
% B SRR T8 ST B KX AT RE
ZF EmBRAN(T LR
R ERX - NEBRA
MERSTHREEMNT

BER s EREE2CHM
ETRAKERITEAFE
BRAER AT 2 F A
el RERI BB MBS
R o B FE20RE R ERE
RS mELAREASRH
RThkBEEFREMEEN
THEtRREHER - &
REHEEXFTVHBRERA
SRR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

2

112 Annual Report 2020

ANBREEDR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 comprise the
Group and the Group's interest in an associate.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year
of the revision and future years if the revision
affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note
3.

OneForce Holdings Limited

2

EXERTBER (&)

(b)

MBHROFERESE

HZE2020F3H31HIEFER
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ANEE R —EEBE QR 8

2% 6
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 BEASHHE(E)

()  Changes in accounting policies (0 EHEEss

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

None of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group's results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease,
SIC 15, Operating leases — incentives, and SIC
27, Evaluating the substance of transactions
involving the legal form of a lease. It
introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”)
and leases of low value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward
from IAS 17 substantially unchanged.

B & SRR B
KA =B A S BRI S KA
M —IEET AT B R B A R s
% 8 B s B 7 3R 450 B 2816
FHERS BRI SRE
RIS A -

ZEERBMEHAKERH
BEIRN DA E S 58)
BARAANTAELEEAF
2 AEEVERANAE
A+ HA TR 1) R A R A {E fa] 37 2
AR -

B B#HEERF 165518
g

B R EEFE1657E
RER S ERFE1TREE
RiAERE - BRMBEHRE
REZEeREFINETL
HELBRAHE  BHRE
ZEQRISHLLHE —F
BREHRBZEQFR27H
e RAEZEEARX S
FIAE o AR RAHE A
ABE—2st B REAH
AEREHENEREE
ENHEARG  HEHEHEHNR
REAZAT(TEHEE])
REBEEEESRN - b
HAGHHAETHBERE
HERIENTIR - REMER T o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9]

114 Annual Report 2020

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements
which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as
from 1 April 2019. The Group has elected
to use the modified retrospective approach
and has therefore recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under
IAS 17.

OneForce Holdings Limited

2

EXERTBER (&)

(0 BFBER25(HE)
BRI B & E R E 165 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 BEASHHE(E)

(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (o)

ST BEREE (E)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB REERE16 57
E(#E)

Further details of the nature and effect of
the changes to previous accounting policies
and the transition options applied are set out
below:

BB BERESHNE
ERFENNBET AR E
—FRREIIT

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a
lease mainly relates to the concept
of control. IFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer
controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition
of a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts
that were entered into or changed on
or after 1 April 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 April 2019,
the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under
IAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under IFRS 16 and contracts
previously assessed as non-lease
service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

a. HERIFE S

HETEZHTEHR
Z IR S AERE o B
%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%m
BRE-REFPEDR
A X — By FA R 2 i) 2K
—HEEEEREM
E MBRAAEAE
BEREREETE -
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ERERIALREE AT
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& B2 G B R B 7S
wmELERF 165 HE
B EEEAR2019
FL4R1BHZEE]L
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EFERABENTEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

2

ANBREEDR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement
for a lessee to classify leases as either
operating leases or finance leases,
as was previously required by IAS
17. Instead, the Group is required
to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under
IAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets
which are exempt. As far as the Group
is concerned, these newly capitalised
leases are primarily in relation to
property, plant and equipment
as disclosed in Note 11. For an
explanation of how the Group applies
lessee accounting, see Note 2(k).

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e.
1 April 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease
terms and measured the lease liabilities
for the leases previously classified as
operating leases at the present value
of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant
incremental borrowing rates at 1 April
2019. The weighted average of the
incremental borrowing rates used for
determination of the present value
of the remaining lease payments was
5.51%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to IFRS 16,
the Group applied the following
recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16:

the Group elected not to apply
the requirements of IFRS 16
in respect of the recognition
of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends
within 12 months from the date
of initial application of IFRS 16,
i.e. where the lease term ends
on or before 31 March 2020;
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

118 Annual Report 2020

when measuring the lease
liabilities at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16,
the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of
underlying asset in a similar
economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, the
Group relied on the previous
assessment for onerous
contract provisions as at 31
March 2019 as an alternative
to performing an impairment
review.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

The following table reconciles the
operating lease commitments as
disclosed in Note 28 as at 31 March
2019 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019:

EXRSHEE)
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EIfR R B & E R E 1655 1
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b. RN &5 I T %
RBRZE (E)
TR T 28 AT

EMN201943A31H
R A& & T E AR R
2019F4 A1 BHE R
HEBGBEHRYEHRD
R

1 April 2019
2019F481H

RMB’000
ARBTF T

Operating lease commitments at
31 March 2019
Less: commitments relating to
leases exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases
with remaining lease term

ending on or before 31 March 2020

Present value of remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate at 1 April 2019 and
total lease liabilities recognised at
1 April 2019

The right-of-use assets in relation to
leases previously classified as operating
leases have not been recognised
at 31 March 2019 due to practical
expedients. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

After the initial recognition of right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities as at
1 April 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a negative
impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if IAS 17 had
been applied during the year.

120 Annual Report 2020 OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (Continued)

In the cash flow statement, the Group
as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their
capital element and interest element.
These elements are classified as
financing cash outflows, similar to how
leases previously classified as finance
leases under IAS 17 were treated,
rather than as operating cash outflows,
as was the case for operating leases
under IAS 17. Although total cash
flows are unaffected, the adoption of
IFRS 16 therefore results in a change in
presentation of cash flows within the
cash flow statement. The adoption of
IFRS 16 has no significant impact on
the financial results, segment results
and cash flow of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

ANBREEDR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") which is the Group's
presentation currency and the functional
currency of the Company and its PRC
subsidiaries. All amounts have been rounded
to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
indicated.

Subsidiaries

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition is generally
measured at fair value, as are the identifiable
net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is
tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a
bargain purchase is recognised in profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs are expensed
as incurred, except if related to the issue of
debt or equity securities. The consideration
transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note

2(1)).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale.
Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the associate that
forms part of the Group’s equity investment.
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see Note 2(I)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate after applying the
ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

126 Annual Report 2020

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group'’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Other investments in debt securities

The Group’s policies for investments in
debt, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the
Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the
investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely
payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated
using the effective interest
method (see Note 2(v)(iv));
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(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Other investments in debt securities

(Continued)

(i) Investments other than equity
investments (Continued)

128 Annual Report 2020

fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)
— recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the
investment is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated
using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit
or loss;

fair value at profit or loss
(FVPL) if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Other investments in debt securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment the group makes
an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election
is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (Note 2(1)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Right-of-use assets Over the
lease term

— Leasehold improvement Shorter
between

lease period

and 10 years

—  Motor vehicles, office
equipment and other
equipment

3 to 5 years

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on an internal research and
development projects is distinguished between
the expenditures during the research phase
and expenditures during the development
phase. Research activities involve original and
planned investigation undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development
activities involve a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved
materials, devices, products or processes
before the start of commercial production or
use.

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(I)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (Note 2(I)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets shall begin
when the asset is available for use.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Software and patents 3 to 5 years
Both the year and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

As a lessee

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2019

Where the contract contains
lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

A)
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Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(i) and

2(1)(i).

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019
(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and
presents lease liabilities separately in
the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 BEAEFHEGE)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEEEE)
As a lessee (Continued) ERBRTNA ()
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019 B)  R2019F4H41HFj#E
Veil-o)2 6

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases as
finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating
leases.
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Where the Group had the use of assets WMAREFBEEEER
held under operating leases, payments LHEEAENEE®
made under the leases were charged to B AREMREE
profit or loss in equal instalments over H A 5k &2 12 FH & HF
the accounting periods covered by the M EN 2=t HE

lease term, except where an alternative
basis was more representative of the

A AEFEI>HER
SR - HERHAE

pattern of benefits to be derived from 1 B AE T BEIE P e B
the leased asset. Lease incentives HEEEREANK

received were recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the

SR RIBRSN o FTEX
SHHEEEERS

aggregate net lease payments made. R AR E RN

Contingent rentals were charged to 48 %8 A N A] ok ER R

profit or loss in the accounting period S HEMHERESE

in which they were incurred. HestHRRNEER
FHIRR -
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on
the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables).

- contract assets as defined in
IFRS 15 (see Note 2(n)).

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to The Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that The
Group expects to receive).
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

138 Annual Report 2020

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is
available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the
items to which the ECL model
applies.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)
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Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial
asset is 90-120 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external
or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)
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Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
on credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
on credit-impaired financial assets
(Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)
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Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when The Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets; and

- investments in an associate.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 EAREHBEE)
0] Credit losses and impairment of assets () EEBEREERE(E)
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BHZEREE)

(Continued)
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Calculation of recoverable
amount

FHE AT B 2
B

The recoverable amount of an EERNA Y E
asset is the greater of its fair k- P =S/
value less costs of disposal and B &K
value in use. In assessing value ANEFHEE
in use, the estimated future MENESE
cash flows are discounted to EAE o AFE(E
their present value using a pre- FEHEER -
tax discount rate that reflects f& & & 3k 3|/
current market assessments emRENFEH
of the time value of money KB B i 5
and the risks specific to the HEKEEE
asset. Where an asset does not B/ 1 &M%
generate cash inflows largely EEEMNES
independent of those from 2 B & &4 BT
other assets, the recoverable I8 R IH F I
amount is determined for B WEEF
the smallest group of assets ELENBEESR
that generates cash inflows AEKRETTE
independently (i.e. a cash- SREMEE
generating unit). FTEXNRS
mA R BABE
BYELERS
MAR&/NE
EER (AR e
EXEM)EBEE
A EESEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

- Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

-

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0] Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

EN-Ee A6 )

() FEBEBEREEREGE

(i) Impairment of other assets (i) BHZEREE)
(Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses — SR 1B E 15 D]
An impairment loss is reversed WAREEM
if there has been a favourable g 18] & %8 ) 1
change in the estimates used STHBRANE
to determine the recoverable it - BlgHm
amount. A reversal of an A EE o R/
impairment loss is limited to the EEEZEDR
asset’s carrying amount that RZEEMNER
would have been determined mE @ WuwaE
had no impairment loss been 1 B fE I 48
recognised in prior periods. Rz LR AE B
Reversals of impairment losses B mEEE
are credited to profit or loss in B 1] 1A 3R 1
the year in which the reversals B &) F E 5t A
are recognised. B=R o
(i)  Interim financial reporting and (iii) PRI BIHER E

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim

BRIEBEEBAR S
BRAGESR LR
B XEEAERER
R e AR F 3458

financial report in compliance with BB ISR ERE A
IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, BTEE &~ E B &

in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the

THMBRE - RH
HHMERE - A8

interim period, the Group applies the B 5 EH A B B F
same impairment testing, recognition, E&E R HEBAREE
and reversal criteria as it would at the B R ERE
end of the financial year (see Notes 2(I) B A2 81 ( BB EE2()) K
(i) and (ii)). (ii)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(i)

Inventories and other contract costs

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the
carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the
year in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realizable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the year
the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)
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Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer or the costs
to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory
(see Note 2(m)(i)), property, plant and
equipment (see Note 2(i)) or intangible
assets (see Note 2(j)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract
with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained e.g. an incremental
sales commission. Incremental costs
of obtaining a contract are capitalised
when incurred if the costs relate to
revenue which will be recognised in
a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or
enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future;
and are expected to be recovered.
Costs that relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because
the Group entered into the contract
(for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (ii) any costs that
relate directly to providing those goods
or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract
costs is charged to profit or loss when
the revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in Note
2(v).

Contract assets

A contract asset is recognised when the
Group recognises revenue (see Note 2(v))
before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out
in the contract. Contract assets are assessed
for ECLs in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2(I)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see Note 2(0)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented
as a contract asset (see Note 2(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance
for credit losses (see Note 2(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(1)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities, trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 2(y)).

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2

158 Annual Report 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to business
combinations, and items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting year, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRZAZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)
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Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
year as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in years into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a year, or years, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided that they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of reversal
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
year and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future year in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination which are
present obligations at the date of
acquisition are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their
initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated
amortization where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined
in accordance with Note 2(u)(i).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with Note

2(u)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of software systems

When the outcome of a service
contract can be reasonably measured,
revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time
using the cost-to-cost method, i.e.
based on the proportion of the actual
costs incurred relative to date to the
estimated total costs.

When the outcome of the contract
cannot be reasonably measured,
revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Render of technical services

Revenue from the rendering of
technical services is recognised over
time as the services are provided. The
stage of completion for determining
the amount of revenue to recognise is
assessed based on work performed.

Sale of products

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or
services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion
of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the
goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(I)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARKEFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Government grant

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are recognised as deferred income and
consequently recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the related asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting year. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the company initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group's presentation currency,
at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulation
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over
the Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party;
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(2) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third
entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group;

f) the entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i);

(9) a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or

(h) the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN

SANBREESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
Sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements.

(a) Service contracts

As explained in Notes 2(I) and 2(v)(i), revenue
recognition on an uncompleted service project
is dependent on estimating the total outcome
of the service contract, as well as the work
done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the service
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until
this point is reached the amounts due from
customers for contract work as disclosed in
Note 16 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting year, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZAEFZHAIN - AARKETITR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables
and contract assets based on assumptions
about the expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. For details of the key assumptions and
inputs used, see Note 27(a). Changes in these
assumptions and estimated could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment
charge to the profit or loss.

Provision for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value based on the current
market condition and historical experience of
similar nature. Any change in the assumptions
would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals
of write-downs and affect the Group's net
asset value. The Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the inventories at each reporting
period end date to determine whether the
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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(BRZAZHIN - MARKETIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3 SR (L5 ()
(Continued)
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Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (L TR EE M RE ()

(d) Impairment of property, plant and d) Y% BERIZEUREK
equipment, and intangible assets BENRE
If circumstances indicate that the carrying HWERBLRME  BERE

amount of property, plant and equipment,
and intangible asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets as described in Note 2(|)
(ii). These assets are tested for impairment
periodically or whenever the events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to
the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge
or reversal of impairment in future years.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Income tax

The Group calculates current taxation based
on the taxable income for the year using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year, and after taking
into consideration whether the Group has
satisfied the conditions as stipulated in the tax
rules and regulations which may result in the
Group be able to enjoy certain preferential
tax rates and tax allowable deductions.
Such preferential tax rates and tax allowable
deductions are subject to the approvals by the
relevant tax authorities in the following fiscal
year. Actual current taxation maybe higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting year.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement and
upgrades of software and solutions and the
provision of technical services for power grid
and distribution companies in the PRC and
the sale of products. Further details regarding
the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in
Note 4(b).
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PR AR MY e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAR D4R ()
(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued) (@) WAE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WA &
Disaggregation of revenue from FTERBEENEFES
contracts with customers by major BEWAZI ST :

service lines is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
IN-LL.S A ARETT

Sale of software and solutions  $5E &4 KRR T 2 16,854 40,943
Provision of technical services R HERATIR 98,426 45,775
Sales of products HEEM 48,174 28,390

163,454 115,108
Revenue from customers with whom RSB AEERA
transactions have exceeded 10% of 10% LA EMZEE WA
the Group’s revenue are set out below: AT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
IN-L. Sl ARETT

Customer A ZEA 64,485 53,741
Customer B = 5B 44,516 42,517
Details of concentration of credit risk REXEFEMEERR
arising from the customers are set out &R IE R BT R
in Note 27(a). 27(a) ©
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

Revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the
reporting date.

The Group has applied the practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15
to its contracts for revenue from sale
of software and solutions, provision of
technical services and sale of products
such that the financial information
does not include information about
revenue, that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations
under the contracts had an original
expected duration of one year or less.

4

WA R 5 B & ()
(@ WA
(i) REBEZAHHEREE
FERFELERARE
B A &R

AEEC GBS
& ERE 155 F
121 ITHEE F A
FE A= S S B R R
RF R - REEITR
BREEERNER
WA - LA B 7% &
FAEEEBBAN
R BEAEEETT
REEHAE—FHE
EMERBETHHT
BHEMTE  Hi5F
REERBUA -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b)  Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by
business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which the information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments:
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Software and solutions: this segment
engages in the design, implementation,
enhancement and upgrades of
software systems for power grid and
distribution companies.

Technical services: this segment
engages in the provision of
maintenance services on the software
systems sold.

Products: this segment sells software

systems related hardware and spare
parts.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and
liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's
most senior executive management
monitor the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred
by those segments. The measure
used for reporting segment profit is
gross profit. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019. The Group's
other income and expense items, such
as other income, selling expenses,
administrative and other operating
expenses, and assets and liabilities,
including the sharing of technical
know-how, are not measured under
individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment
assets and liabilities nor information
concerning capital expenditure,
interest income and interest expenses is
presented.

4

WA K2 3R & ()

(b) B EIRE ()

() RHEE BER
EE

HABOBRARS
Bid o> ZBfE Y B R m
5 $m.§ﬁf7ﬂl
mﬁAE&MT%&
F AR EBE
ﬁ%%ﬁ:

WARREZ T2 E A
B3R EEEMHKA
MEEEMRAI M
BEEZED - RE
D E R FIFT A A2
BERBEM - HZE
20204F } 20194E 3 A
31EIEFEINES S
FSEE - AEEMHE
A E=EBHBEE -
MEMKA - HEE
TERE AR E
BA G UREEHS
E(BEDZ A
#) 0 WIHRER 5 E
FrE e Bt MER
D HBEERAER
R MEENNEE
BEARLTH - FEKA
EFB S HHER
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and
liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is set
out below.

Application
solutions

ERRALR
RMB'000

AR®FR

Disaggregated by timing of #ZUR AREZH)

WA K 2 BB & ()

(b)  ZERIRE (D)

() ARHRE BER
BE(&)

BEEE2020F K&
20193 A31 8 IEF
ERETFAEEES
THREEBABUDE
EREFEDIBRIE
B 72N &2 B A] R ¥R 5
BREFAT o

Supporting
services Products Total
XER® Em fst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBT T

revenue recognition e

- Over time —FEREE 16,854 98,426 - 115,280

- Point in time -E-EHY - - 48174 48174
Revenue from external RENFEPUAR

customers and reportable  ATERFRAHEUYTA

segment revenue 16,854 98,426 48,174 163,454
Reportable segment R HER

gross profit 5498 13,279 5,059 23,836
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(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 AR D ERRE (48)
(Continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEHE(E)
(i) Segment results, assets and (i) SEEEEER
liabilities (Continued) BEE)
2019
Application Supporting
solutions services Products Total
fEm
BARR X ER% Em @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Disaggregated by timing of R4t \FEFRE)
revenue recognition EER)
- Over time — BB R 40,943 45,775 — 86,718
- Point in time —RREE 5 - 28,390 28390
Revenue from external REMPEPUA
customers and reportable  RATERBRAZUA
segment revenue 40,943 45,775 28,390 115,108
Reportable segment ERRAHER
gross profit 18,260 14,714 4,926 37,900
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEBI -

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

AARESR)

WA K 2 BB & ()

(b)  Segment reporting (Continued) (b) EFHE(A)
Reconciliations of reportable (i) o] BA 3R 5 28 2 4% B 4
segment results to consolidated B RRF BB F B E e
profit before taxation

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN S
Segment results D ERELS 23,836 37,900
Other income HAbA 93 5,781
Gain on bargain purchase of ~ UWBEH B AT EE
subsidiaries BEERN - 11,596
Net finance income/(costs) REWA (X )58 9 (214)
Selling expenses HEER (7,753) (6,689)
Administrative and other TR REMKEER
operating expenses (45,366) (19,921)
Impairment loss on IEMEN B E R EEE
non-current assets (MI=E11 R FfE5E12)
(Note 11 and Note 12) (36,036) -
Impairment loss on trade B ZREYNRIER
receivables and EREEREERE
contract assets (3,365) (1,066)
Costs incurred in connection G RAUKEEHTE A &)
with the acquisition FREEAE MR
of subsidiaries - (5,309)
Share of profits/(losses) B —fEBE =R A
of an associate swmAlL (E18) 725 (241)
Consolidated (loss)/profit RABRTIRT
before taxation (&518), &7 (67.857) 21,837
Geographic information (i) HEEH
All the Group's operations are carried RNEBEFMBETHE
out and the Group’s customers are BRASEEREF AU
located in the PRC. The Group’s non- PR - REER I
current assets, including property, MEBEE(BRREME
plant and equipment and intangible B R 58 DA IR
assets are all located or allocated to BE)HINRIES
operations located in the PRC. ZEHEIMET
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hb A

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AREFIT

Refund of value-added-tax (“VAT") RiEIER ([EER )
(Note (i) (FEEEG)) - 5,192
Others Hith 93 589
93 5,781

Note:

(i) Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC,
entities engage in the sale of self-developed software
in the PRC and pay VAT at a rate of 13% (before 1
April 2019: 16%) are entitled to a VAT refund to the
extent of the VAT payable in excess of 3% of the self-
developed software sold.

(i) BRI EERSERARAG - &
FEEEHEEBTHRERGILIR
13% (2019F4 A1 HAT : 16% ) Fi
KEHEEROEES - WEMIEE
MBBEEBTHERFN3% -
B R R B (AT -
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(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after

L T

BRBLAT (E518), A
BRBLAT (B518),a A E B T 5%

charging: 1A
(@)  Staff costs* (a) BIpA
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NS
Salaries, wages and other benefits 4 - T& KHE 2 H] 23,848 24,690
Contributions to defined M E HBCGRINGT B4R
contribution retirement scheme 1,767 2,060
Equity-settled share-based payment AlEzS4EE
expenses BEMNNF Eﬂi 144 132
25,759 26,882

The employees of the subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC (other than Hong
Kong) participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme managed by the
local government authority, whereby this
subsidiary is required to contribute to the
scheme at a rate of 16% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of this subsidiary
are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated
based on a percentage of the average salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from
the above-mentioned retirement scheme at
their normal retirement age.

The Group has no further obligation for

payment of other retirement benefits beyond
the above contributions.
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BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6

(b) Other items

BRBLAT (B518),BR (&)

(b) EftEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
NSl ARETT

Gain on bargain purchase of g1 =pNG

subsidiaries BRERE = - 11,596
Depreciation and amortisation* e R

(Notes 11 and 12) (MIEE115%12) 26,255 7,388
Impairment loss on property, Y% BE MR ERE

plant and equipment (Note 11) EE (1) 13,618 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4EF & B &8

(Note 12) (HMtEE12) 22,418 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables 2 5 & W 38 &

and contract assets GRIEERERE

(Notes 17 and 16) (MizE17%16) 3,365 1,066
Operating lease charges in respect BRI A EEFTH

of office premises CERES 1,858 1,898
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEA B & -
— Statutory audit services — AT B ZIRTE 2,654 2,560
— Services in connection with the —ERWEHREA RN

acquisition of subsidiaries Rk 75 - &4l

Research and development costs B R AN

(other than amortisation) (B EHBR M) 5,254 3,063
Outsourced labour cost# A JI5MB K A 75,063 22,132
Cost of inventories sold# (Note 15) B &EfFERA#(HE15) 139,226 76,391
# Cost of inventories sold include # BEETFEKRADRBER

RMB96,576,000 (2019: RMB48,262,000)
relating to staff costs, outsourced labour
cost and depreciation and amortisation,
respectively, which amounts are also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 6 for each of these
types of expenses.

BETIRA - AR
NARITE REHEARKE
96,576,000 7T (2019 4F :
AR#48,262,0007T) * B
S BIFET A 3 EkisEe
MEEZSENHAZ S B
W ERIER AR
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 &SAEXERNMNFTES
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements (a) HABEXERANBIER
of profit or loss represent:
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T NS
Current tax - PRC Corporate BNEAFIE — PR
Income Tax (Note 25(a)) Fris i (Mi5E25())
— Provision for the year —FNEE 114 1,928
Deferred Tax (Note 25(b)) ELER1E (iEE25(b))
— Origination and reversal of —EREENESRED
temporary differences 1,197 (345)
1,311 1,583
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABRTENTEEX
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax g (ER) BRI BN
rates: AR
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T BN S
(Loss)/profit before taxation B RT(E1R) % F (67,857) 21,837
Expected tax on (loss)/profit before KA (E5#8), % FIAY
taxation, calculated at the rates TEHATIIRE - A RNE
applicable in the jurisdictions ERBEANHETE
concerned (Notes (i), (ii) and (iii) CRRREG) ~ Gy B (Gii)) (16,225) 6,285
Tax effect of non-deductible AR IR 2
expenses 819 618
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBIRMA R 2 (181) (1,679)
— Gain on bargain purchase of —WENBEARRERES
subsidiaries il - (1,739)
— Share of (profits)/losses of an —FE(E—fEH & R A
associate Ca A,/ EE (181) 60
Tax effect on bonus deduction of B AR DN EHE 0 AY
research and development costs TIA R 2 (FsE(v)
(Note (iv)) (1,451) (2,813)
Effect of tax losses not recognised — ARIERTRIAEIENFE 9,995 1,603
Write off deferred tax assets IR TR IR & A s 2,113 =
Tax concessions (Notes (v) and (vi))  FIEZ % (B sE(v) R (vi) 6,241 (2,301)
Others HAth - (130)
Actual tax expense ERHIBRY 1,311 1,583

186 Annual Report 2020  OneForce Holdings Limited




Lo T

|

e

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(R=AEEHIN

SANBREESR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
Notes:
(i) The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: 16.5%).

The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated outside of the PRC are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in
Mainland China are subject to PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 25% for the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: 25%).

According to the relevant tax rules in the
PRC, qualified research and development
expenditures, are allowed for bonus deduction
for income tax purpose, i.e. an additional
75% of such expenditures is deemed to be
deductible expenses.

The subsidiary of the Group established in
the PRC, namely Along Grid, has obtained
an approval from the tax bureau to be
taxed as an enterprise with advanced and
new technologies, and therefore enjoys a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
15% for the period from 22 December 2016
to 22 December 2019. At 15 October 2019
management renewed the certification and
extended the period to 14 October 2022.

The subsidiary of the Group established in
the PRC, namely Aipu Zhicheng, has obtained
an approval from the tax bureau to be
taxed as an enterprise with advanced and
new technologies, and therefore enjoys a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
15% for the period from 1 December 2016
to 31 November 2019. At 15 October 2019
management renewed the certification and
extended the period to 14 October 2022.

RERBRANAEHR(K)

(b) (&

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

20204 R

HZE2020F3A318 LA
B AEEREBEMAK
S AT B A R ZE1216.5%
MREHANESFER
(20194 : 16.5%) °

RIBE X BEMALAAE
BRG] AR
AR ER BRI
MM EAR
BAMMNERPREH -

HZE2020F3A318 LA
B AEERFBEKREER
S M B A BB IR 25% B
MERAMPECEMEH
(20194 : 25%) °

REBEPEBBRBERA
B BB R AL A
MEHEMAEE - 5@
B X BV EEIN75% AT AR (E AT
EIFx -

7N £ B R HR B B ST A BT B
AR (BB BARE) E &R
% BiEE AR R E
FHMTIIE - TE20165F
128228 2019412 A
2B M ZEF15%HF
TEMBHERHE - B
2019%10A15H © B2 E
EERE  WEHRLER
20229108148 -

AN £ B R H B B ST A BT B
ARl (AN EE W) B EH
T B HE 1 R e T B A 1
XBMBIE - 2016
F12818E2019F11 A4
31EEBEER15% M E
TEMBHEIHE - B
20198108150 @ EEE
EERE - URHRLER
20229 10A 148 -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BIECEB A TER ) E38301) 1§ &
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (REI(BBEENEER)RFIE2
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information R ES I T

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme  Share-based

fees in-kind contributions payments Total
D10 &1 HRBA

ESfie B FEMRR  ERNAR g

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETR AR%Tn  ARBTr  ARETR

Executive directors HITEE

Mr WANG Dongbin TREEE 285 439 39 - 763
Mr WU Hongyuan* RALRS 107 709 39 - 855
Mr L Kangying FRELE 285 - - - 285
Mr WU Zhanjiang** RETRLE 107 646 39 - 792
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors

Mr NG Kong Fat RABEE 107 - - 48 155
Mr HAN Bin 1 e 107 - - 48 155
Mr WANG Peng Fhis 107 - - 48 155

1,105 1,794 17 144 3,160
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

8

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 BEHM(E)
2019
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme  Share-based
fees inkind  contributions payments Total
e MR e AR &
L ik SEE ERREE ELE
RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr WANG Dongbin TRERE 103 440 57 - 600
Mr WU Hongyuan Rt EE 103 499 59 = 661
Mr LI Kangying TRESRE 71 - - - 1Al
Mr WU Zhanjiang RETEAE 71 331 43 - 445
Independent BUkHTES
non-executive directors
Mr NG Kong Fat RABEE 103 - - 44 147
Mr HAN Bin Bt 103 - - 44 147
Mr WANG Peng T 103 - - 44 147
057 1,270 159 132 2,218
= On 1 June 2019, Mr. WU Hongyuan was appointed a M2019F6 18 + RULKHALES

as executive president and retired as chief executive

officer.

*x On 1 June 2019, Mr. WU Zhanjiang was appointed as
chief executive officer.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors during the years as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. There was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year.

FERPTRERYERETHRESR -

w3 R2019F681H » REUTLERSE
EAITHAEE -

AEERFRLEAEEAFHH
YRR S EL AN A Bk i B2 7 5k 18 By O o
kBB E(E - £ MBEESINE
kR BT B 225k -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEHAEN - AARETIR)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 BaHMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, A S A TH=((20194 :
three (2019: two) are directors whose emoluments AL ) EE M E M EESINEE - £
are disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the THEESEHMATHEMNEZENT

emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid
individuals are as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T EUN: S

Salaries and other emoluments 4 N H i B 1,160 1,860

Discretionary bonuses EIEAL 241 130

Retirement scheme contributions IRRETEIE R 79 171
1,480 2,161

The emoluments of the individuals who are not RIFEZEAAERRAURSEHMA

directors and who are amongst the five highest paid THIEBN T 5 EE

individuals of the Group are within the following

band:

2020 2019
Number of Number of
N CUES Individuals

AB A#

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") Nil to =ET(ETHE

HKD 1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T 2 £
No emoluments were paid by the Group to these REERFERILERLEFEA T AE
individuals during the years as an inducement to join B - fEAR S| E AN AN AR B R
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for KB ok B Bk (E o

loss of office.
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(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

kg

10  (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE sR(ER) BT
(a) Basic (losses)/earnings per share (a) BREX(EE) 2R
The calculation of basic losses per share HZE2020F3831HILFE
is based the losses attributable to the HMERERGEBREARAAD T
equity shareholders of the Company EXZRERELEBEERARK
of RMB69,168,000 (2019: profit of 69,168,000 7T (2019 4F : i@
RMB20,254,000) and the weighted average A A R # 20,254,000 7T ) &
of 498,251,319 ordinary shares in issue BB 1T X AR R E 1
during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 498,251,319 & ( 2019 &
389,735,906). 389,735,906A% )5 E -
The weighted average number of ordinary LA IIEF I EETERT ¢
shares is calculated as follows:
2019
Number of shares inissue at 1 April ~ P4 H1BH)
BTN B E 505,263,177 381,072,000
Issuance of shares for FUEE B R R T
the acquisition of subsidiaries - 10,887,994
Effect of shares repurchased BB BRI E (7,011,858)  (2,224,088)
Weighted average BBITRR D i 39
number of shares in issue 498,251,319 389,735,906
(b)  Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBEERF
The diluted earnings per share for the year HZE2020F3A310ILFE -
ended 31 March 2020 has not taken into BIRESE BRI E T K E AR
account the effect of the outstanding share TEEREN RS ZE -
options, which is anti-dilutive.
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M Rk ot
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BB BTN - AARESITR)
11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 Y% BERDZE
Motor vehicles,
office
equipment
and other Leasehold Constructionin  Right-of-use
equipment  improvement progress assets Total
RE
HARIER
Hitkfe HEXE EEIR ERAEEE by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTL AREFT ARETTT ARETTT AREFT
Cost; B
At 1 April 2018 M2018F4A1H 1,559 - - - 1,559
Additions NE 725 - 47 = 772
Acquisition of WEHB AR
subsidiaries 25 25,139 - - 25,164
At 31 March 2019 R2019E3A31H 2,309 25,139 47 - 27,495
Additions NE 9% - - 451 546
Transferred out from BEEIREN
construction in progress - - (47) - (47)
At 31 March 2020 1202034318 2,404 25,139 - 451 27,994
Less: Accumulated W RHHE:
depreciation:
At 1 April 2018 1201854 A1H 774 - - - 774
Charge for the year ERFEY 392 21 - - 613
At 31 March 2019 12019%3A318 1,166 221 - - 1,387
Charge for the year FRREY 450 2,646 = 111 3,207
At 31 March 2020 12020634318 1616 2,867 = 111 4,594
Less: Impairment loss: W ORERE
At 1 April 2018 and R2018F4R1B R
31 March 2019 201934318 = = - - -
Impairment charge MERY - 13,618 - - 13,618
At 31 March 2020 2020638318 - 13618 - - 13618
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2020 1202093A318 788 8,654 - 340 9,782
At 31 March 2019 1201934318 1,143 24918 47 - 26,108

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

1

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The leasehold improvement mainly represents that
one of the Group’s subsidiary has entered into
an agreement with Committee on Economy and
Informatisation of Mentougou District to obtain
the right of use of light poles for 10 years with no
consideration. The subsidiary renovated the poles
to provide smart city infrastructure service and
depreciated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, due to deferral
or cancellation of development plan in relation
to infrastructure service of renovated light poles,
the Group identified indicator of impairment
for lease hold improvement to light poles of the
Group’s subsidiary. Management has performed
an impairment assessment of the CGU of leasehold
improvement based on the prevailing circumstances,
and determined the recoverable amount of the
CGU of leasehold improvement by using discounted
cash flow techniques. Discount rate of 22.35%
was adopted in the value in use model in the
determination of recoverable amount for the
leasehold improvement. Based on the impairment
assessment, impairment loss of RMB13,618,000 was
identified and allocated to leasehold improvement.

1

Y3 - BB Rk (&)

HERETERASE—FHHB AT
HFBEEREEMER(ERE R
HBEAZTKERERSII0FNER
EFA4E - B A BRI R AR M
DREM T AW R RS - HRNFAHRE
RSB ARERENE -

HZE2020F3A31HILEE - BRA
R B IR B R RIS F B R AR S
RS EUE + ANEBE BRI A=Y
BRREEHESCERERZT - B8
EBEERNERMNBERERSEELEN
MEMEEITRER G - WA
RenskiETReELSENHEE
MIER AR E S5 - EEHEENEET
Bl & FER A E AR RARIER
K 522.35% o ERBERE - RE
B85 55 AR E13,618,0007T * I
DEEHERE -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 HEFEEE

Software and
patents
B4 REF
RMB’000
ARKETTT
Cost: R :
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 23,278
Additions NE 9,997
Acquisition of subsidiaries BT A 7 52,043
At 31 March 2019 2019438318 85,318
Additions NE 8,893
At 31 March 2020 72020434318 94,211
Less: Accumulated amortisation: B BErEey
At 1 April 2018 120184 81H 5,125
Charge for the year FARY 6,777
At 31 March 2019 720193 A31H 11,902
Charge for the year FARE 23,048
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H 34,950
Less: Impairment losses: o OREER
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 72018F4 18 Kk2019F3H31H =
Charge for the year FARX 22,418
At 31 March 2020 ®2020%3A378 22,418
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H 36,843
At 31 March 2019 720193 A31H 73,416

OneForce Holdings Limited
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(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, due to constrain
of infrastructure investment, the development
of smart city loT projects were either terminated
or suspended, the Group identified indicator of
impairment for intangible assets of the Group’s
subsidiary. Management has performed an
impairment assessment of intangible assets based
on the prevailing circumstances, and determined
the recoverable amount of the intangible assets by
using discounted cash flow techniques. Discount
rate of 32.34% was adopted in the value in use
model in the determination of recoverable amount
for the intangible assets. Based on the impairment
assessment, impairment loss of RMB22,418,000 was
identified and allocated to the intangible assets.

The amortisation charges are included in “cost of
sales” and “administrative and other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statements of profit or
loss.

12

20204 R

BIEEE(A)

HZE2020F3A31BILFE - |RAE
R HEIL A R I - BUS E T Y A
HERUHSEE - AEEEHRIASE
EXE AR EFEERERIZ - 512
BEENERNNBRHEEFLEEE
TRERG  YERABRRESRE
RiETEFEERNA LS5 -
EreafEAErDKReEFERER
WA RAREE R 532.34% R
BERE  RESEH#AARE
22,418,0007T - WHBEEFEE -

BEB A AR A BRI HER
AR TR R EAAEE BRI -
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(BRBAEEAIN - LARKETIR)
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RBATMIERE
The following list contains the particulars of TRV EBFEREFELE  BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, sk B ENHTB A TS -
assets or liabilities of the Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
FRRRRLE
Place and Particulars of
date of registered/ The
establishment/ issued and Group's Held Held
Name of incorporation/ paid-up  effective by the bya Principal
subsidiaries operation capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary activities
R/ EREY/ i/ ERTk  REEN —EHE

WEARER EEBER AN BRRARE EBREE ADIRE  DARE  IEEH

Along Grid (3t RES H The PRC RMB126,136,174 100% - 100%  Design,
BIRREERL 25 May 2011 ARE implementation,
(Note (i) # 126,136,1747C enhancement and

ERE SRR 2011457258 upgrades of software
BRAR (M) systems and the

provision of technical
services and the sale
of products

HeT - 9IT RAR
HEEHZHR
AR ATARTS AR
HEEM

First Magic The British Virgin 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Limited ~ Islands US$1 each RARR
(“First Magic”) 9 June 2015 \REREE

First Magic RERRES 1ETHRL
International Limited 201586 A9A
([First Magic!)

Citimax Development ~ Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Citimax 26 January 2016 1A REER
Development”) B

HEXRBRAT 2016517268
([xB%E])

Aipu Zhicheng The PRC RMB81,050,000 100% - 100%  Investment,
(it?}ijat%”i}zx% 27 December 2013 AR construction and
BEERAR HE 81,050,0007 operation of smart
(Note (ii) 2013%12R278 ity infrastructure

SR E BRI BRI AR IEH
AR (M) RE BRREE
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13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13 RKEBARANRKREER)

Proportion of ownership interest

.-! : !“ 2

[ ¥

GEL 1 deles
Place and Particulars of
date of registered/ The
establishment/ issued and Group's Held Held
Name of incorporation/ paid-up effective by the bya  Principal
subsidiaries operation capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  activities
AL/ R/ if/ERTR  AKER —EHE

WEARER EENHRAM ARRAFE ERER AQEKE  LNAKA  IEXH

Great Progress The British 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Limited ~ Virgin Islands US$1 each REER
(“Great Progress”) 23 October 2018 1REREE

HERRARAT RERAEE 1ETHRG
(Mt 1) 20185107238

Main Smart (H.K.) Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 13 April 2016 1B REAER
("Main Smart") B

HZ(B%) 2016547135
ARAR(TA%R])

Mingan Zhicheng The PRC HKD20,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(e AN 26 November 2018 20,000,000 7 RERK
HEBRAR) i
(Note (i)) 2018 11H26H

ERBLEHRER
BRAR (M)

Mingan Wulian The PRC RMB20,202,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(tRAZ R 5 December 2018 N AR
HEERAR) i 20,202,007
(Note (i) 201812 A5A

S RARIBRER
BRDE] (M)

Notes: MHEE

(i) The official name of this entity is in Chinese. The English () SEENEABAR AT ®
name is for identification purpose only. This entity was N EBERBR - ZEERANT
registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the SMEHINEIEE D o
PRC.

(i) The official name of this entity is in Chinese, The English (ii) SEENEAHEABAR YL &

name is for identification purpose only. This entity was
registered as domestic enterprise in the PRC.

XERERBS - ZBEBASNTE
A ARERS -
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14 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

The following is the particulars of the associate,
which is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available:

P

14 R—EBEQTNES

TREZMERTFE  HRFELD
TEER  EXNGETSRE

Place of The Group's
Form of establishment Particulars of effective  Principal
Name of associate  business structure  and business paid-up capital interest  activity
£ S KR B8R KRB
BENREE FERR Kemd BAFE BRER TEER
T rItEERER Limited Liability PRC RMB16,400,020 36.59%  Development of
HHEERN Company i ARE smart ity and
(Beijing Beikong AR 16,400,0207T energy internet
Zhike Energy FREBNMR
Internet Company SR EE A
Limited #)
SRR R
AR E A
BRAR
# English translation for identification only.
Summarised information of the associate: BEAREREE :
From
28 February 2019
(Acquisition date)
to 31 March 2019
20195
2H28H
(WERE)Z
2020 201934318
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETL
Amounts of the Group's share of FEEEGBENTEE
the associate
(Gains)/loss from continuing operations HELEEEN(NE)/ BB (1,982) 619
Total comprehensive income FEMGEE (1,982) 619

198 Annual Report 2020  OneForce Holdings Limited




Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
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15

16

INVENTORIES AND CONTRACT COSTS

15 FERSEEAX

Products Em
Software systems under development FERFEF E 4%

The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised
as expenses as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
NSl ARETT
327 103

9,456 11,594
9,783 11,697

ERARAXNFESEITWT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 139,226 76,391
Write-down of inventories FEWKEERE 3,213 -
142,439 76,391

CONTRACT ASSETS 16 BREE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Arising from performance BITEPaRMES

under contracts with customers 35,931 44,235
Less: loss allowance T EE R 1,046 =
34,885 44,235

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year is RMB3,199,000
at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: RMB2,502,000),
all of which relates to retentions.

MN2020E3 318 - EEHWN —F
BREWEREESEAARE
3,199,0007T (201943 H31H : AR

#2,502,0007T) © FiE %

BIABE -

20204 %R

FRIAER

EATN
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(R=AEEHIN

17

AARESR)

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

17 EBZEWFEREKRE

Trade receivables E 5 EIGRIA
Bill receivables N EEE

Less: loss allowance

(a)

W EREHE

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, of the Group is as follows:

(a)

Less than 1 year DR—F
1 to 2 years —EWF
2 to 3 years ME=F

Over 3 years

The Group generally requires customers
to settle progress billings and retention
receivables in accordance with contracted
terms. Credit terms of 90-120 days may be
granted to certain customers for progress
billings.

Further details on the Group's credit policy
and credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivable are set out in Note 27(a).

200 Annual Report 2020  OneForce Holdings Limited

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T NS

122,930 79,629

675 =

123,605 79,629

8,940 6,621

114,665 73,008
SRR 7 AT

AEBEE S RURIE KK
EEEREZAHNRNKER

RERORRIITT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T N S
102,034 63,839
12,234 2,074
95 7,095
302 -
114,665 73,008

ARE—BERTFREA
L RS 03 9 30 R A
REBFA -« = FRPARIME
R HUE T 0% 120K 891
S8 -

FRAEEEEBRRNUKLEA
ZoRFIEREREEE
EEERBNE—THBR
R EE27(a)
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18 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18 Fa{{&UE - 4 R EMERSIE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T N S
Amounts due from FEUR B 75 7R IE

related parties 38 =
Amounts due from third parties FEM S = A FRIE (BREG))

(Note (i) 6,000 6,000
Prepayment for technical service fee — FlTAR B A FK0E 731 7,734
Staff advances and other deposits BTHRREMIFE 6,479 4,814
VAT refundable ARSI 2,765 4,781
Prepayment for miscellaneous Hib A MR

expenses 3,256 2,911
Others EHih 2,535 2,280

21,804 28,520
Note: PHEE
(i) As at 31 March, the amount was loan granted to a (i) M3A31H  ZERBRERA—RBE
third party with annual interest rate of 7%, which will EFRENER  FREET% -
be due in October 2020. #5522020F 10 A EIH -

19  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 Eﬁ&fﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁf&ﬁﬁﬁ
CASH FLOW INFORMATION EEH

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERBEEEUEHE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLERA ARKETIT

Total bank balances and cash RITHBRRIR S HERE 31,802 65,293
Less: restricted cash B ZRHRE 109 25,734
Cash at bank and on hand RITERNFEES 31,693 39,559
The Group's operations in the PRC (excluding AEBRER(FBIEEE)
Hong Kong) are conducted in RMB. RMB B EBIUARKASEMNE
is not a freely convertible currency and the 1T ARG AR EBK
remittance of RMB out of the PRC (excluding HEE . BEHEAE(TEER
Hong Kong) is subject to the relevant rules BN E SR TEMAN
and regulations of the foreign exchange HINBE & 1) 4B B8 38 B & 48 Il By
controls promulgated by the PRC government. PR o
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19  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 B4 RELZEYREMBESH
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BEH (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RETHELMNAEYHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the TRIAVAREFEGEEEHE
Group's liabilities from financing activities, YHBEEE  BREESNE
including both cash and non-cash changes. FEIRESEH - BEEHELE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are MEBBAEAEESEAE S
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future mii‘% SEAME T EL
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HerEamWReREadRK
consolidated cash flow statement as cash HensmEEas -
flows from financing activities.
Net amount Net amount
due to/(from)  due to/(from)
related parties ~ third parties Bank loans  Lease liabilities Total
BH/(BY) R/ (BR)
BUaTERE  F=hERE RITER HEER &t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARBTT
(Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 23)
(zE21) (RzE21) (M22) (M:23)
At1 Aprl| 2018 m2018$4ﬁ15 ___________ - - - - -
Changes from HERERE
financing cash flows: %8
Proceeds from e ASHE
new borrowings - - 21,939 - 21,939
Other Change Eft#8
Acquisition of subsidiaries  REEHBA A 9,603 3,000 1,900 - 14,503
Total changes from BERLTRE
financing cash flows & ggeE 000 963 3000 389 - 36442
At 31 March 2019 2019534318 9,603 3,000 23839 - 36,442
At 1 April 2019 12019547318 9,603 3,000 23839 2 36,442
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19  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 BE4RELSZEYREM4BELSH

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) EEH(E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) ?ﬁ% EHELEMARYK

financing activities (Continued)

Net amount Net amount
due to/(from)  due to/(from)

related parties  third parties Bank loans  Lease liabilities Total
B/ (BY) R/ (R
BEnSERE  EZhRRFE BITER HEAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
(Note 21) (Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 23)

(RfE21) (HfzE21) (ME22) (Bfsz23)

Changes from RERLRES

financing cash flows: &
Proceeds from BRI

new horrowings - - 17,307 = 17,307
Repayment of bank loans ~ EEH/TE - - (28,146) - (28,146)
Repaymentof amount  (EREME=H

due to third parties 7B - (2,000 - - (2,000
Capital element of [RAN i

lease rentals paid - - - (107) (107)
Interest element of BRRSHEHH

lease rentals paid - = = (12) (12
Other borrowings BREMBEZRRA

cost paid - - (1,051) = (1,051)
Other Changes 0y )
Interest expenses HERX - - 1,051 12 1,063

Increase in lease liabilities ~ FRRETVHEE

from entering intonew ~~ EMARE

leases during the year B = - - 41 il
Other Eftr (44) - - - (44

Total changes from BERENE
financing cash flows 2HaE (44) (2,000) (10,839) 344 (12,539)

At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31H 9,559 1,000 13,000 344 23,903
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20

204 Annual Report 2020

TRADE PAYABLES

20

Trade payables to third parties

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled

within one year or are repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ENE=TTME 53R

BZRENRIA
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
INSLS ARKETT
20,321 9,699

AR ZENFIRERN—FREER
PR EKIFEIE -

ANEEILHE QNS 5 EMNFER
BROMTIAT -

Less than 1 year
1to 2 years
2 to 3 years
Over 3 years

OneForce Holdings Limited

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T EN: S
17,833 8,958
1,976 328

212 -

300 413

20,321 9,699
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21

22

SANBREESR)

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

21

HAb e IR K FEET BT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T NS
Amounts due to related parties JE 1t B 5 SR IE (i 5E29(c))

(Note 29(c)) 9,559 9,603
Other taxes payables Hi e FiIE 5,957 4,191
Cash advanced from RE—RE=HHIE LB

a third party (Note (i) Z20) 1,000 3,000
Payables for staff related costs 8 T AR AN FE S 5008 4,117 2,434
Payables for costs incurred in BREANESE

connection with the major RNEIRMDERET

acquisition/initial listing of FFTEE A B 7N B FE A5 508

the company’s shares 95 422
Lease liability (within 1 year) HEAEONFA) 205 =
Others Hib 5,545 1,980

26,478 21,630
Note: BT
(i) The cash advanced from a third party is unsecured and (i) —RE=ZFTNRSBRARIERR
non-interest bearing, and will be repaid in April 2020. TEHE » HBR2020F4 ARIE -
BANK LOANS 22 HRITER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
INGESN  ARET T
Short-term bank loans, secured RERITER - 2

(Note (i) (B EEG)) 9,000 23,839

Short-term bank loans, unsecured RRERIRITE R - A 4,000 =
13,000 23,839
Note: BiteE

(i)

As at 31 March 2020, the bank loan RMB4,000,000 is
guaranteed by the Beijing Haidian Sci-tech Enterprises
Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd; and bank loan of
RMB5,000,000 is jointly guaranteed by the executive
director and director’s spouse and Beijing Capital
Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. (As at 31 March 2019,
the bank loans of RMB21,939,000 is secured by the
restricted cash deposit amounted HKD30,000,000; the
remaining balance of bank loans of RMB1,900,000 is
guaranteed by the executive director.)

All short-term bank loans are repayable within one
year.

(ii)

20204 %R

M2020%3A318 @ SRITERAR
#4,000,0007C RIL R BHE (B 2
BMEERBRARER  RIETE
AR #5,000,000 C HHATTEE
RESFRBURIEREHAIREER
BRARERER o (1R2019F3 A
318 + RITERAREE21,939,000
JC A % BR % 3] £ 77 530,000,000
BT - RITEREHARE
1,900,000 C AR AT TE S HEIR © )

FTERBRTERBER—FNE
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities as at 31

23 THESE

TRERAEER202063 84318
ERENBTAREIEMR

March 2020.
2020
Present

value of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BREHE RIEHE
FIEEE RIFHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥Tx

Within 1 year 1A
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F18{E2F A 139 142
139 142
344 358
Less: total future interest expenses W ARRF SR AR 14
Present value of lease liabilities HERGERE 344
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24

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 5 February 2018 whereby the directors
are authorised, at their discretion, to grant eligible
participants option to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. On 30 July 2018, the Company offered
to grant share options to certain eligible persons
(including executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for
a total of 26,700,000 shares of the Company. For the
share options granted, 20% vested on 30 June 2019;
another 30% will vest on 30 June 2020; and the
remaining 50% will vest on 30 June 2021, subject
to the vesting condition. These share options will be
exercisable until 31 December 2021.

No options were exercised during the year ended 31
March 2020.

T

LA e

e

24 LURESZEUROGAERIRS
RN FFR20184E2 A5 H £ 49 BE AL i

at&l -

B EEERENBERS

ER2HEERTEREURBERARD
20187 H30H @ &NAF]
AETEERAL(BIERRATNIT

AR ©

%%&ﬁiﬁﬁeﬂ
Hﬁ%
_]HXT

P

112

FEORLE

R4 $£26,700,000 A% 2
ﬁfahujm,ﬂﬁﬂxﬁéﬁﬁm :
20% A 2019F6 A30B 5B  B4b
30%#A202056 A30B 528 © Mk
T50% 820216 A308 &8
(RTERBIEHEME)
2021412 A31 B ATA] F1T1E -

° A EBIER

HZE20205E3 8318 ILEE - #mEE
A TET T ©

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants () FEAREOERRRESFOT
are as follows:
Number of Vesting Contractual
instruments periods life of options
IEgH B BRESREEHS
Options granted to directors: 1% & ER)FRMIE :
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7H30H 1,140,000 11 months from 41 months
the date of grant M1{EA
EEcan=)
11EA
-on 30 July 2018 —2018%7H30H 1,710,000 23 months from 41 months
the date of grant M1EA
BT AR
#23f8A
-on 30 July 2018 —R2018%7A30H 2,850,000 35 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
Epchil=k il
#3518 A
Options granted to employees & FASEES
and advisers to the Group:  EAMEIRYBEARAE :
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7 A30H 4,200,000 11 months from 41 months
the date of grant M1EA
=Rkl
sH11{ER
-on 30 July 2018 —M2018%7A30H 6,300,000 23 months from 41 months
the date of grant 41E A
EEsr=kif
5T23(E A
-on 30 July 2018 —12018%F7A30H 10,500,000 35 months from 41 months
the date of grant 4118R
BEHASR
#1358 A
Total share options granted 1% HEEARIE &2 26,700,000

20204 R
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

208 Annual Report 2020

The terms and conditions of the grants
are as follows: (Continued)

Except for share options granted to advisors
and independent non-executive directors of
the Group, vesting of share options are subject
to financial performance of the Group for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020, unless
the board of directors of the Company waive
such condition. At 31 March 2020, the vesting
conditions in respect of financial performance
have not been met; and the board of directors
of the Company had no intention to waive
such condition.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on
a Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Black-Scholes model.

24 tﬂ;ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂi%
i}

() EFERLELMNERRGHMD
T @ (#)

B T A S E R R R 9B S 3k
MITEEHEREI - B
EHNEBRITAEEEZE
20194 ] 202043 A318 1k
FEBBRBME  BRIEXR
NAEEESREHBIKME -
M2020%3A318 - AR
RIEW B BRI M AR ERK
BARBEEZSEEHLE
B ft o

(b) BEREAFERER

RRBERBRENERER
RBHRFEL2EERE
BN AFESE - IR
BRENES A FEDRE
fdee o KETEXFE - B
BEN S RFHRAFELRS
R B A BUR - BRRITTE TR
MAZIAGE » (RETRR -

Fair value of share options and assumptions B 2 {8 KRR

Fair value at measurement date RETE BN AFE HKD 0.28
0.28% 7T

Exercise price 17fEE HKD 0.80
0.80/57T

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TR IR (ARIEHe o IRHT 44.90%

average volatility used in the modelling
under Black-Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average life used in the modelling
under Black-Scholes model)

Risk-free interest rate
(based on Exchange Fund Notes)

OneForce Holdings Limited

BARIRARRAH
IREF TR IR SR )

BREF R (AR AT o (R 3.42
BARTRARRAH
IR HFIR)

EE AR
(ERINEEERE)

1.94%
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with
the share option grants.

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Income tax payable in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent:

24 LIRBESEUROR/ERNRS

(%)

(b) BREAFERRERGE

TERR R Ty B B R R (12
R PSR AN T 10 R R4 B AT
8 IREAFAFERH
R IE A TR B {F
MR - HHIREABER
EREE - TEBARKE
B EHAFE[IEKE

2.4
RNEE o

BAERBIRG GRS -
RELES - BREREH
R FEG 8 HRE R& &
- B B A A R
HY TS IR o

25 SREMBRRRANATEHR

(a) HEMBRRARANENR
BEiE -

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T NG S

At the beginning of the year REY] 8,633 6,807
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FREME(MEE7() 114 1,928
Income tax paid BEREH (194) (102)
At the end of the year WER 8,553 8,633
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

REMBRRRAFRER ()

(b) CRIABEHAEEREE:

recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of (i) BEEHBESEREE
deferred tax assets and liabilities B 5 285 8 5
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) R A B gk R &k A
recognised in the consolidated RN ELEREE
statements of financial position and ES(aE)RREAR
the movements during the years are as HEBINT
follows:
Capitalisation Allowance
of intangible ~ Unrealised for
assets and  profits from  receivables  cumulative
subsequent  sales within and tax
amortisation  the Group  inventories losses Total
BYEE AEER
BRLR HEME ERRER RitBiE
Hiele  REREAN FERB BE #ct
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLT ARBTR ARETR ARETRT ARET:T
Deferred tax arising from: B T 5 & BHBELRIE :
At 1 April 2018 1201854H1H (2,853) = 833 = (2,020)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHTE A ) - = 53 1,878 1,931
Credited to the consolidated &t AfRA1EZRK

statement of profitor loss  ([iEF7(a))

(Note 7(a)) 3 - 160 182 345
At 31 March 2019 201963 A31H (2,850) = 1,046 2,060 256
At 1 April 2019 ®2019F4A1H (2,850) = 1,046 2,060 256
(Charged)/credited to the (18 /3t A4

consolidated statement of  453¢ (Ff5%7(a))

profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (418) 347 934 (2,060) (1,197)
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H (3,268) 347 1,980 - (941)
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

Net deferred tax assets BEERIBEEFE
Net deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEES

At the end of the year RER

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(t), as at 31 March 2020, the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of RMB91,929,000
(2019: RMB14,673,000), as the directors
considered it is not probable that sufficient
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2020, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the
subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) amounted to
RMB46,989,000 (2019: RMB47,212,000) of
which no deferred tax liabilities in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits was provided as
the Company controls the dividend policy of
this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that such profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

REMBRARANFER(R)

ERAELEHBEEERA
f&: (#)

(i) HEMBEMRREL K

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T BN

2,327 3,106

(3,268) (2,850)

(941) 256
RERELEHIHEE

1B R BT 5 2(0) # 51 /) & 5T X
R+ 20203 A31H * K
EEWARAEDAHRBEER
AR EREEARE
91,929,0007C(20194F : AR
#14,673,0007T ) HERIE LT
HEE  RAEERAMBEBEH
REERE R BRI T Al aE
B 7 R AR 2R FE AR B0 F K
SR LB EIE ©

RERELEHHEE

MN2020%3A31H - AREARE
ERFB(TRIEEE)KL
/Y BT B8 A A) MY AR B 0 ) B B
=5 A AR ¥ 46,989,000
(2019%F : AR¥47,212,000
TT) ° EAPAAN A B IR B B
RAMKREBBER BEEETE
BAIRER A R 2R T & 5k
BREF WA ERDIRE
8 5 A 1 PR B R TE AT R IR
ERTEEE -

20205 TAEREBERAF 211



TP T ety et — AL e

Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEEHAIN  UAREFIR)

26  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 BRAE-HERRKRE

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HERIToEF

The reconciliation between the opening and REBGEAHZFZ BN Y
closing balances of each component of the RHEI RS ENEEH I NG A
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the RSB ENE o

consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Details of the changes of the Company’s
individual components of equity are set out

A BB AR AE BIE B A2

FHBRSIT -

below:
Shares
held under
share
Share award Share  Exchange Retained Total
capital scheme premium reserve loss equity
BERG
L HE]
BE  HENRG [0 58 B e REEE ERaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
(Note (Note
(Note 26(c))  (Note 26(d)) 26(g)(i) 26(q)iii))
(Fzx (FizE
(Fyat26(c))  (PiEk26(d)) 26(g)(i)) 26(g)iii))
At 1 April 2018 A2018F4A1AH 3,083 = 93,355 (2,397) - 94,041
Changes in equity HZ2019%3A31H
for the year ended It FERZZE
31 March 2019:
Total comprehensive — FRZER AL
income for the year - - - 7,040 (4,887) 2,153
Purchase of own shares fRiZA& {7 £ E5t 2
under share award BEaERH
scheme - (2,627) - - - (2,627)
Issuance of shares for — FLUEHTBE AR
the acquisition of TR
subsidiaries 1,058 - 52,925 - - 53,983
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31R 4141 (2,627) 146,280 4,643 (4,887) 147,550
Changes in equity & Z202053H31H
for the year ended It EEREHZFE
31 March 2020:
Total comprehensive — FRZERA LT
income for the year - - - 9,599 (235) 9,364
Equity-settled share-  DARIEEE LRGN A
based transactions ERNR S - - 716 - - 716
Purchase of own shares 1R (7 22E)=t 2
under share award BEAFRR
scheme - (2,224) (23) - - (2,247)
At 31 March 2020 2020534310 4141 (4,851) 146,973 14,242 (5,122) 155,383
Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 MizE: ANEEMN2019F481H

212 Annual Report 2020

April 2019 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

OneForce Holdings Limited
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend
for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

(c) Share capital

Movements in the Company’s issued share
capital are as follows:

26 KA RERKRS(E)

(b) RE
(i) FRAEXLGEZKE
R E
H 22020F & 20194F

3A31BIEFE - AR
RESWAEZHKRN
BEE o

(c) ;&

ARBEHETRAZEIT

Nominal
Number of value of
shares ordinary shares
KRHOEE LEREE
RMB'000
ARET T
Ordinary shares, ERITRAR
issued and fully paid: TER -
At 1 April 2018 R2018F481H 381,072,000 3,083
Shares issued for the acquisition  BEUEE B A =)
of subsidiaries BT D 124,191,177 1,058
At 31 March 2019 R20193H31H 505,263,177 4,141
Shares cancellation* FESER D * (52,000) =
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 505,211,177 4,141
& On 17th October 2019, the Company & M2019F10H17H * &R
cancelled 52,000 ordinary shares. AlFE$H52,0000% &A% o
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26  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 26 R4S - &R IR E (&)
(d)  Purchase of own shares (d) BEBSERD
The Company net repurchased 9,796,000 RARREBERZFTEERE
shares on the HKSE. The total amount paid to 9,796,0000 fx it 7 - BB E
acquire these shares of RMB4,851,000 was ZERMDMI N FIBEEE
deducted from equity attributable to equity AR #4,851,0007T B AR A
shareholders of the Company. REEIRRA BRI -
Number Price per share

of shares SRER Aggregate
Month of repurchase fBE A% repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
BERAEE B5 B BAER
HKD HKD RMB'000
BT BT ARETT
August 2018 2018F8H 1,360,000 0.7473 0.7155 867
September 2018 2018F9H 1,400,000 0.7127 0.7080 871
October 2018 2018107 144,000 0.5311 0.5311 69
November 2018 2018114 1,652,000 0.5700 0.5300 820
August 2019 2019487 2,700,000 0.5100 0.4976 1,228
September 2019 2019497 1,256,000 0.5000 0.4845 569
October 2019 20194104 52,000 0.5100 0.4950 23
December 2019 2019127 116,000 0.4900 0.4800 51
January 2020 20201 A 20,000 0.4850 0.4750 9
March 2020 2020437 1,148,000 0.3700 0.3300 367
9,848,000 4,874
Number of Aggregate
Month of cancellation shares cancelled price paid
=85 A & HEERO A EHRER
RMB’000
ARETTT
November 2019 2019411 A 52,000 23

214 Annual Report 2020 OneForce Holdings Limited
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 26
(e) Share award scheme

On 24 July 2018, the Company adopted a
share award scheme (the “Scheme”) with a
duration of ten years. The aggregate number
of the shares underlying all grants made
during the term of the Scheme is limited
to 3% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The Board will
be entitled to make an award to any of the
eligible participant such number of issued
shares as the Board shall determine pursuant
to the Scheme rules. The eligibility of any of
the eligible participants to an award shall be
determined by the Board from time to time
on the basis of the Board’s opinion as to his
contribution and/or future contribution to the

e LEL
el

BRAR

(e)

.--;ﬂll Ll h.!ﬂw ﬁ it

RERRE (&)
e R

MN201857 248 - NATER
MR BB ET 8 (518 )) -
BETF - RETEIHRA -

TR LR ARG 2
HRNARQRTEE TR
3% - EEZ B EERN
FREER2EEREER
BErERRETHERITIR
HEE - TMAER2EE
EREHHNERBHESS
BIEERAE2EEHAEER
BEREENE B R SR
REBIMARERE - 12020
F3A31H  EXTHER
8,512,000 [ 17 + I & (A1

development and growth of the Group. As (A A ERREER RS o
at 31 March 2020, 8,512,000 shares were
repurchased from the market. And no share
was granted to any eligible participant.
f) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share f) RBEHREABRBRKRTE
options at the end of the reporting period B IR A EE HA
At 31 March 2019
M2019%3H31RH
Exercise period 1TIEHR Exercise price number
TEE IRE
HKD
BT
30 June 2019 to 2019F6 A30RE
31 December 2021 202112 A31H 0.80 5,340,000
30 June 2020 to 202056 A30HZE
31 December 2021 2021412 A318 0.80 8,010,000
30 June 2021 to 202156 HA30HZ
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H8 0.80 13,350,000
26,700,000

Each share option entitles the holder to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Further details of these share
options are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BEBRER THEARE
—BRAR R R EBRAREF o
ZEBRERNE —TFHBH
RERE BTSRRI 5124 ©
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(9) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

216 Annual Report 2020

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations, the Company'’s
subsidiary established in Mainland
China is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory reserves
until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distributions to equity holders. This
reserve can be utilised in setting
off accumulated losses or increase
capital of the subsidiary and is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note
2(x).

OneForce Holdings Limited

26

BRA - RERRE(R)

(9)

RENTEEREH
(i) RtEE
iy BROERX

(ii)

(iii)

KAREER] ~ W7k
LAE 5 18 I[E /9 3
ERERREENE
3415 (1961 F F 35
SER) - R E RIEET)
BE -

EERE

R B RE A &
Bl KRB E
P 3 B SZ Y B /BB A
A EFE N
0% BXERME B
E R EREEM
BARH50% ° &l
VAERESHEA
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A REER R BB
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(h) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables and contract assets. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because
cash at bank are held with well-known
financial institutions, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any financial
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

26

27

B~ REERRE (&)

(h) EXEE

AEEEREANTIERR
RREASEEERERLE
MBES - BUE R Al RAR R IR
HE R &R E N S AEE
RN - WHERKRARR
HEARZBE LR DB AR

AREEER N E BB RE
BHERGEE  NEURS
18 BRI /] BEER 1S RO B = iR
R Bl BRAB R E AR EE
BB RIS 2 RS T -

ARAREMBRARHITR
SR B ERERRIR -

THEAREERESMTIANAF
=1

REEEEEBERT Y REE MR
BHELRR - AEEFRNZFRR
EASEERARARNTERRE
BREREGIT o

(a) =EERRK

EERREHF ST TETA
REEMSARBERZHB
EBiENER  AEENEER
BREERBEZEKHIA
REREE - ARRITHRE
HAA T REERE mER
SERSEERREE &
rEBRARE MRS EED
SIHMEERRBR -

AEEYEREHESAEE
A AS B R B O A 17 B 7

= o

=
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ANBREEDR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 March 2020, 36%
(2019: 52%) and 88% (2019: 94%) of the
total trade receivables and contract assets due
from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. For project contracts, the Group
generally requires customers to settle billings
in accordance with contracted terms, credit
terms of 90-120 days may be granted to
certain customers for progress billings.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2020:

Loss
Gross allowance
carrying of individual

amount item
ERIER N

BEAE FRRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR

Current (not past due) BE (K@) 96,348 -
Less than 1 year past due BEOR—F 55,870 -
1-2 years past due BH-ERWE 2,626 63
2-3 years past due BHRME=F 1,648 711
More than 3 years past due ~ HBEEB=F 2,369 -

158,861 774

TREREEREMTIANAF

E(&)

(@ FERRE

ESEUKFEARERNEE

(4&)

TREHEEBAREER2020
F3A31BFTABRAEERR
URESERFRERERE
ENEHREERENER

Loss allowance
for expected credit losses

RHEEBENEERE
Expected Loss Total loss
loss rate allowance allowance
BHERE FERE BERGELAE
% RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE AR%TxR
2% 2,283 2,283
5% 2,666 2,666
49% 1,265 1,328
67% 629 1,340
100% 2,369 2,369
9,212 9,986
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AARESR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2019:

27 LSREKREERESRMIAENATF

E(%)

(@) FERRG)
ESEUFKBERERNEE
(&)

TRIEHEBEBEAEEN2019
F3A31BFTAENEERR
UEREZREBFEBERERE
ERNTEREEEENER

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TEEE B R FRmiaE EiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET T ARKETTT
Current (not past due) BHA(R#EHA) 1% 71,178 591
Less than 1 year past due wE DR —F 3% 39,038 1,014
1-2 years past due BE—EMRE 7% 3,200 239
2-3 years past due BHAME=F 15% 6,635 964
More than 3 years past due  #1E#8:E =4 100% 3,813 3,813
123,864 6,621

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

OneForce Holdings Limited

BHBRRZBESFMNERR
EBIEERTHE - LFHRE
TEHE - LRI B TR
1R A A A2 AR 2 BT SIR
PUEY = BN AN SR [ R R
HERFERN KB R
BR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS AR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEEHAND - AAREKIR)

27

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting year of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of each reporting year) and the
earliest dates the Group can be required to

pay:

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and
accruals

Lease liabilities

27

TREREERERMTIANAYF
B (%)

(b)

RBETERE

AEBNBRETDEHERR
HELHFRLLRETEER
o BRERARASHE
REFEMBHBIRERSH
EEEe UERNEHEE
BEHRBESHFK °

TRETAEENIFTES
REERSREFROFE
EREHA - DRETHOR
BERBERE(BEEMATH
ME(HRZE)RE|RE
FAREOBBAM EGFEHF S
) RA KB R REE 2R
BT AEISH -

2020 2019

Contractual Contractual

undiscounted More than undiscounted

cash flow 1 year but cash flow
within 1 year less than (€T  within 1 year Carrying
or on demand 2 years Total ENNGIT I8 or on demand amount

—ER —FR

RERNERT REXHET

NARER BBR-F QRUZ
BeNE EORME @t REE Beng RERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARBTr  ARETT NS SpN: S
RITER 13,594 - 13,594 13,000 24,667 23,839
BAENFE 20,321 - 20,321 20,321 9,699 9,699

HtbENTIER

st 26,489 - 26,489 26,478 21,630 21,630
HERR - 142 142 139 = =
60,404 142 60,546 59,938 55,996 55,168
202043 THERBRAF 221
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
arises primarily from bank loans is limited
because bank loans issued at fixed rates. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest

rate profile of the Group’s borrowings
at 31 March 2020.

Fixed rate borrowings: BE IR
Bank loans RTER 4.550% ~ 5.565%

THEREERESMTIANAYF
E(&)

(9]

FRER

MERBRR—HSEBTADN
RFEIRKESREAD
35 M R B B K B Y LR
m 78R 17 B R DA B E A =K 2%
Mo FAEASEEERRER
TEFRNNXRBRER - &
B EERBIM AN EF =4
LTI TX()

()  FEHER
T &R 2020 3

A31BAREEEFTN
TR o

(d) Fair value measurement

Fair values of financial instruments carried

2020 2019
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERAE BIRF
) RMB'000 % RMB000
AEBTT ARETT
13,000 5.655% ~ 7.395% 23,839
d) AFEF=E
WHURFEIRHEHET
AR FE

at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
were not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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28

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28 IREHAEAIE
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease A2019F3 318  RIEBT O EEK
payments under non-cancellable operating leases LI E RN R R SEAEHIEHESE

were payable as follows: N

2019
RMB’000
ARKETT
Within 1 year —FE R 2,039
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEREMERN -
2,039

The Group is the lessee in respect of property held
under leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. The Group has initially
applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c). From
1 April 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the policies
set out in Note 2(k), and the details regarding the
Group's future lease payments are disclosed in Note
23.

AEBEAREEBR S ERE 175
SR EAKEHENHEEE A
RYERFERA - AEBBRALE
FTIB A B N FE A BURR B A R 2E Bl
F16%% - BEBEM A E  ERART
TEY o RHFE2(0) o RIBMTFE2(K)
Fr#is® - 2019418 - %
REERN KRN T ER A
EaE  MABASERRBENK
RFEBR M 233 o
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29  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EABBLIXS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FTESHE A ST
Remuneration for key management personnel AEEBTESE ASHIA

of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

Short-term employee benefits R HE SR
Contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme

Share based payments

VAR An 73 ERE RV 3K

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(Note 6(a)).

(b)  Transactions with related parties (b)

A SR AR KA IR

BENARRARES(RHES
BE)RETHREFEE (R
MiEEoHR 58 ) BV RKIA - FH5m
™

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
IN-LLS A ARETT
3,674 3,149

162 274

144 132

3,980 3,555

Payment of dividends AR ESFK

Provision of technical services BT AR B

Guarantee provided HITEERHER
by the executive director

Guarantee jointly provided HITEERESLB
by the executive director and HRERMHAER

director’s spouse
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#6(a)) °

BB RS
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARST T NS
- 1,087
64 255
- 1,900
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(o) Balances with related party

29 EXBEBLIRS(HE)

(0  EREAETS HYAER

0) Accounts receivable and prepayment () JIE U BR 3% K2 FE A5 RN
and other receivables comprised the R E el 2B ®
following balances due from related 5| e U B B T B 4
parties: £

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T NS
Trade and bill receivables: B S REWHIER
FEU SR
- Beijing Beikong Zhike Energy ~ —1b FILERERIGLIR
Internet Company Limited BEBBR AR 166 98

(ii) Other payables comprised the
following balances due from related

(i) HMEMKESFET
51| FE A RE R 7 RO KB R

parties:
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN S
Other payables (Note 21): H fib e~ 708
(BzF21) -
- Beijing Aige Reide Technology ~— i1t R i8kE =Rl
Company Limited AR QA 8,779 8,823
- Beijing Aige Reide investment  — 1t R ¥R IR1EIEE
Company Limited AR 780 780

(d)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating
to connected transactions

None of the above related party transactions
falls under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(d SZEREXZERHNLTRA
HAEE

BiE LB I RS T A L
MRAFBIAAENEER F K
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30

POSITION

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from a subsidiary

Current asset
Bank balances and cash

Current liability
Other payables

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
R—REMBARNERE
e — R B AR &%

hRBEE
RITHEBERS

nRBRE
H At S 5RIR

BERE
AR ik
&N
et

A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 19 June 2020.

WANG Dongbin
ERE

Chairman

FE

NEEEM BT
2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE NS ARKETT
57,871 54,330
88,412 48,036
146,283 102,366
15,263 50,514
6,163 5,330
155,383 147,550

26

4,141 4,141
151,242 143,409
155,383 147,550

BEE202056 A 198 b KXk

i3 -

WU Hongyuan

R
Director

EF

OneForce Holdings Limited
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31 COMPARATIVE FIGURES 31

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 April 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies
are disclosed in Note 2(c).

32 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 32
PARTY

At 31 March 2020, the directors consider the
immediate parents of the Group to be Union Sino
Holdings Limited, Long Eagle International Limited,
Main wealth Development Limited, Smart East
Limited and Great Attain International Limited which
are incorporated in the BVI. These entities do not
produce financial statements available for public use.
The directors consider the ultimate holding parties of
the Group to be Mr. WU Zhanjiang, Mr. CAO Wei,
Mr. LI Kangying and Mr. WANG Dongbin.

LB EE

$‘¥IBA2019¢4H1 BERBLZIERT

BWA BN IE BB B R s RIS
1655 - BIBM FE - EERERTT
B - BRI BCREBIRE— T
IS EE2() IR EE -

HEEREKRERA

202038310 - EERAREE
B E £ &2 7 AUnion Sino Holdings
Limited * Long Eagle International Limited
Main wealth Development Limited -
Smart East Limited [z Great Attain
International Limited * 3252 Ti’JE/\
RERLESTMKYL - ZFERYT
%%%{ﬁ“?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ?fﬁiﬁi‘% %%

RE - AEENREERT RREOT
G‘EE BEELE  FREKLERER
A o
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33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
a new standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2020 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

33

B ZE202063A318LFECHE
B R AEMBIEE] ~ FHEIR
RENTRERE

HEZSUVBHRETIZEAY  BRe
FTEREESE EMAEEET R—E
AR BRI REERE 175
REEA  ZFIEF] R EREZE
202093 A31 B IEFEMRERINA
EZEVHEBRERPERN - ZSFHER
FETIRTREEA R EFEREE ©

Effective for
accounting years
beginning on or after

Pt T ] e — g™

KT B Hisk 2 &

IR Bt FE AR

Revised conceptual framework for 1201 8F M M S 1ELE 1 January 2020
Financial Reporting 2018 202051 1R
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS 7,  BIRRBAFSIREAERISFE 05 « BN &5t 1 January 2020
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform ZERI 253955 K BUFR B 75 R £ R 202051 A1R

Amendments to IFRS 3,
Definition of a business

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8,
Definition of material

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

FTRANER] - FIEEEN 2

B B AS RS R 3R MEET
) Tijiat-

B ER B 15 R ER e £
FRMIER] EAMTE

BB BTSSR A R B 165 A B AT -
Fafp A G B R

B GRTERIE 15 MIEET
BB EDEBTEAIETE

BBR B TR ZERI2018F £ 20204F
SRR

BB B TS 3R E R B 3SR AE AT

p=I1’

RETERIE1RIBE] - %

P KR - (EREE /T2 AIAY
P E

RE Rt ERIE3TRIERT
BREH —BTTERIMIEA

1 January 2020
20201 A1H
1 January 2020
2020F1H1R

1 June 2020
202056 H1H
1 January 2022
20221 A1R
1 January 2022
20221 A1H
1 January 2022
20221 A1R
1 January 2022
20221 A1H

1 January 2022
20221 A1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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34

CONTINGENT EVENTS
Impacts from COVID-19 outbreak

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has
brought additional uncertainties to the global
business environment as well as to the Group. The
Group has been closely monitoring the impact from
the COVID-19 and has commenced to put in place
various contingency measures including but not
limited to increasing monitoring of the business
environment of the Group’s customers and suppliers.

As far as the Group’s business are concerned, so far,
the government has taken measures and COVID-19
was put under control in mainland China. The
outbreak of COVID-19 does not have material impact
on the Group’s business. The Group’s future business
will depend on the overall business development in
mainland China as well. The future impact may differ
from the estimate as more information may become
available to the Group while the situation continues
to evolve.

34

HAREH

IR SRR

B 20204 ) LA SR 37 7 fib 24 O I 35
EIRERIRIE AR AR B R RSN
BERE - AEE—EZVERHNT
PR EROEE - WO FRIRREEIR
JEE e - BIEETRN NS AE
BxP RHEREHRENEE -

AARENEBME - 2IBAAL
B e SREUE - BXEmAET
A E S EEH] - FE AR E LA
SENEBAREATE - AEED
RIEFE TSR B A B
BEGHR - AEEREZBERNE
RMESEZER  RRPEXEGHE
CREENCE
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Financial Summary

MBERE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Expressed in thousands of Renminbi, except for per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss (Note 1)

MEHE
(P S REBESN -

meaBER(ED

For the year ended 31 March
HE=ZA=+—HILFE

FESBEOUARETITRERI)

2016 2017 2018 2019 m
Revenue WA 59,047 87,338 85,799 115,108 163,454
Profit/(loss) before taxation AT (E38) 25,635 21,692 20,528 21,837 (67,857)
Income tax Fristi (3,467) (3,688) (3,806) (1,583) (1,311)
Profit/(loss) for the year PELS IR R FEAS
attributable to FEREN,
equity holders (E18) 22,168 18,004 16,722 20,254  (69,168)
Earnings/(loss) per share  &AXEF,/(Ei8)
Basic and diluted HAR N #ES
(RMB) (AR#) TiE A TEA 5.71 5.20 (13.88)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Note 2) AR R R (FEE2)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 m
Total assets BERT 111,036 128,911 216,165 328,064 263,317
Total liabilities aEeE 46,672 19,222 27,845 66,651 69,779
Net assets SERE 64,364 109,689 188,320 261,413 193,538
Total equity RS sEsE 64,364 109,689 188,320 261,413 193,538

Note 1: The results of operation for the years ended 2016 and 2017 are

ME: BE-T—NFR-E—tF=ZA=+—H

Note 2:

230 Annual Report 2020

derived from document of global offering of the Company. The
result of operation for the years ended 31 March 2018 is derived
from the annual report of 2018. The results of operation for
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 are set out on pages
103 to 104. All such information is extracted from the financial
statements prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS").

The consolidated financial position as at 2016 and 2017 are
derived from document of global offering of the Company. The
consolidated financial position as at 31 March 2018 is derived
from the annual report of 2018. The consolidated financial
position as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 are set out on pages
105 to 106. All such information is extracted from the financial
statements prepared under IFRS.

OneForce Holdings Limited

IFFEMREERTHB R RNEIREE
H-BHE-_ZET-N\E=ZA=+—HILFEN
REEBHANR0IEER -HE-T
—hWER-Z-TFE=F=+—HILFENH
CEERENFEI03BEFE104E - FrEHE
= B M AR ER I RS R RRA BT
BIRE -

M2 R-E—AFR-F—tFZA=+—HBH

FRAEMBRREE 8 ARNEREE M -
RZT—\F=ZA=1+—HOGEATBRR
HHE2018FFH - R T NER T -F
FZA=1+T—BNEEMBRRAENE105
BZEF1068 - FTAMERESHMEKER
WIS L RR RN R
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Definitions

Bx

“Aipu Zhicheng”

“Along Grid”

[ 2 BARS 3

"associate(s)”

[BHEA

“Beikong Energy Internet”

(bR IR B R4 |

“big data”

[ REH |
"Board”
[EEg]
“business day”
[Z%A ]
“BVI”

[EBELES]

"CCBI Investments”

[ CCBI Investments |

b R BB BB ABR A F (Beijing Aipu Zhicheng Internet
Technology Company Limited*), an enterprise established in the PRC
with limited liability on 27 December 2013 and became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company on 28 February 2019

EIE R EBHMBAB AR AR - —ER2013F12 427 BEF
A RIABR A RN A2019F2 A28 AR AR R AN 2 AW B A A

IR E AR RIFAR A7 (Beijing Along Grid Technology Company
Limited*), a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC
with limited liability on 25 May 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

I REARRRHRARAT - —MER2011F5H25 B EFBKIZE S
EEEERAR  WAAARNZENE AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR ETARRIATE T ARE

bRt BRI R EM 48 B R A7 (Beijing Beikong Zhike Energy
Internet Company Limited*), an enterprise established in the PRC with
limited liability, an associate of the Group.

IR E R REBMEER AR —MXIRAFRENBERAR - A&
REEMH SR -

refer to information that is huge in amount and volume, which make
it not possible to achieve data collection, management and processing
into data that is capable of being used in decision making in business
operation

B RNEHMBREE R MEMR - €12 - 218 - WEEXNAER
Bh bR AR B ER B A BUE

the board of Directors of the Company
BARBESE

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal
banking business to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
public holiday in Hong Kong
BEBNRIT-MRAPIKEETRITER - BWEEL - EHRK
BEARBRINE T

the British Virgin Islands
ERBRUES

CCBI Investments Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands
on 10 November 2004 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Construction Bank Corporation, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 939) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601939)

#ECCBI Investments Limited » —fE72004F 11 H10ARIEHEHSE
I AR EERAR AR - WA ER(BRH KR - 939)
M EEFEHFR S (RMRS - 601939) EmARFBEEFZIEITRG
BRATMEEZEWME AR
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Definitions

B=

“Chance Talent”

[ Chance Talent]

“Companies Law” or “Cayman
Companies Law”

[REVE I HRERSARE]
“Companies Ordinance”
INSILESETN

“Company” or “the Company”

ZAVNCIN

"CSG”

[ EH]
“Director(s)”
3

“EIT”
[ERPA1EH

“Founding Shareholders”

[EIHEAR |

“Group”, “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

[ ARSIkl 3

Chance Talent Management Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 4 July 2007 with limited liability, which was wholly-owned by
CCBI Investments as at the date of this report

#5Chance Talent Management Limited + —f&I#200747 S4B £ % /B
BABESEMKZMBRAF - RAHRS B BCCBI Investments 2 &
]

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands
ERNEMSHERRNE1961FEIFAG - KLRARE

pa[ll3

T)

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEBEDIE622ERTUED] - ETEHER] ~ fFts AR M7 gk

OneForce Holdings Limited (JU D#EMRER A E]), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 July 2016 as an exempted
company with limited liability

B OERBRAR - —HR2016F7ASAERESHS MK K
EHRBRAT]

R EIR 5 E4 (China Southern Power Grid Company Limited), an
Independent Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric
power grid company which is principally engaged in electric power
transmission

EHPBESENE  ABYE=ZR  —HEFEREBEASHEAF FE

the director(s) of the Company
ERRRIES

enterprise income tax of the PRC

P BIMRMEHR

collectively, Smart East, Union Sino, Main Wealth, Long Eagle, Mr.
WANG Dong Bin, Mr. WU Zhan Jiang, Mr. LI Kang Ying and Mr. CAO
Wei

$5Smart East * Union Sino * Main Wealth * Long Eagle ~ T H X4
REVIESE  FREXERERESENLGE

the Company and its subsidiaries at the relevant time

BARR RN B RRREAEME AR
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Definitions

Bx

“HK$" or “Hong Kong dollars” or

“HK dollars”
[T

“Hong Kong” or “HK"
[&%]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”

(AR BFELDE]
“IMPG"
[AREEN]

“IMPG Group”

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

(B 5 =77

“Inner Mongolia”

AE=N

“internet of things” or “loT”

B8 |

“Listing”
[

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBETEKET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EE BRI THE

Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
of the Company
BARBEEROBPELDREEZAFLBERAR

electric power grids covering Inner Mongolia, and managed by IMPG
Group, a state-owned provincial electric power grid in the PRC

EREASHEENESR  ATPEEFEAREEARLENEEER

ANEHEH(EE) FGRE TR A (Inner Mongolia Power (Group)
Company Limited*), an Independent Third Party, a state-owned
provincial electric power grid company, together with its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in the electric power transmission, transformation
and distribution in the west Inner Mongolia

BASHEN(EB)BEREARR - RBYE=7 - —HPEBRESE
BERAGF  EREMBAREZZREEANTIAHE FERESE

a person, persons, company or companies which is or are independent
of, and not connected with (within the meaning under the Listing
Rules), any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associate(s)
BRI N ARASEAEMNBARMNEMES  TRTHASRER
BERKFESENMEA - BEZFZALHERE(ERER LA
HIATZHAR]

Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC

EPEAREBER

a information accessing media that is based on internet and
telecommunication network, which connects all individually traceable
devices, and is characterised with smart, advanced and three key
features

—AER A EREERSEEREE  FAEEMEE S
T RYEBEHRERGB G EMNES  HAAER TER=ZEEE
LSEEl

listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 2 March 2018
R 720183 A2 BB A P T
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Definitions

B=

“Listing Rules”
[ EmRAL

“Long Eagle”

[Long Eagle]

“Main Board”

[E4Kk]

“Main Wealth”

[ Main Wealth ]

“Mr. CAO Wej"”
[EREE]
“Mr. LI Kang Yin”

[E=aEv e

“Mr. WANG Dong Bin”

[ ERMSEA

“Mr. WU Zhan Jiang”

[ RENT KA

“PRC” or “China”

[

234 Annual Report 2020

[ E—
J | dmrm

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BB EMARA - EREHERT - fFR AR ek

LONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 26 November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned
by Mr. CAO Wei, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

JELONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED © —fE#2015F 11 526 H7F
EBRZHETMKINBRAR  AEEEE(—BETERF KA
WRRz—)2EHER

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FEEE R FTEIR

MAIN WEALTH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED, a company incorporated
in the BVI on 18 March 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly
owned by Mr. LI Kang Ying, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

FEMAIN WEALTH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED © —f/2016F3 188
REBEABESTMAINBRAR  RERELEE(—BEERRR
B RZ —) 2 EHR

Mr. CAO Wei (23£), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

EEEAL BEEBRRKRAIMBIRZ —

Mr. LI Kangying (Z#1%%), an executive Director of the Board, a
Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding Shareholders
EEMESE - RIITES  FERFRAPHRR 2 —

Mr. WANG Dongbin (&), an executive Director and chairman
of the Board, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

BIRMAE  RRTESMNESFELIR  TEBRRNMEIMERZ —

Mr. WU Zhanjiang (52 #%)T), an executive Director of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, a Substantial Shareholder
and one of The Founding Shareholders

BREVIEE  RITESRARINTHAR - FERFRAIPRE
Z_

the People’s Republic of China, except where the context requires
otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

BREARLNE - RIENESEME - TATRESE - RBIRR
FRfTHRERGE

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Definitions

Bx

“RMB"”
[ARE]

“SFC”

[BELS |

A2 m e

“SFO"

[7E 7 R HIE 5A

"SGCC”

“Share(s)”

[Rsdn

"Shareholder(s)"”
[ A% ]

“Smart East”

[ Smart East |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 52 FA

“subsidiary(ies)”
hEGE

Renminbi, the official currency of the PRC

EPBEEEEEARE

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EEEEFLPESEHERLZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEBEVIESTIEZHFRABKRD - K ARHER] - fTSARM T
A&k

B R E4 AT (State Grid Corporation of China), an Independent
Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric power grid
company, are principally engaged in electric power transmission,
transformation and distribution in the PRC, other than the west Inner
Mongolia and Southern China

ERREMELGF - REVE=7  —HEXEZEBEBEEERAR X2
RERFE(AEEAERESAERINGE - SEREEEL

ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each, subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the
Stock Exchange

AR RIZREE.0NEIL EiBAR - LAUBITTRME & E B W BE AP
isin)

holder(s) of the Share(s)
B DFA A

SMART EAST LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI on 27
November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
WANG Dong Bin, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

HESMART EAST LIMITED » —fE742015F 11 A27 B E R B R Z B &5t
MRZABRLAR - RERERE(—BEERREEMBRZ )2
BHE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBARIMERAT

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance
BEA RGO T &A=
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Definitions

B=

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
[EERE]

“Takeovers Code”

[ <r Al

“Ubiquitous power loT"

[ZFEE /1 st 4 |

“Union Sino”

['Union Sino]

AT
[1EE7H

*  For identification purpose only {£ 345l
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has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EEA LTRAE TRZANEE

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs in Hong
Kong as approved by the SFC and as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

BEBRAWE At RROLOETR - KEESIHELLTEE
7] AR B

is creating an intellectual service system with comprehensive state-
aware, efficient information processing, convenient and flexible
application by making full use of 5G technology, mobile Internet,
artificial intelligence and other new technologies in the entire power
system to realize the interconnection and human-computer interaction
of all aspects in the entire power system

EEGE N EZRSIRE - ROEMRSCHRM - BEER - ATT8EK
EMEl - BERENESGSRONEMER - AT - TE—(d
REZHEREA - EARNEE  EREREENEERBEER

UNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI
on 4 January 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
WU Zhanjiang, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Shareholders
FEUNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED » —f@#201651 A4 BEEE R
HETMAZONERAR  RREIAE(—BETERRRERZ—)
2 EHR

value-added tax
EIEER

OneForce Holdings Limited
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